
AGENDA REVIEW MEETING 
CHESTERFIELD CITY COUNCIL 

Tuesday, September 05, 2023 
6:15 PM 
 

 

I. Appointments – Mayor Bob Nation 
 

1. Planning Commission – Walter Bilgram 
 

2. Police Personnel Board – John F. Foster Jr. 
 

 

II. Council Committee Reports 
 

A. Planning and Public Works Committee – Chairperson Merrell Hansen, 

Ward IV 
 

1. Proposed Amended Bill No. 3463 - P.Z. 06-2023 Chesterfield 
Village Mall (TSG Downtown Chesterfield Redevelopment, LLC) – 
A request to rezone an existing C-8 Planned Commercial District to 

“PC&R” – Planned Commercial and Residential District for 96.017 
acres located west of Clarkson Road / MO 340, south of S Outer 40 
Road, east and north of Chesterfield Parkway. (Second Reading) 

Planning Commission recommends approval. Planning & Public 
Works Committee recommends approval.  

 
2. Proposed Bill No. 3464 - Chesterfield Pkwy Temporary Slope 

Construction License – An ordinance authorizing waiver of 

compensation and dedicating temporary slope construction licenses 
in connection with St. Louis County project number AR-1768, 

Chesterfield Parkway West (South) resurfacing in the City of 
Chesterfield. (Second Reading) Planning & Public Works 
Committee recommends approval.  

 
3. Proposed Bill No. 3466 – P.Z. 10-2023 Carshield F.C. (Stock & 

Associates): A request to rezone from “PI” Planned Industrial to a 

new “PI” Planned Industrial district for a 16.58-acre tract of land 
located east of Eatherton Rd and north of Wings Corporate Dr. 

(17W130064). (Ward 4). (First Reading) Planning Commission 
recommends approval. Planning & Public Works Committee 
recommends approval. 

 
4. Proposed Bill No. 3467 – P.Z. 11-2023 Burkhardt Place, Lot 11: 

A request for an ordinance amendment to the existing “PC” Planned 
Commercial District to new “PC” Planned Commercial District for 
0.32 of the Historical District, located on the south side of Old 

Chesterfield Road (17T220036). (Ward 4). (First Reading) Planning 



Commission recommends approval. Planning & Public Works 
Committee recommends approval. Green Sheet Amendments. 

 
5. Proposed Bill No. 3468 – An Ordinance of the City of Chesterfield, 

Missouri repealing the 2015 International Property Maintenance 
Code and Local amendments thereto. (First Reading). Planning & 
Public Works Committee recommends approval. 

 
6. Next Meeting – Thursday, September 07, 2023 (5:30pm) 

 

 
B. Finance and Administration Committee – Chairperson Michael Moore, 

Ward III 
 

1. Next Meeting – October 03, 2023 (Committee of the Whole) – 

(5:30pm) 
 

 
C. Parks, Recreation and Arts Committee – Chairperson Mary Monachella, 

Ward I 

 
1. Next Meeting – not yet scheduled 

 

 
D. Public Health and Safety Committee – Chairperson Mary Ann 

Mastorakos, Ward II 
 

1. Proposed Resolution No. 489 – A Resolution of the City of 

Chesterfield, Missouri to permit the City of Ballwin, Missouri to 
install a license plate recognition camera within the municipal 
boundaries of the City of Chesterfield. (Roll Call Vote) Public Health 

and Safety Committee recommends approval. 
 

2. Next Meeting – Not yet scheduled 
 

 

III. Report from the City Administrator & Other Items Requiring Action by 
City Council – Mike Geisel 

 
 

IV. Other Legislation 

 
A. Proposed Bill No. 3469 - Spirit Valley Business Park II (Record Plat): A 

Record Plat for a 27.35-acre tract of land zoned “PI” Planned Industrial 

located south of Olive Street Rd., east of Eatherton Rd., and west of Spirit 
Valley Central Dr. (First and Second Reading) Planning Commission 

recommends approval. 
 
 



V. Unfinished Business 
 

 
VI. New Business 

 
 

VII. Adjournment 

 
 

NOTE:  City Council will consider and act upon the matters listed above and such other 
matters as may be presented at the meeting and determined to be appropriate for 
discussion at that time. 
 

Notice is hereby given that the City Council may also hold a closed meeting for the 

purpose of dealing with matters relating to one or more of the following:  legal actions, 
causes of action, litigation or privileged communications between the City’s representatives 
and its attorneys (RSMo 610.021(1) 1994; lease, purchase or sale of real estate (RSMo 
610.021(2) 1994; hiring, firing, disciplining or promoting employees with employee groups 
(RSMo 610.021(3)1994; Preparation, including any discussions or work product, on behalf 
of a public governmental body or its representatives for negotiations with employee groups 
(RSMo 610.021(9) 1994; and/or bidding specification (RSMo 610.021(11) 1994.  
 
PERSONS REQUIRING AN ACCOMMODATION TO ATTEND AND PARTICIPATE IN THE 
CITY COUNCIL MEETING SHOULD CONTACT CITY CLERK VICKIE MCGOWND AT (636) 
537-6716, AT LEAST TWO (2) WORKDAYS PRIOR TO THE MEETING. 



 

AGENDA 
CITY COUNCIL MEETING 

Chesterfield City Hall 
690 Chesterfield Parkway West 

Tuesday, September 05, 2023 
7:00 PM 

 
 

 

I. CALL TO ORDER – Mayor Bob Nation  

 

 

II. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE – Mayor Bob Nation  

 
 

III. MOMENT OF SILENT PRAYER – Mayor Bob Nation  

 
 

IV. ROLL CALL –City Clerk Vickie McGownd 

 

 

V. APPROVAL OF MINUTES – Mayor Bob Nation  

 
A. City Council Meeting Minutes – August 21, 2023 

 
 

VI. INTRODUCTORY REMARKS – Mayor Bob Nation 

 

A. Thursday, September 07, 2023 – Planning & Public Works (5:30pm) 
 

B. Monday, September 11, 2023 – Planning Commission (7:00pm) 
 

C. Monday, September 18, 2023 – City Council (7:00pm) 

 
 

VII. COMMUNICATIONS AND PETITIONS – Mayor Bob Nation 

 

 
VIII. APPOINTMENTS – Mayor Bob Nation 

 
A. Planning Commission – Walter Bilgram 

 
B. Police Personnel Board – John F. Foster Jr. 

 



 

IX. COUNCIL COMMITTEE REPORTS 

 
A. Planning and Public Works Committee – Chairperson Merrell Hansen, 

Ward IV 
 
1. Proposed Amended Bill No. 3463 - P.Z. 06-2023 Chesterfield Village 

Mall (TSG Downtown Chesterfield Redevelopment, LLC) – A request 
to rezone an existing C-8 Planned Commercial District to “PC&R” – 

Planned Commercial and Residential District for 96.017 acres located 
west of Clarkson Road / MO 340, south of S Outer 40 Road, east and 
north of Chesterfield Parkway. (Second Reading) Planning 

Commission recommends approval. Planning & Public Works 
Committee recommends approval.  

 
2. Proposed Bill No. 3464 - Chesterfield Pkwy Temporary Slope 

Construction License – An ordinance authorizing waiver of 

compensation and dedicating temporary slope construction licenses in 
connection with St. Louis County project number AR-1768, Chesterfield 
Parkway West (South) resurfacing in the City of Chesterfield. (Second 

Reading) Planning & Public Works Committee recommends 
approval.  

 
3. Proposed Bill No. 3466 – P.Z. 10-2023 Carshield F.C. (Stock & 

Associates): A request to rezone from “PI” Planned Industrial to a new 

“PI” Planned Industrial district for a 16.58-acre tract of land located 
east of Eatherton Rd and north of Wings Corporate Dr. (17W130064). 

(Ward 4). (First Reading) Planning Commission recommends 
approval. Planning & Public Works Committee recommends 
approval. 

 
4. Proposed Bill No. 3467 – P.Z. 11-2023 Burkhardt Place, Lot 11: A 

request for an ordinance amendment to the existing “PC” Planned 

Commercial District to new “PC” Planned Commercial District for 0.32 
of the Historical District, located on the south side of Old Chesterfield 

Road (17T220036). (Ward 4). (First Reading) Planning Commission 
recommends approval. Planning & Public Works Committee 
recommends approval. Green Sheet Amendments. 

 
5. Proposed Bill No. 3468 – An Ordinance of the City of Chesterfield, 

Missouri repealing the 2015 International Property Maintenance Code 

and Local amendments thereto. (First Reading). Planning & Public 
Works Committee recommends approval. 

 
6. Next Meeting – Thursday, September 07, 2023 (5:30pm) 

 

 
B. Finance and Administration Committee – Chairperson Michael Moore, 

Ward III 



 

 
1. Next Meeting – October 03, 2023 - Committee of The Whole 

(5:30pm) 
 

 
C. Parks, Recreation and Arts Committee – Chairperson Mary Monachella, 

Ward I 

 
1. Next Meeting – not yet scheduled 

 

 
D. Public Health and Safety Committee – Chairperson Mary Ann 

Mastorakos, Ward II 
 

1. Proposed Resolution No. 489 – A Resolution of the City of Chesterfield, 

Missouri to permit the City of Ballwin, Missouri to install a license plate 
recognition camera within the municipal boundaries of the City of 

Chesterfield. (Roll Call Vote) Public Health and Safety Committee 
recommends approval. 
 

2. Next Meeting – not yet scheduled 
 

 

X. REPORT FROM THE CITY ADMINISTRATOR – Mike Geisel 
 

 

XI. OTHER LEGISLATION 

 

A. Proposed Bill No. 3469 - Spirit Valley Business Park II (Record Plat): A 
Record Plat for a 27.35-acre tract of land zoned “PI” Planned Industrial 

located south of Olive Street Rd., east of Eatherton Rd., and west of Spirit 
Valley Central Dr. (First and Second Reading) Planning Commission 
recommends approval. 

 
 

XII. UNFINISHED BUSINESS 
 
 

XIII. NEW BUSINESS 
 
 

XIV. ADJOURNMENT 
 
 
NOTE: City Council will consider and act upon the matters listed above and such other 
matters as may be presented at the meeting and determined to be appropriate for 
discussion at that time. 



 

 
Notice is hereby given that the City Council may also hold a closed meeting for the 
purpose of dealing with matters relating to one or more of the following: legal actions, 
causes of action, litigation or privileged communications between the City’s representatives 
and its attorneys (RSMo 610.021(1) 1994; lease, purchase or sale of real estate (RSMo 
610.021(2) 1994; hiring, firing, disciplining or promoting employees with employee groups 
(RSMo 610.021(3)1994; Preparation, including any discussions or work product, on behalf 
of a public governmental body or its representatives for negotiations with employee groups 
(RSMo 610.021(9) 1994; and/or bidding specification (RSMo 610.021(11) 1994. 
 
PERSONS REQUIRING AN ACCOMMODATION TO ATTEND AND PARTICIPATE IN 
THE CITY COUNCIL MEETING SHOULD CONTACT CITY CLERK VICKIE MCGOWND 
AT (636)537-6716, AT LEAST TWO (2) WORKDAYS PRIOR TO THE MEETING. 



AGENDA REVIEW – TUESDAY, SEPTEMBER 05, 2023 – 6:15 PM 
 
An AGENDA REVIEW meeting has been scheduled to start at 6:15 PM, on Tuesday, 
September 05, 2023.   

 
 
Please let me know, ASAP, if you will be unable to attend these meetings. 

 
 

 
 

UPCOMING MEETINGS/EVENTS  
 

A. Thursday, September 07, 2023 – Planning & Public Works (5:30pm) 
 
B. Monday, September 11, 2023 – Planning Commission (7:00pm) 

 
C. Monday, September 18, 2023 – City Council (7:00pm) 

 
 

COMMUNICATIONS AND PETITIONS  
 

This section provides time for the public to speak and express their views during 
public comment.  Each speaker is limited to not more than four minutes, after 
which, the City Administrator will indicate that their time has expired.  It is 

important to remember that this section of the agenda is not intended or appropriate 
for debate or question and answer period.  This is the public’s opportunity to share 

their comments in a public forum. 

 
 
APPOINTMENTS 
 
There are two appointments proposed for Tuesday’s meeting.  

 
Planning Commission – Walter Bilgram 
 

Police Personnel Board – John F. Foster Jr. 
 



 1 

 

 

 

 

 

RECORD OF PROCEEDING 

 

 

 MEETING OF THE CITY COUNCIL  

OF THE CITY OF CHESTERFIELD 

 AT 690 CHESTERFIELD PARKWAY WEST 

 

AUGUST 21, 2023 

 
 

 

The meeting was called to order at 7 p.m. 

 

Mayor Bob Nation led everyone in the Pledge of Allegiance and followed with a moment 

of silent prayer.  

 

A roll call was taken with the following results: 

 

PRESENT ABSENT 

 

Mayor Bob Nation  

Councilmember Mary Monachella 

Councilmember Barbara McGuinness 

Councilmember Aaron Wahl 

Councilmember Mary Ann Mastorakos 

Councilmember Dan Hurt 

Councilmember Michael Moore 

Councilmember Merrell Hansen 

Councilmember Gary Budoor 

 

APPROVAL OF MINUTES 

 

The minutes of the August 7, 2023 City Council meeting were submitted for approval. 

Councilmember Mastorakos made a motion, seconded by Councilmember Moore, to 

approve the August 7, 2023 City Council minutes.  A voice vote was taken with a 

unanimous affirmative result and the motion was declared passed. 



 2 

 

The minutes of the August 7, 2023 Special Council Work Session were submitted for 

approval. Councilmember Hansen made a motion, seconded by Councilmember Moore, 

to approve the August 7, 2023 Special Council Work Session minutes.  A voice vote was 

taken with a unanimous affirmative result and the motion was declared passed. 

 

INTRODUCTORY REMARKS 

 

Mayor Nation announced that City Hall will be closed on Monday, September 4, in 

observance of Labor Day. 

 

Mayor Nation announced that the next meeting of City Council is scheduled for Tuesday, 

September 5, at 7 p.m. 

 

COMMUNICATIONS AND PETITIONS 

 

Chief Ray Johnson awarded the Chief’s Commendation Award to Officers Joseph 

Brewer and John Hartman for their heroic life-saving response involving a six-year-old 

child. 

 

Ms. Patricia Tocco, 14720 Whitebrook Drive, made comments pertaining to 

compromises reached for Bill No. 3463 (P.Z. 06-2023 Chesterfield Village Mall [TSG 

Downtown Chesterfield Redevelopment, LLC]). 

 

Mr. Michael Doster, 16150 Main Circle Drive, representing The Staenberg Group, 

reaffirmed the request to postpone consideration of Bill No. 3463 (P.Z. 06-2023 

Chesterfield Village Mall [TSG Downtown Chesterfield Redevelopment, LLC]). 

 

The following individuals spoke in support of Bill No. 3463 (P.Z. 06-2023 Chesterfield 

Village Mall [TSG Downtown Chesterfield Redevelopment, LLC]) and expressed 

opposition to any amendment that restricts the successful redevelopment of Chesterfield 

Mall: 

 

• Mr. Ralph Pfremmer, 16573 Wildhorse Creek Road 

• Mr. Rob Rodermund, 17134 Surrey View Drive 

• Ms. Mary Brown, 62 Chesterfield Lakes Road 

 

APPOINTMENTS 

 

There were no appointments scheduled on the agenda for this meeting. 

 



 3 

COUNCIL COMMITTEE REPORTS AND ASSOCIATED LEGISLATION 

 

Planning & Public Works Committee 

 

Bill No. 3463 Rezones an existing C-8 Planned Commercial District to “PC&R” – 

Planned Commercial and Residential District for 96.017 acres 

located west of Clarkson Road / MO 340, south of S Outer 40 Road, 

east and north of Chesterfield Parkway  (First Reading)  Planning 

Commission recommends approval.  Planning & Public Works 

Committee recommends approval.  Green Sheet Amendments.  

Petitioner requests postponement 

 

Councilmember Merrell Hansen, Chairperson of the Planning & Public Works 

Committee, made a motion, seconded by Councilmember Moore, to postpone the reading 

of Bill No. 3463 until the next City Council meeting, as requested by the petitioner. 

 

After lengthy discussion, Councilmember Wahl made a motion, seconded by 

Councilmember Hansen, to amend the original motion to postpone, by moving forward 

with the first reading, incorporating green sheet amendment numbers 1-15 and excluding 

green sheet amendment number 16, which created the 1.35 million square foot residential 

ground floor footprint restriction.  A roll call vote was taken on the amendment, with the 

following results:  Ayes – Moore, Wahl, Budoor and Hansen.  Nays – Hurt, McGuinness, 

Monachella and Mastorakos.  Mayor Nation voted “Aye” to break the tie and declared 

the motion passed.  This vote invalidates the original motion to postpone. 

 

Councilmember Hansen made a motion, seconded by Councilmember Wahl, for the first 

reading of Bill No. 3463, as amended.  A roll call vote was taken with the following 

results:  Ayes – Budoor, Mastorakos, Wahl, Hansen, Hurt, Monachella and Moore.  Nays 

– McGuinness.  Mayor Nation declared the motion passed, as amended.  Bill No. 3463 

was read for the first time. 

 

Bill No. 3464 Authorizes waiver of compensation and dedicates temporary slope 

construction licenses in connection with St. Louis County project 

number AR-1768, Chesterfield Parkway West (South) resurfacing in 

the City of Chesterfield  (First Reading)  Planning & Public 

Works Committee recommends approval 

 

Councilmember Hansen made a motion, seconded by Councilmember Monachella, for 

the first reading of Bill No. 3464.  A voice vote was taken with a unanimous affirmative 

result and the motion was declared passed.  Bill No. 3464 was read for the first time. 

 

Councilmember Hansen announced that the next meeting of this Committee is scheduled 

for Thursday, August 24, at 5:30 p.m. 



 4 

 

Finance & Administration Committee 

 

Councilmember Michael Moore, Chairperson of the Finance & Administration 

Committee, announced that the next meeting of this Committee, scheduled for Monday, 

September 24, will be re-scheduled due to a conflict with a religious holiday. 

 

Parks, Recreation & Arts Committee 

 

Councilmember Mary Monachella, Chairperson of the Parks, Recreation & Arts 

Committee, made a motion, seconded by Councilmember Wahl, to approve a proposed 

resolution authorizing the City’s Municipal Parks Grant Application, as recommended by 

the Parks, Recreation & Arts Committee.  A roll call vote was taken with the following 

results:  Ayes – Hurt, McGuinness, Moore, Monachella, Wahl, Hansen, Mastorakos and 

Budoor.  Nays – None.  Mayor Nation declared the motion passed.  The successful 

resolution became Chesterfield Resolution No. 488. 

 

Councilmember Monachella made a motion, seconded by Councilmember Hansen, to 

approve an expenditure of up to $40,000 of the existing American Rescue Plan Act 

(ARPA) allocation, for windscreens and fencing at the Chesterfield Valley Athletic 

Complex (CVAC) Pickleball Courts, as recommended by the Parks, Recreation & Arts 

Committee.  A roll call vote was taken with the following results:  Ayes – Mastorakos, 

Monachella, Hurt, Wahl, Hansen, Budoor, McGuinness and Moore.  Nays – None.  

Mayor Nation declared the motion passed. 

 

Councilmember Monachella made a motion, seconded by Councilmember Budoor, to 

approve “earmarking” $500,000 from the General Fund – Fund Reserves over the 40% 

Fund Reserve Policy for the future construction of Pickleball facilities, with the 

expectation to contribute additional funds in the future, as recommended by the Parks, 

Recreation & Arts Committee.  A roll call vote was taken with the following results:  

Ayes – Hansen, Budoor, Moore, Hurt, Wahl, Mastorakos, McGuinness and Monachella.  

Nays – None.  Mayor Nation declared the motion passed. 

 

Public Health & Safety Committee 

 

Councilmember Mary Ann Mastorakos, Chairperson of the Public Health & Safety 

Committee, announced that the Committee met immediately prior to the Council 

meeting, and action items from that meeting will be addressed at the next City Council 

meeting. 

 



 5 

REPORT FROM THE CITY ADMINISTRATOR 

 

City Administrator Mike Geisel reported that Staff is recommending award of a contract 

for the 2023 Asphalt Mill and Overlay Project. Based upon review of information 

provided by Jim Eckrich, Director of Public Works/City Engineer, Mr. Geisel joined with 

him in recommending approval of the low bid as submitted by Ford Asphalt, and 

authorization for the City Administrator to execute a contract in an amount not to exceed 

$420,000, which is the budgeted value in the Capital Projects Fund.  Councilmember 

Moore made a motion, seconded by Councilmember Wahl, to approve this 

recommendation.  A roll call vote was taken with the following results:  Ayes – 

McGuinness, Wahl, Hurt, Monachella, Hansen, Moore, Budoor and Mastorakos.  Nays – 

None.  Whereupon Mayor Nation declared the motion passed. 

 

Mr. Geisel reported that 4 Hands Brewing Company, located at 17081 N. Outer 40 Road, 

has requested a new liquor license to sell all kinds of liquor by the drink, to be consumed 

on premise and Sunday sales.  Mr. Geisel reported that, per City policy, this application 

has been reviewed and is now recommended for approval by both the Police Department 

and Planning & Development Services.  Councilmember Budoor made a motion, 

seconded by Councilmember Hansen, to approve issuance of a new liquor license to 4 

Hands Brewing Company.  A voice vote was taken with a unanimous affirmative result 

and the motion was declared passed. 

 

Councilmember Moore made a motion, seconded by Councilmember Monachella, to 

approve and authorize payment of the St. Louis County Metro Municipal League dues in 

the amount of $7,122.  A roll call vote was taken with the following results:  Ayes – 

Monachella, Budoor, Hansen, McGuinness, Mastorakos, Hurt, Moore and Wahl.  Nays – 

None.  Mayor Nation declared the motion passed. 

 

OTHER LEGISLATION 

 

Bill No. 3462 Re-adopts the procedure established in Ordinance No. 605 of the 

City of Chesterfield as the procedure for disclosure of conflicts for 

certain municipal officials  (Second Reading) 

 

Councilmember Wahl made a motion, seconded by Councilmember Budoor, for the 

second reading of Bill No. 3462.  A voice vote was taken with a unanimous affirmative 

result and the motion was declared passed.  Bill No. 3462 was read for the second time.  

A roll call vote was taken for the passage and approval of Bill No. 3462 with the 

following results:  Ayes – Mastorakos, Moore, Hurt, Wahl, Monachella, McGuinness, 

Hansen and Budoor.  Nays – None.  Whereupon Mayor Nation declared Bill No. 3462 

approved, passed it and it became ORDINANCE NO. 3254. 

 



 6 

Bill No. 3465 Amends Section 110.380 of the City Code related to the City 

Council’s rules of procedure  (First Reading)  City Attorney 

recommends approval 

 

Councilmember McGuinness made a motion, seconded by Councilmember Wahl, to send 

Bill No. 3465 to the Finance & Administration Committee for review and further 

consideration.  A voice vote was taken with a unanimous affirmative result and the 

motion was declared passed. 

 

UNFINISHED BUSINESS 

 

There was no unfinished business scheduled on the agenda for this meeting. 

 

NEW BUSINESS 

 

There was no new business. 

 

ADJOURNMENT 

 

There being no further business to discuss, Mayor Nation adjourned the meeting at 8:45 

p.m. 

 

 

 

 

          

Mayor Bob Nation 

 

 

ATTEST: 

 

 

 

_______________________________________  

Vickie McGownd, City Clerk 

 

 

APPROVED BY CITY COUNCIL:  __________________ 

 



PLANNING AND PUBLIC WORKS COMMITTEE 
Chair:  Councilmember Merrell Hansen 

Vice-Chair:  Councilmember Dan Hurt 

 

Proposed Amended Bill No. 3463 - P.Z. 06-2023 Chesterfield Village Mall (TSG 
Downtown Chesterfield Redevelopment, LLC) – A request to rezone an existing 
C-8 Planned Commercial District to “PC&R” – Planned Commercial and Residential 

District for 96.017 acres located west of Clarkson Road / MO 340, south of S Outer 
40 Road, east and north of Chesterfield Parkway. (Second Reading) Planning 

Commission recommends approval. Planning & Public Works Committee 
recommends approval.  

 

Proposed Bill No. 3464 - Chesterfield Pkwy Temporary Slope Construction 
License – An ordinance authorizing waiver of compensation and dedicating 

temporary slope construction licenses in connection with St. Louis County project 
number AR-1768, Chesterfield Parkway West (South) resurfacing in the City of 
Chesterfield. (Second Reading) Planning & Public Works Committee 

recommends approval.  
 

Proposed Bill No. 3466 – P.Z. 10-2023 Carshield F.C. (Stock & Associates): A 

request to rezone from “PI” Planned Industrial to a new “PI” Planned Industrial 
district for a 16.58-acre tract of land located east of Eatherton Rd and north of 

Wings Corporate Dr. (17W130064). (Ward 4). (First Reading) Planning 
Commission recommends approval. Planning & Public Works Committee 
recommends approval. 

 
Proposed Bill No. 3467 – P.Z. 11-2023 Burkhardt Place, Lot 11: A request for an 
ordinance amendment to the existing “PC” Planned Commercial District to new “PC” 

Planned Commercial District for 0.32 of the Historical District, located on the south 
side of Old Chesterfield Road (17T220036). (Ward 4). (First Reading) Planning 

Commission recommends approval. Planning & Public Works Committee 
recommends approval. Green Sheet Amendments. 

 

Proposed Bill No. 3468 – An Ordinance of the City of Chesterfield, Missouri 
repealing the 2015 International Property Maintenance Code and Local 

amendments thereto. (First Reading). Planning & Public Works Committee 
recommends approval. 
 

 
NEXT MEETING 
 

The next meeting of the Planning and Public Works Committee is scheduled for 
Thursday, September 7th, 2023, at 5:30pm. 

 
If you have any questions or require additional information, please contact Director 
of Planning - Justin Wyse, Director of Public Works – Jim Eckrich, or me prior to 

Tuesday’s meeting.   



 

 

MEMORANDUM 
 
TO: Mike Geisel, City Administrator  
 
FROM: Justin Wyse, Director of Planning 
  
SUBJECT: Planning & Public Works Committee Meeting Summary  

 Thursday, August 24, 2023 

______________________________________________________________ 
 
A meeting of the Planning and Public Works Committee of the Chesterfield City Council was held 
on Thursday, August 24, 2023 in Conference Room 101.  
 
In attendance were: Chair Merrell Hansen (Ward IV); Councilmember Mary Monachella (Ward 
I), Councilmember Mary Ann Mastorakos (Ward II), and Councilmember Dan Hurt (Ward III). 
 
Also in attendance were:  Mayor Bob Nation; Councilmember Aaron Wahl (Ward II); 
Councilmember Gary Budoor (Ward IV); Justin Wyse, Director of Planning served as the 
Recording Secretary at the meeting; Shilpi Bharti, Planner; Alyssa Ahner, Planner;  
 
The meeting was called to order at 5:30 p.m.  
 
I. APPROVAL OF MEETING SUMMARY 
    

A. Approval of the August 10, 2023 Committee Meeting Summary 
 
Councilmember Mastorakos made a motion to approve the Meeting Summary of  
August 10, 2023 with the change to a misspelling on page 2 of the minutes.   The motion was 
seconded by Councilmember Monachella and passed by a voice vote of 4-0.   
 
 
II. UNFINISHED BUSINESS - None 

 
 

III. NEW BUSINESS 
 

A. Planning Commission Nominee Interview 
 
Chair Hansen asked Mr. Walter Bilgram to give a brief summary of his background and interest 
in serving on the Planning Commission. Following Mr. Bilgram’s introduction, the Committee 
provided an overview of many of the important elements of the position. 
 
Councilmember Hurt made a motion to forward Mr. Walter Bilgram’s nomination for the Planning 
Commission to City Council with a recommendation to approve.  The motion was seconded by 
Councilmember Mastorakos and passed by a voice vote of 4-0. 
 
 

B. Power of Review: Chesterfield Commons Six, Lot 3 (Chick-fil-A) ASDSP:   A Third 
Amended Site Development Section Plan, Amended Landscape Plan, Lighting Plan 

 



 

Planning & Public Works Committee Meeting Summary 
August 24, 2023 

2 

and Amended Architectural Elevations for a 1.28-acre tract of land zoned “C-8” 
Planned Commercial District located on the north side of Chesterfield Airport Road 
and west of Boone’s Crossing. (Ward 4) 

 
STAFF PRESENTATION 
Shilpi Bharti, Planner presented an overview of the proposed changes to the site to accommodate 
an expanded drive-thru lane, relocate menu board and order canopy, install a canopy on the east 
side of the building, adjustments to landscaping and lighting based on the changes, and the 
associated request for 45% parking reduction.  The Planning Commission approved the project 
by a vote of 4-2 and Power of Review was called by Councilmember Hansen. 
 

DISCUSSION 
 
Discussion was held regarding concerns from neighboring property owners regarding trash pickup 
and shared parking. Councilmember Monachella expressed her concern for the 20% increase in 
the drive-thru customers. She expressed that the increase percentage might create an additional 
congestion. The project engineer from Chick-fil-a noted that the drive-thru expansion will have 
total of 33 stacking space, which is double the number of stacking space existing on the site. The 
increase in stacking number will address the 20% increase, additionally he mentioned that they 
are reducing the number of seats for dine-in customers, and expanding the size of kitchen to offer 
faster delivery to the drive-thru customers.  
 
Additionally, the committee discussed concerns with the amount of parking being removed and 
expressed a preference to reduce green space to maintain as much parking as possible on the 
site while improving conditions that result in congestion from the drive thru spilling onto adjacent 
roadways. Mr. Wyse noted that they were at the minimum green space percentage on the site 
and may not be able to further reduce the parking islands to accommodate replacement parking. 
 
Councilmember Hurt made a motion to postpone Chesterfield Commons Six, Lot 3 (Chick-
fil-A) until the next meeting to allow time for the neighbors to discuss cooperative maintenance 
and allow the design team to investigate options to minimize the amount of lost parking on the 
site.  The motion was seconded by Councilmember Mastorakos and passed by a voice vote 
of 4-0. 
 

 
C. P.Z. 10-2023 Carshield F.C. (Stock & Associates): A request to rezone from “PI” 

Planned Industrial to a new “PI” Planned Industrial district for a 16.58-acre tract of land 
located east of Eatherton Rd and north of Wings Corporate Dr. (17W130064).        
(Ward 4) 

 
STAFF PRESENTATION 
Alyssa Ahner, Planner presented an overview of the request to add additional uses to allow for 
outdoor and indoor soccer facilities on the site, adjust setbacks, allow for taller lighting standards 
to be installed with the proposed fields, and provide a Preliminary Development Plan for the 
proposed development.  
 

DISCUSSION 
 
The committee discussed concerns about increasing traffic on Eatherton Road and Mr. Wyse 
noted that a traffic study would be required with a future site development plan submittal for the 



 

Planning & Public Works Committee Meeting Summary 
August 24, 2023 

3 

project. Additionally, the committee discussed the impact on lighting and noted the distance of 
residential properties from the proposed lighting. 
 
Several Councilmembers noted concerns about soccer balls leaving the property. Mr. George 
Stock, on behalf of the project, stated that fencing, netting, and landscaping will be utilized in 
various areas around the site to minimize the occurrences of this similar to Maryville off Conway 
Road in Town and Country. 
 
Councilmember Hurt questioned the driveway spacing proposed. Ms. Ahner informed the 
committee that the current configuration is slightly short of the City’s UDC requirement and the 
Attachment ‘A’ references that these are conceptual location and that all access management 
requirements will be met on the Site Development Plan. Mr. Wyse noted that the two access 
points on the northern portion of the site are required by the Monarch Fire Protection District. 
Councilmember Hurt noted, and George Stock concurred, that additional restrictions such as 
gating or limited access (e.g., right-in / right-out) may be necessary. 
 
Councilmember Monachella made a motion to forward P.Z. 10-2023 Carshield F.C. (Stock 
& Associates) to City Council with a recommendation to approve.  The motion was seconded 
by Councilmember Hansen and passed by a voice vote of 4-0. 
 
[Please see the attached report prepared by Justin Wyse, Director of Planning, for 
additional information on P.Z. 10-2023 Carshield F.C. (Stock & Associates).] 
 

 
D. P.Z. 11-2023 Burkhardt Place, Lot 11: A request for an ordinance amendment to the 

existing “PC” Planned Commercial District to new “PC” Planned Commercial District 
for 0.32 of the Historical District, located on the south side of Old Chesterfield Road 
(17T220036). (Ward 4) 

 
STAFF PRESENTATION 
Shilpi Bharti, Planner presented the request to modify development criteria for the existing site. 
The proposed changes would allow for renovation of the existing structure and address areas of 
existing non-conformance on the site. Additionally, staff has coordinated with the applicant since 
the Planning Commission meeting and proposes that the committee consider including an 
amendment to clarify when TGA payments are required. 
 

DISCUSSION 
 
The Committee noted the improvements that the applicants have made along the historic corridor 
and the benefits to the City with the preservation and enhancement efforts made. 
 
Councilmember Hurt made a motion to forward P.Z. 11-2023 Burkhardt Place, Lot 11 to City 
Council with an amendment to clarify when TGA payments are due with a recommendation 
to approve.  The motion was seconded by Councilmember Hansen and passed by a voice 
vote of 4-0. 
 
[Please see the attached report prepared by Justin Wyse, Director of Planning, for 
additional information on P.Z. 11-2023 Burkhardt Place, Lot 11.] 
 

 
E. Public Street Acceptance – Schoettler Grove Subdivision (Ward 3) 



 

Planning & Public Works Committee Meeting Summary 
August 24, 2023 

4 

 
STAFF PRESENTATION 
Justin Wyse, Director of Planning explained that Public Works staff recently conducted an 
inspection of the Schoettler Grove subdivision.   As part of the inspection, Staff has determined 
that the following street meets the City of Chesterfield’s design and construction standards for 
acceptance as public streets:  
 

• Schoettler Grove Court: Approximately 1,965 feet; from Schoettler Road to the cul-de-sac 
Book 364, Pages 109-110 

 
DISCUSSION 

 
Councilmember Hurt noted there have been ongoing complaints regarding the home under 
construction on Lot 17. Specifically, there is a port-a-potty on the lot and his preference would be 
for the construction to install plumbing and use the home.   Councilmember Mastorakos stated 
that she believes temporary facilities are more appropriate for this type of project. 
 
Councilmember Hurt made a motion to postpone Public Street Acceptance – Schoettler 
Grove Subdivision until the next meeting.  The motion was seconded by Councilmember 
Monachella and passed by a voice vote of 4-0. 
 

 
F. International Property Maintenance Code 

 
 
STAFF PRESENTATION 
Justin Wyse, Director of Planning explained that Staff presented to the Planning and Public Works 
Committee in May regarding two conflicting sections of City Code regarding property maintenance 
requirements.   After discussion, the Committee directed Staff to prepare an ordinance that would 
repeal the 2015 International Property Maintenance Code.   
 
This would remove the conflicting ordinance and result in property maintenance being regulated 
under Section 500.140 Minimum Exterior Standards. As previously discussed, this limits the City’s 
authority to regulate property to exterior elements only. 
 

DISCUSSION 
 
The Committee discussed concerns with complaints that would be forwarded to the St. Louis 
County Department of Public Health. Councilmember Monachella indicated that she was told by 
the County that approval from the City would be required before action taken by the County. The 
Committee asked staff to follow up on these requirements so they are fully aware of the County’s 
requirements moving forward. 
 
Councilmember Hurt made a motion to forward the repeal of the International Property 
Maintenance Code to City Council with a recommendation to approve an ordinance 
repealing the International Property Maintenance Code.  The motion was seconded by 
Councilmember Mastorakos and passed by a voice vote of 4-0. 

 
[Please see the attached report prepared by Justin Wyse, Director of Planning, for 
additional information on the International Property Maintenance Code.] 
 



 

Planning & Public Works Committee Meeting Summary 
August 24, 2023 

5 

 
IV. OTHER 
 
 
V. ADJOURNMENT 

 
The meeting adjourned at 7:05 p.m. 
 



1 | P a g e  
 

Memorandum  

 Department of Planning  
 

To:  Michael O. Geisel, City Administrator 

From:  Justin Wyse, Director of Planning 

Date: September 5th, 2023 

RE: PZ -06-2023 Chesterfield Village Mall (TSG Downtown Chesterfield 

Redevelopment, LLC)   

Proposal Summary 

Stock & Associates Consulting Engineers, Inc., on behalf of TSG Downtown 

Chesterfield Redevelopment, LLC., are requesting a change in zoning to permit 

construction of a mixed-use development on 96.017 acres that includes portions of 

Chesterfield Mall and surrounding area.  The area borders are south of S. Outer 40 

Road, west of Clarkson/MO 340, and north and east of Chesterfield Parkway.  It does 

not include the Dillards/Swift Parcels.   

 

The applicant seeks to change the zoning from “C-8” Planned Commercial District to 

“PC&R” Planned Commercial and Residential District. The request would allow for 

residential and commercial uses to create “Downtown Chesterfield”.  This request was 

discussed in detail at the Planning Commission Public Hearing on May 22, 2023.  and 



2 | P a g e  
 

at the Planning Commission on June 26, 2023 where a recommendation for approval 

of the above-referenced matter was approved by a vote of 8-0. 

On July 20 and August 10, 2023, the Planning and Public Works Committee met and 

discussed. The Committee forwarded several amendments by a vote of 4-0 and one 

amendment by a vote of 3-1. On August 21, 2023 the City Council incorporated the 

amendments approved unanimously by PPW; however, the amendment passed by a 

vote of 3-1 for additional regulations to establish a maximum residential footprint 

within the development failed and is not included in the proposed Attachment ‘A’ for 

the site. 

 
           
                



BILL NO.________      ORDINANCE NO.____________ 

 

AN ORDINANCE AMENDING THE ZONING ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF 

CHESTERFIELD BY CHANGING  A “C-8” PLANNED COMMERCIAL DISTRICT 

TO A “PC&R” PLANNED COMMERCIAL AND RESIDENTIAL DISTRICT FOR 

A 96.017 ACRES OF LAND LOCATED ON THE SOUTH SIDE OF INTERSTATE 

I-64/SOUTH OUTER 40 ROAD, EAST AND NORTH OF CHESTERFIELD 

PARKWAY AND WEST OF CLARKSON/MO STATE HIGHWAY 340. (P.Z. 6-

2023 CHESTERFIELD VILLAGE MALL) 

 

WHEREAS, the petitioner, Stock & Associate Consulting Engineers, Inc. 

is requesting to change the zoning from a “C-8” Planned Commercial District to 

a “PC & R” Planned Commercial and Residential District for a 96.017 acre tract 

of land located south of U.S. Interstate Highway 40/I-64 and South Outer 40 

Road and east and north of Chesterfield Parkway West, and west of Clarkson 

Road/MO State Highway 340; and 

WHEREAS, the Planning Commission held a public hearing on May 22, 

2023 to consider the matters; and 

WHEREAS, the Planning Commission having considered said request, 

recommended approval of the rezoning request. 

WHEREAS, the Planning and Public Works Committee, having considered 

said request, recommended approval of the change in zoning with amendments; 

and, 

WHEREAS, the City Council, having considered said request, voted to 

approve the change of zoning request.  

 

NOW THEREFORE BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY 

OF CHESTERFIELD, ST. LOUIS COUNTY, MISSOURI, AS FOLLOWS: 

 Section 1.  The City of Chesterfield Zoning Ordinance and the Official 

Zoning District Maps, which are part thereof, are hereby amended by 

establishing a “PC & R” Planned Commercial and Residential District for 96.017 

acre tract of land located south of U.S. Interstate I-64/South Outer 40 Road, 

east and north of Chesterfield Parkway West, and west of Clarkson Road/MO 

State Highway 340 and described as follows: 

 

Justin Wyse
Typewriter
3463



Property Description 

Area 1. 

Beginning at the southeastern corner of Lot C-108 of Chesterfield Village A 

Phase One Plat One, a subdivision according to the plat thereof as recorded in 

Plat Book 158, Page 96 of the St. Louis County records, said point also being 

located on the northern right- of-way line of West Chesterfield Parkway, 

variable width; thence along the eastern line of said lot C-108, North 02 degrees 

24 minutes 55 seconds East, 153.50 feet to the northeastern corner thereof, 

thence along the northeastern lines of said Lot C108 and Lot 1 of the 

Chesterfield Village Area "A" Phase One Plat One Lots C109 and C208 Lot 

Consolidation Plat, a subdivision according to the plat thereof as recorded in 

Plat Book 367, Page 521 of above said records, the following courses and 

distances: North 52 degrees 55 minutes 05 seconds West, 837.00 feet; North 

18 degrees 15 minutes 05 seconds West, 305.01 feet and North 64 degrees 14 

minutes 40 seconds West, 41.67 feet to the beginning of a non-tangent curve 

to the left having a radius of 432.37 feet; thence along said curve with an arc 

length of 106.89 feet and a chord which bears South 60 degrees 42 minutes 

07 seconds West, 106.62 feet to the beginning of a non-tangent curve to the 

left having a radius of 338.26 feet an arc length of 254.23 feet and a chord 

which bears South 73 degrees 46 minutes 00 seconds West, 248.28 feet and 

North 84 degrees 40 minutes 43 seconds West, 14.47 feet to the eastern right-

of-way line of West Chesterfield Parkway, 73 feet wide, said point also being 

located on a curve to the right having a radius of 763.50 feet; thence along said 

curve with an arc length of 75.03 feet and a chord which bears North 05 

degrees 18 minutes 40 seconds East, 75.00 feet to the southwest corner of Lot 

C110 of Chesterfield Village Area A Phase 1 Plat 2 according to the plat thereof 

as recorded in Plat Book 166, Page 84 of above said records, thence along 

southern and eastern lines of said Chesterfield Village Area A Phase 1 Plat 2 

the following courses and distances: South 84 degrees 40 minutes 43 seconds 

East, 14.48 feet to a non-tangent curve to the left having a radius of 262.50 

feet, an arc length of 191.02 feet and a chord which bears North 74 degrees 28 

minutes 28 seconds East, 186.83 feet; North 53 degrees 37 minutes 39 

seconds East, 8.62 feet to the beginning of a non-tangent curve to the right 

having a radius of 507.82 feet, an arc length of 160.61 feet and a chord which 

bears North 62 degrees 41 minutes 17 seconds East, 159.94 feet; North 27 

degrees 29 minutes 54 seconds East, 207.73 feet; North 14 degrees 25 minutes 

19 seconds East, 758.46 feet and North 08 degrees 46 minutes 20 seconds 

East, 85.00 feet to the northmost corner of New Section B of the Resubdivision 

Plat of Lot C101F of Parcel C101F of Chesterfield Village Area A Phase 1 Plat 

One, Plat Book 334, Pages 65 and 65A; thence along the northern and eastern 

lines of said New Section B the following courses and distances: South 75 



degrees 34 minutes 41 seconds East, 51.88 feet; South 12 degrees 26 minutes 

49 seconds East, 123.89 feet; North 77 degrees 33 minutes 11 seconds East, 

250.00 feet; South 12 degrees 26 minutes 49 seconds East, 240.00 feet; North 

77 degrees 33 minutes 11 seconds East, 451.32 feet; South 12 degrees 26 

minutes 49 seconds East, 74.00 feet and North 77 degrees 33 minutes 11 

seconds East, 497.94 feet and to a point on a non- tangent curve to the left 

having a radius of 515.00 feet, said point also being located on the west line of 

Lot C 106 of above said Chesterfield Village A Phase One Plat One; thence along 

said curve with an arc length of 155.67 feet and a chord which bears North 32 

degrees 57 minutes 40 seconds West, 155.08 feet to the western most corner 

of said Lot C 106; thence along the northwestern lines of said Lot C 106 the 

following: North 50 degrees 55 minutes 27 seconds East, 245.99 feet and North 

32 degrees 52 minutes 18 seconds East, 32.53 feet to its intersection with the 

southern right-of way line of Chesterfield Airport Road, variable width; thence 

along said right-of-way line South 57 degrees 07 minutes 42 seconds East, 

341.40feet to the northwest corner of that part of Chesterfield Center vacated 

by City of Chesterfield Ordinance Number 511, and recorded in Book 8872, 

Page 2431 of above said records; thence along the north, east and south lines 

of said vacation the following courses and distances: continuing Southeasterly 

along said line, South 57 degrees 07 minutes 42 seconds East, 21.18 feet; 

South 42 degrees 52 minutes 34 seconds East, 8.16 feet to the beginning of a 

non- tangent curve to the right having a radius of 61.00 feet, an arc length of 

31.10 feet and a chord which bears South 13 degrees 33 minutes 13 seconds 

West, 30.76 feet; South 28 degrees 09 minutes 48 seconds West, 126.11 feet 

to the beginning of a curve to the right having a radius of 495.58 feet, an arc 

length of 17.10 feet and a chord which bears South 29 degrees 9 minutes 7 

seconds West 17.10 feet; South 30 degrees 07 minutes 59 seconds West, 34.42 

feet and North 69 degrees 47 minutes 38 seconds West, 5.45 feet to the eastern 

most corner of above said Lot C 106; thence along the southern line of said Lot 

C 106, South 77 degrees 7 minutes 6 seconds West, 290.42 feet; to the east 

line of New Section A of Lot C101F of above said Resubdivision Plat of Lot 

C101F of Parcel C101F of Chesterfield Village Area A Phase 1 Plat One; thence 

along said east lines of said New Section A the following courses and distances: 

South 12 degrees 26 minutes 49 seconds East, 451.59 feet; South 56 degrees 

32 minutes 18 seconds East, 43.09 feet top the beginning of a non- tangent 

curve to the right having a radius of 473.00 feet, and along said curve with an 

arc length of 151.21 feet and a chord which bears South 89 degrees 38 minutes 

16 seconds East, 150.56 feet; thence crossing Chesterfield Center Drive; South 

12 degrees 32 minutes 53 seconds West, 100.14 feet to the north line of Lot C 

102 of above said Chesterfield Village A Phase One Plat One, said point also 

being located on a non-tangent curve to the right having a radius of 373.00 

feet; thence along said north line and last said curve with an arc length of 



137.75 feet and a chord which bears South 70 degrees 43 minutes 56 seconds 

East, 136.97 feet; thence South 11 degrees 41 minutes 44 seconds East, 41.56 

feet to the to the western right-of-way line of Clarkson Road, variable width 

thence along said right-of-way line the following courses and distances: South 

34 degrees 27 minutes 25 seconds West, 386.00 feet; South 23 degrees 33 

minutes 07 seconds West, 181.60 feet; South 31 degrees 8 minutes 12 seconds 

West, 828.33 feet and South 85 degrees 41 minutes 13 seconds West, 26.89 

feet to the northern right-of-way line of above said West Chesterfield Parkway, 

said point also being located on a curve to the left having a radius of 1,060.17 

feet; thence along said right-of-way line the following courses and distances: 

along said curve with an arc length of 334.12 feet and a chord which bears 

North 73 degrees 49 minutes 52 seconds West, 332.74 feet; North 82 degrees 

51 minutes 36 seconds West, 126.21 feet; North 82 degrees 52 minutes 12 

seconds West, 37.73 feet and South 86 degrees 45 minutes 4 seconds West, 

35.95 feet to the POINT OF BEGINNING.  

Containing 2,902,238 square feet or 66.626 acres, more or less.  

    

 

Area 2. 

A tract of land being Lot C101D of the Chesterfield Village A Phase One Plat 

One, a subdivision according to the plat thereof as recorded in Plat Book 158, 

Page 96 of the St. Louis County records, located in U.S. Surveys 415 and 2002, 

Township 45 North, Range 4 East of the Fifth Principal Meridian, City of 

Chesterfield, St. Louis County, Missouri being more particularly described as 

follows:  

 Beginning at the northernmost corner of above said Lot C101D, said point also 

being located on the southern right-of-way line of Chesterfield Airport Road, 

variable width, said point also being located on a curve to the left having a radius 

of 2,914.93 feet; thence along said right-of-way line the following courses and 

distances: southeasterly along said curve with an arc length of 477.12 feet and 

a chord which bears South 40 degrees 27 minutes 57 seconds East, 476.59 feet; 

South 44 degrees 50 minutes 42 seconds West, 10.00 feet; to the beginning of a 

curve to the left having a radius of 2,924.93 feet an arc length of 231.79 feet and 

a chord which bears South 47 degrees 25 minutes 30 seconds East, 231.70 feet 

to the southeast corner of above said Lot C101D; thence along the southeastern 

line of said Lot C101D, South 40 degrees 18 minutes 17 seconds West, 194.14 

feet to the west line of said Lot C101D; thence along said west line the following 

courses and distances: North 42 degrees 53 minutes 57 seconds West, a distance 

of 124.85 feet; South 47 degrees 06 minutes 03 seconds West, 5.00 feet; to the 

beginning of a non-tangent curve to the left having a radius of 400.00 feet; along 



said curve with an arc length of 307.06 feet and a chord which bears North 64 

degrees 53 minutes 28 seconds West, 299.58 feet to the southwest corner of said 

Lot C101D; thence along the western lines of said Lot C101D the following: North 

12 degrees 26 minutes 49 seconds West, 397.78 feet and North 54 degrees 13 

minutes 23 seconds East, 121.24 feet to the POINT OF BEGINNING.  

  

Containing 152,812 square feet or 3.508 acres, more or less.  

 

Area 3.    

 

Tracts of land being Lots C110, C111, C112, and C113 of Chesterfield Village 

Area A Phase One Plat Two as recorded in Plat Book 166, Page 84; and Part of 

US. Survey 415 as described in Book 10308, Page 1461 both of the St. Louis 

County Records. located in U.S. Surveys 415 and 2022, Township 45 North, 

Range 4 East of the Fifth Principal Meridian, City of Chesterfield, St. Louis 

County, Missouri being mor particularly described as follows:   

  

Beginning at the southwestern corner of above said Lot C 110, said point also 

being located on the eastern right of-way line of West Chesterfield Parkway, 73 

feet wide, Said point also being located on a non-tangent curve to the right having 

a radius of 763.50 feet, thence along said right-of-way line the following courses 

and distances: along said curve with an arc length of 45. 90 feet and a chord 

which bears North 10 degrees 04 minutes 33 seconds East, 45.90 feet; North 11 

degrees 34 minutes 17 seconds East, 735.22 feet to the beginning of a curve to 

the left having a radius of 3,036.50 feet; along said curve with an arc length of 

79.87 feet and a chord which bears North 1 O degrees 49 minutes 04 seconds 

East 79.87 feet; North 10 degrees 03 minutes 51 seconds East, 1,599.81 feet to 

the beginning of a non-tangent curve to the right having a radius of 1, 113.50 

feet and a chord which bears North 17 degrees 03 minutes 36 seconds East, 

269.98 feet and North 71 degrees 18 minutes 34 seconds East, 135.85 feet to its 

intersection with the southern right-of-way line of Chesterfield Airport Road, 

variable width; thence along said right-of-way line the following: South 69 

degrees 05 minutes 13 seconds East, 32.21 feet and South 59 degrees 27 

minutes 09 seconds East, 11.64 feet to the northwest corner of a tract of land as 

conveyed to First Baptist Church, by instrument recorded in Book 5232, Page 

199 of above said records, thence along the west, south and eastern lines of said 

Church tract the following courses and distances: South 34 degrees 10 minutes 

41 seconds West, 180.51 feet; South 55 degrees 53 minutes 58 seconds East, 

137.63 feet; North 34 degrees 59 minutes 13 seconds East, 43.04 feet; North 15 

degrees 05 minutes 30 seconds East, 47.83 feet and North 27 degrees 03 

minutes 38 seconds East, 17.67 feet and North 35 degrees 05 minutes 17 



seconds East, 82.29 feet to the southern right-of-way line of above said 

Chesterfield Airport Road; thence along said right-of-way line the following: 

South 59 degrees 27 minutes 09 seconds East, 84.03 feet and South 33 degrees 

54 minutes 11 seconds East, 408.23 feet to the easternmost corner of above said 

Lot C111; thence along the eastern and southern lines of said Chesterfield Village 

Area A Phase One Plat Two the following courses and distances: South 02 

degrees 31 minutes 25 seconds West, 74.82 feet; South 28 degrees 18 minutes 

26 seconds West, 85.00 feet; South 60 degrees 52 minutes 24 seconds West, 

334.47 feet; South 08 degrees 46 minutes 20 seconds West, 912.12 feet; South 

14 degrees 25 minutes 19 seconds West, a distance of 758.46 feet; South 27 

degrees 29 minutes 54 seconds West, 207.73 feet to the beginning of a non-

tangent curve to the left having a radius of 507.82 feet; along said curve with an 

arc length of 160.61 feet and a chord which bears South 62 degrees 41 minutes 

17 seconds West, 159.94 feet; South 53 degrees 37 minutes 39 seconds West, a 

distance of 8.62 feet to the beginning of a non-tangent curve to the right having 

a radius of 262.50 feet; along said curve with an arc length of 191.02 feet and a 

chord which bears South 7 41 degrees 28 minutes 28 seconds West, 186.83 feet 

and North 84 degrees 40 minutes 43 seconds West, 14.47 feet to the POINT OF 

BEGINNING.   

  

Containing 1,127,465 square feet or 25.883 acres, more or less.  

 

 Section 2.  The preliminary approval, pursuant to the City of Chesterfield 

Unified Development Code is granted, subject to all of the ordinances, rules and 

regulations and specific conditions as recommended by the Planning 

Commission in its recommendations to the City Council, which are set out in the 

Attachment A, Attachment B and Attachment C, which are attached hereto and 

made a part of. 

 Section 3.   The City Council, pursuant to the petition filed by the TSG 

Downtown Chesterfield Redevelopment, LLC in P.Z. 06-2023 requesting the 

amendment embodied in this ordinance, and pursuant to the recommendations 

of the City of Chesterfield Planning Commission that said petition be granted 

and after a public hearing, held by the Planning Commission on the 22nd day of 

May, 2023, does hereby adopt this ordinance pursuant to the power granted to 

the City of Chesterfield under Chapter 89 of the Revised Statutes of the State of 

Missouri authorizing the City Council to exercise legislative power pertaining to 

planning and zoning. 

 Section 4. This ordinance and the requirements thereof are exempt from 

the warning and summons for violations as set out in Section 8 of the Unified 

Development Code of the City of Chesterfield. 



 Section 5.  This ordinance shall be in full force and effect from and after 

its passage and approval. 

 Pass and approved this ____day of _________________, 2023 

 

    

      ___________________________________ 
      MAYOR 

 
ATTEST: 

 
 
 

 
 
_________________________________ 

CITY CLERK 
 

 
 
      

FIRST READING HELD: 

______/_______/2023 08 21



PZ 06-2023 

Chesterfield Village Mall (TSG Downtown Chesterfield Redevelopment, LLC) 

 

1 

 

ATTACHMENT A 
 
 
All provisions of the City of Chesterfield City Code shall apply to this development 
except as specifically modified herein or to be addressed in the Site Development 
Concept Plan and/or the Site Development Section Plans.   
 
This ordinance provides a framework for various development requirements established 
in this ordinance, criteria to be established on the Site Development Concept Plan, and 
criteria to be established on Site Development Section Plans. This framework is to deliver 
a “Downtown Concept”: a diverse residential and commercial mixed-use environment in 
which residential and commercial uses that are integrated  
 
I. SPECIFIC CRITERIA FOR ALL DEVELOPMENT 

Residential and commercial uses may be combined in the same building, combined 
on the same lot in separate buildings or on separate lots within the development. 

A. PERMITTED USES 

1. The uses allowed in this PC&R District (“District”) shall be: 

a. Administrative offices for educational or religious institutions  

b. Church and other places of worship  

c. Community center  

d. Library  

e. Parks  

f. Dwelling, multi-family  

g. Single Family Attached  

h. Single Family Detached 

i. Home Occupation  

j. Art Gallery  

k. Art Studio  

l. Auditorium  

m. Banquet Facility  



PZ 06-2023 

Chesterfield Village Mall (TSG Downtown Chesterfield Redevelopment, LLC) 

 

2 

 

n. Club  

o. Farmer’s market  

p. Gymnasium  

q. Museum  

r. Reading Room  

s. Recreation Facility  

t. Office-dental  

u. Office-general  

v. Office-medical  

w. Automobile Dealership (Storefront Only)  

x. Bakery  

y. Bar  

z. Bowling Center  

aa. Brewery  

bb. Brewpub  

cc. Coffee shop  

dd. Grocery-community  

ee. Grocery-neighborhood  

ff. Grocery-supercenter  

gg. Newspaper stands.  

hh. Restaurant-sit down  

ii. Restaurant-fast food – No Drive Thru  

jj. Restaurant-takeout  

kk. Restaurant-takeout - Neighborhood  

ll. Retail sales establishment – community  



PZ 06-2023 

Chesterfield Village Mall (TSG Downtown Chesterfield Redevelopment, LLC) 

 

3 

 

mm. Retail sales establishment – regional  

nn. Animal grooming service  

oo. Barber or beauty shop  

pp. Broadcasting studio  

qq. Commercial service facility  

rr. Day care center  

ss. Drug store and pharmacy  

tt. Dry cleaning establishment  

uu. Financial institution, no drive-thru  

vv. Hospital  

ww. Hotel and motel  

xx. Hotel and motel-extended stay  

yy. Kennel, boarding  

zz. Kennel, private  

aaa. Laboratory-professional, scientific  

bbb. Laboratory  

ccc. Laundromat  

ddd. Nursing home  

eee. Parking area (stand-alone), including garages for automobiles. Not 
including sales or storage of damaged vehicles for more than 72 hours.  

fff. Professional and technical service facility 

ggg. Research laboratory and facility  

hhh. Theatre, indoor  

iii. Theatre, outdoor  

jjj. Veterinary clinic  

kkk. College/university  



PZ 06-2023 

Chesterfield Village Mall (TSG Downtown Chesterfield Redevelopment, LLC) 

 

4 

 

lll. Kindergarten or nursery school  

mmm. Specialized private school.  

2. The District shall prioritize the following: 

a. Ground floor development shall be a mix of pedestrian-oriented 
commercial/retail in the following locations: on the portion of the parcels 
that face the primary streets that flank Park Area R2 (parcels A1, A2, A3, 
A4, A6 and R1) and on the portion of the parcels that face the roundabout 
and primary street coming off Clarkson Road (parcels A5 and A6) and the 
corner of the parcel at the primary street and pedestrian walkway (parcel 
B9) as shown on the Preliminary Development Plan. 
 

 
 
 

b. Developer shall prioritize build-to-line, excluding sidewalks, in lieu of 
prescribed setbacks on the portion of the primary streets that flank Park 
Area R2 shown on the Preliminary Development Site Plan.   

 
  



PZ 06-2023 

Chesterfield Village Mall (TSG Downtown Chesterfield Redevelopment, LLC) 

 

5 

 

Hours of Operation. 
a. Hours of operation for this “PC&R” District shall not be restricted.   

3. Telecommunication siting permits may be issued for wireless 
telecommunications facilities per the requirements of the City Code. 

B. DENSITY, HEIGHT, SET BACKS AND OPEN SPACE REQUIREMENTS 

1. Density Limitations 

a. The cumulative gross floor area for Commercial Uses in this District shall 
be limited to not more than a Floor Area Ratio (F.A.R.) = .75 Floor Area 
Ratio (F.A.R.) shall be Calculated by Total Gross Floor Area of all buildings 
divided by the Gross Area of land within the “PC&R” District. F.A.R. shall 
not be calculated on a lot-by-lot basis.  

b. The maximum number of residential units allowable within this District shall 
not be more than 2363 units cumulatively on Parcels A1-A10, B1, B2, 
B8,B9, R1,R3, R4 and H-1 on the Preliminary Development Plan and 175 
units on Parcels 3A and 3B on the Preliminary Development Plan. 

 

c. The maximum number of rooms for hotels and lodging shall be 300 rooms; 
the maximum number of square feet for hotels and lodging shall be 350,000 
square feet.  



PZ 06-2023 

Chesterfield Village Mall (TSG Downtown Chesterfield Redevelopment, LLC) 

 

6 

 

d. Developer shall provide a distribution of density by area on the Site 
Development Concept Plan. The Site Development Concept Plan shall be 
amended when allocation of density changes.  

2. Height Requirements 

Total building height for any permitted use shall not exceed 200 feet or 15 stories 
whichever is more as measured from street elevation. 

3. Setbacks 
 
No setbacks are prescribed herein and build-to-line is permitted. All other 
setbacks and/or build to lines shall be as approved on the Site Development 
Concept Plan or Site Development Section Plans. 

4. Open Space Requirements 

a. Open space in Park Area R2 and Area 3A south of Chesterfield Parkway 
and Park Circle shall be provided on the Site Development Concept Plan 
and substantially conform to the Preliminary Development Site Plan. Where 
known, additional open spaces including pocket parks, plazas, natural 
areas and seating areas shall be depicted on the Site Development Concept 
Plan and/or Site Development Sections Plans. Proposed location(s) of 
public art may be depicted on the Site Development Concept Plan and/or 
Site Development Section Plans. 

C. BUILDING AND STRUCTURE FUNCTION 

1. Ground floor of all buildings shall include pedestrian access to retail, restaurant, 
office, multi-family residential, or hotel use when those uses are present.   

2. Private parking access shall not be permitted along portions of the primary 
streets that flank Park Area R2.  Private parking garage access is permitted 
from other primary streets locations and service alleys.   

3. Trash pickup, building receiving and loading, utility and service functions shall 
be located at the rear of buildings along the outer loop road and off service 
alleys.   

D. PARKING AND LOADING REQUIREMENTS 

1. Public parking garages and on-street parking satisfies parking requirements for 
all ground floor commercial (retail, restaurant, art galleries, entertainment, art 
or other pedestrian-oriented uses), as defined on the Site Development 
Concept Plan or Site Development Section Plans.  All other uses shall provide 
parking in accordance with this ordinance. 

2. Public parking in garages and on-street parking for the existing department 
store in Area R1 meets parking requirements for that use.  



PZ 06-2023 

Chesterfield Village Mall (TSG Downtown Chesterfield Redevelopment, LLC) 

 

7 

 

3. Parking shall be calculated for each use category as follows:  

Minimum Parking Required  

Retail/Restaurant: 4.0 Parking Ratio / 1,000 G.F.A.  
Grocery: 5.0 Parking Ratio / 1,000 G.F.A.  
Office: 3.0 Parking Ratio / 1,000 G.F.A.  
Residential: 1.5 Parking spaces per unit  
Hotel: 0.8 Parking spaces per room 

4. Off-street surface parking shall be allowed as shown on the Site Development 
Concept Plan but shall be minimized and designed to mitigate the visual impact 
on the development and be consistent with the purpose and intent of this PC&R 
District. 

5. Joint parking to meet minimum parking standards may be permitted through 
approval of the Site Development Section Plan and shall require an appropriate 
legal instrument binding the owners of the properties and their successors and 
assigns to the agreement. 

6. Parking lots shall not be used as streets. 

7. No construction related parking shall be permitted within rights of way or on 
any existing roadways.  All construction related parking shall be confined to the 
District. Construction parking shall be depicted on all Improvement Plans for 
lots within the district. 

E. LANDSCAPING AND TREE REQUIREMENTS 

1. The developer shall adhere to the Tree Preservation and Landscape 
requirements of the Unified Development Code Chapter 405, Section 
405.040.020 et seq. and submit a Concept Landscape Plan with the Site 
Development Concept Plan.  Landscaping shall enhance the pedestrian 
experience, compliment architectural features, provide shade and screen utility 
areas and surface parking. The developer shall provide for street furnishings 
such as benches, planters, bike racks, drinking fountains, pedestrian trash 
receptacles, public art and water features in the Site Development Concept 
Plan. Locations for street furnishings shall be detailed in the Site Development 
Concept Plan and Site Development Section Plans. 

F. SIGN REQUIREMENTS 

1. The developer shall adhere the City’s Sign Ordinance Chapter 405 Section 
405.04.050 et seq. and/or submit a Comprehensive Sign Package by Area in 
the Site Development Concept Plan and/or Site Development Section Plans.  
All individual signs including street and wayfaring signage in the public and 
private spaces shall be coordinated and consistent with the signage concept 
contained therein.  
 



PZ 06-2023 

Chesterfield Village Mall (TSG Downtown Chesterfield Redevelopment, LLC) 

 

8 

 

G. LIGHTING REQUIREMENTS 

1. The developer shall adopt the City’s Lighting Ordinance Chapter 405, Section 
405.04.030 et seq and/or submit an Architectural Specialty Lighting Package.   
All lighting, in the public and private spaces, shall be coordinated and 
consistent with the lighting concept contained therein.  
 

H. ARCHITECTURAL REQUIREMENTS 

1. The developer shall submit design standards for public spaces and street 
character in the Site Development Concept Plan and/or Site Development 
Section Plans.  Site Development Concept and/or Section Plans shall contain 
design standards that create visually appealing development pattern 
consistent with the intent of the Downtown Concept. Section plans shall 
contain architectural elevations, colored renderings and building materials to 
be reviewed by the Architectural Review Board and subject to approval by the 
Planning Commission. 
 

2. Building facades should be articulated by using color, arrangement or change 
in materials to emphasize the façade elements.  The planes of exterior walls 
may be varied in height, depth or directions.   

 

3. Trash enclosures: the location, material, and elevation of any trash enclosure 
will be approved on the Site Development Concept Plan or Site Development 
Section Plan.  All exterior trash areas, except pedestrian trash receptables, 
will be enclosed with a six (6) foot high sight-proof enclosure with materials 
that match the adjacent structures and complemented by adequate 
landscaping as approved on the Master Landscape Package.  
 

4. Mechanical equipment shall be adequately screened in accordance to the 
Architecture Review Design Standards. 
 

I. ACCESS/ACCESS MANAGEMENT 

1. Access to the development from external roadways shall be shown on the Site 
Development Concept Plan and as directed by the City of Chesterfield, the 
Missouri Department of Transportation and the St. Louis County Department 
of Transportation, as applicable. 

2. Any improvements within Missouri Department of Transportation’s right-of-way 
will require a permit.  The entrance geometries and drainage design shall be in 
accordance with Missouri Department of Transportation standards. 

3. No gated streets will be permitted. 



PZ 06-2023 

Chesterfield Village Mall (TSG Downtown Chesterfield Redevelopment, LLC) 

 

9 

 

4. Cross access shall be provided to adjoining properties as directed by the City 
of Chesterfield. 

J. PUBLIC/PRIVATE ROAD IMPROVEMENTS, INCLUDING PEDESTRIAN 
CIRCULATION 

 
1. Sidewalks shall substantially conform with the Preliminary Development Plan.  

ADA compliant sidewalks will be required along all roadways and connections 
to existing sidewalks of all roadways adjacent to the District shall be provided.  
The design and layout of the sidewalks and pedestrian ways shall be detailed 
in the Site Development Concept Plan and Site Development Section Plans.   

 
2. Sidewalks and pedestrian trails/bicycle path shall provide future connectivity 

to adjacent developments and/or roadway projects. Sidewalks may be located 
within a right-of-way controlled by another agency if permitted by that agency, 
or on private property within a sidewalk, maintenance and utility easement 
dedicated to the City of Chesterfield. 

 
3. Evaluate and provide pedestrian access and connectivity from the District to 

Central Park in the Site Development Concept Plan.  
 
4. On street parking shall substantially conform with the Preliminary 

Development Plan.   On-street parking stalls shall be designed and located 
such that vehicles do not back out into an intersection.  Corner clearance 
distance shall be not less than 30 feet between the edge of the parking stall 
and the intersection. The design and layout of the on street parking shall be 
finalized on the Site Development Concept Plan. 

 
5. Obtain approvals from the City of Chesterfield, St. Louis County Department 

of Transportation and the Missouri Department of Transportation as 
necessary for locations of proposed curb cuts and access points, areas of 
new dedication, and roadway improvements.   

 
6. Additional right-of-way and road improvements shall be provided, as required 

by the Missouri Department of Transportation, St. Louis County Department 
of Transportation, and the City of Chesterfield. 

 
7. Pedestrian crossing of roadways is required to be at a 90-degree angle in 

order to minimize the crossing distance for pedestrians. 
 
8. Internal streets and sidewalks shall be private and remain private forever 

unless an alternate agreement is reached and executed between the City of 
Chesterfield and TSG Downtown Chesterfield Redevelopment LLC whereby 
the City accepts the internal streets and/or sidewalks as public.  The City is 
under no obligation to enter into such an agreement.  



PZ 06-2023 

Chesterfield Village Mall (TSG Downtown Chesterfield Redevelopment, LLC) 

 

10 

 

K. TRAFFIC STUDY    

1. Provide a traffic study as directed by the City of Chesterfield and/or Missouri 
Department of Transportation or St. Louis County.  The scope of the study shall 
include internal and external circulation and may be limited to site specific 
impacts, such as the need for additional lanes, entrance configuration, 
geometrics, sight distance, traffic signal modifications or other improvements 
required, as long as the density of the proposed development falls within the 
parameters of the City’s traffic model.  Should the density be other than the 
density assumed in the model, an updated model shall be required. 

2. Provide a sight distance evaluation report, as required by the City of 
Chesterfield, for the proposed entrances, as directed.  If adequate sight 
distance cannot be provided at the access location, acquisition of right-of-way, 
reconstruction of pavement, including correction to the vertical alignment, 
and/or other off-site improvements shall be required, as directed by the City of 
Chesterfield, St. Louis County Department of Transportation and/or the 
Missouri Department of Transportation as applicable. 

L. STORM WATER  

1. The site shall provide for the positive drainage of storm water and it shall be 
discharged at an adequate natural discharge point or connected to an adequate 
piped system.  Formal review, approval and permits by Metropolitan St. Louis 
Sewer District is required. 

2. Stormwater management shall comply with the Chesterfield Village 
Southwest Quadrant Storm Water Management Plan exhibit (MSD P-
002807800) as directed by the City of Chesterfield and the Metropolitan St. 
Louis Sewer District. 

M. SANITARY SEWER 

1. Provide public sewer service for the site including sanitary force mains, gravity 
lines and/or regional pump stations, in accordance with MSD and the City of 
Chesterfield regulations. 

2. Sanitary sewers shall be as approved by the City of Chesterfield and the 
Metropolitan St. Louis District. 

3. Extension of public sanitary sewer lines will be necessary to serve this site and 
proper easements may be required.  Private sanitary sewer laterals may not 
cross property lines.  The receiving sanitary sewer system(s) shall be evaluated 
to ensure adequate capacity and to ensure the project has no negative impacts 
to the existing systems.  

4. The project is in the Caulks Creek Service Area and subject to the Caulks Creek 
Surcharge. Sanitary flow rates leaving the sites shall be limited to the maximum 



PZ 06-2023 

Chesterfield Village Mall (TSG Downtown Chesterfield Redevelopment, LLC) 

 

11 

 

extent practical.  The maximum allowable sanitary flow release rate is 1.98 
CFS.  The 1.98 CFS rate includes all phases of the development as well as any 
existing uses.   

5. MSD will allow the entire site to connect to the public sanitary system as 
proposed after the completion of the Caulks B Pump Station Replacement 
project.  MSD will allow a portion of the development to connect to the sanitary 
system prior to completion of the replacement pump station for Caulks B limited 
by based on the actual flows at the existing pump stations, its capacity, 
anticipated flows from the development.   

6. Formal plan submittal and approval will be required by the MSD prior to the 
issuance of permits.   

N. POWER OF REVIEW 

The City Council shall have automatic power of review of all Site Development 
Plans, Site Development Concept Plans, and Site Development Section Plans for 
the subject development.  The City Council will then take appropriate action relative 
to the proposal.  

O. CITY COUNCIL REVIEW OF SITE DEVELOPMENT CONCEPT PLANS, SITE 
DEVELOPMENT PLANS AND SITE DEVELOPMENT SECTION PLANS 

The City Council reserves full authority to deny any request for approval of a Site 
Development Concept Plan, Site Development Plan or Site Development Section 
Plan (each a “Development Plan”), or to impose conditions on their approval.  
The City Council shall not approved a Development Plan unless it finds that the 
application and evidence presented clearly indicate that the proposed 
Development Plan: 
 
1. Will contribute to and promote a diverse residential and commercial mixed-

use environment in which residential and commercial uses are integrated 
pursuant to a downtown concept; 

2. Will contribute to and promote a creative and coordinated design and 
architectural styles; 

3. Will contribute to and promote efficient and effective pedestrian and vehicular 
circulation; 

4. Complies with the Unified Development Code (unless modified herein), the 
City’s Comprehensive Plan, as amended from time to time, and the provisions 
of this Ordinance; and 

5. Is consistent with the June 15, 2023 Narrative submitted by the Applicant, 
Attached hereto as Exhibit C.  

  



PZ 06-2023 

Chesterfield Village Mall (TSG Downtown Chesterfield Redevelopment, LLC) 

 

12 

 

P. GEOTECHNICAL REPORT 

Prior to Site Development Plan approval, provide a geotechnical report, prepared 
by a registered professional engineer licensed to practice in the State of Missouri, 
as directed by the Department of Public Services.  The report shall verify the 
suitability of grading and proposed improvements with soil and geologic conditions 
and address the existence of any potential sinkhole, ponds, dams, septic fields, 
etc., and recommendations for treatment.  A statement of compliance, signed and 
sealed by the geotechnical engineer preparing the report, shall be included on all 
Site Development Plans and Improvement Plans. 

Q. SUPPLEMENTATION, MODIFICATION, AND/OR ALTERATION 

Upon application from a petitioner, any performance standard provided in this 
Attachment “A” or required by any other District regulation or Ordinance of the 
City may be supplemented, modified, or altered in the Site Development Concept 
Plan or Site Development Section Plan provided such supplement, modification 
and/or alteration will further the purpose and intent of the PC&R District.  A public 
hearing is not required in the process and recommendation by the Planning 
Commission will be forwarded by the City Council for final approval.  

R. MISCELLANEOUS 

1. All utilities shall be installed underground. 

2. Prior to record plat approval, the developer shall cause, at its expense and prior 
to recording any plat, the reestablishment, restoration or appropriate witnessing 
of Corners of the United States Public Land Survey located within, or which 
define or lie upon, the out boundaries of the subject tract in accordance with 
the Missouri Minimum Standards relating to the preservation and maintenance 
of the United States Public Land Survey Corners, as necessary US Survey 
Corners located on or near the development site must be protected and shall 
be restored if disturbed due to construction.  

3. Prior to the release of subdivision construction deposits, the developer shall 
provide certification by a registered land surveyor that all monumentation 
depicted on the record plat has been installed and the United States Public 
Land Survey Corners have not been disturbed during construction activities or 
that have been reestablished and the appropriate documents filed with the 
Missouri Department of Natural Resources Land Survey Program, as 
necessary.  

4. Any retaining wall along public right of way shall be private and remain private 
forever and shall be located such that it is not necessary to support any public 
improvements.  

5. Road improvements and right-of-way dedication shall be completed prior to the 
issuance of an occupancy permit.  If development phasing is anticipated, the 



PZ 06-2023 

Chesterfield Village Mall (TSG Downtown Chesterfield Redevelopment, LLC) 

 

13 

 

developer shall complete road improvements, right-of-way dedication, and 
access requirements for each phase of development as directed by the City of 
Chesterfield. Delays due to utility relocation and adjustments will not constitute 
a cause to allow occupancy prior to completion of road improvements. 

6. Applicant/Owners of parcels submitting Site Development Section Plans shall 
be required to contribute a Traffic Generation Assessment (TGA)-Fund D to the 
City of Chesterfield.  Allowable credits for required improvements will be 
awarded as directed by the City of Chesterfield.  

7. The TGA deposit shall be made prior to the issuance of a Municipal Zoning 
Approval (MZA) by the City of Chesterfield.  

8. The developer is advised that utility companies will require compensation for 
relocation of their facilities with public road right of way.  Utility relocation cost 
shall not be considered an allowable credit against the petitioner’s traffic 
generation assessment contributions.  The developer should also be aware of 
the extensive delays in utility company relocation and adjustments.  Such 
delays will not constitute a cause to allow occupancy prior to completion of road 
improvements. 

9. Kiosks are allowed in the District provide they do not impede pedestrian and 
vehicular traffic and meet ADA accessibility requirements.  Kiosks can be an 
arrangement of mobile units, fixed units, or a mixture of both joined together to 
form a structure not to exceed 100 square feet.  Uses within kiosks will be 
approved uses in this Attachment.  A Special Activity Permit may be required 
as directed by the City of Chesterfield.  

II.  GENERAL CRITERIA 

A. SITE DEVELOPMENT CONCEPT PLAN SUBMITTAL 

The Site Development Concept Plan shall include all items previously referenced in 
this Attachment and: 

1. Any Site Development Concept Plan shall show all information required on a 
preliminary plat as required in the City of Chesterfield Code and as required 
herein. 

2. Provide comments/approvals from the appropriate Fire District, the St. Louis 
County Department of Highways and Traffic, Monarch Chesterfield Levee 
District, Spirit of St. Louis Airport and the Missouri Department of 
Transportation. 

3. Compliance with the current Metropolitan Sewer District Site Guidance as 
adopted by the City of Chesterfield.   



PZ 06-2023 

Chesterfield Village Mall (TSG Downtown Chesterfield Redevelopment, LLC) 

 

14 

 

4. Location map, north arrow, and plan scale. The scale shall be no greater than 
one (1) inch equals one hundred (100) feet. 

5.  Out boundary plat and legal description of property.  

6.  A note indicating all utilities will be installed underground. 

7.  Adhere to the Tree Preservation and Landscape requirements of the UDC and 
submit a Concept Landscape Plan.  

8.  Adhere to the Lighting requirements of the UDC and/or submit a Specialty 
Lighting package. 

9.  Adhere to the Signage requirements of the UDC and/or submit a 
comprehensive sign package.   

10.   Provide a design standards for all public spaces and street character. The 
Architectural Review Board shall review all Site Development Concept 
Plans of the design of public spaces and street character and make 
recommendations for approval to the Planning Commission.  

11.   Where known, depict the location of all buildings, size, including height and 
distance from adjacent property lines, and proposed use.  

12.  Specific structure, parking setbacks and build-to lines along all roadways and 
property lines. 

13.   Indicate location of all existing and proposed freestanding development 
monument signs. 

14.   Zoning district lines, subdivision name, lot number, dimensions, and area, and 
zoning of adjacent parcels where different than site. 

15.   Depict existing and proposed improvements within 150 feet of the site.   
Improvements include, but are not limited to, roadways, driveways and 
walkways adjacent to and across the street from the site, significant natural 
features, such as wooded areas and rock formations, and other karst features 
that are to remain or be removed. 

16. Depict all existing and proposed easements and rights-of-way within 150 feet 
of the site and all existing or proposed off-site easements and rights-of-way 
required for proposed improvements. 

17. Indicate the location of the proposed storm sewers, detention basins, sanitary 
sewers and connection(s) to the existing systems. 

18. Depict existing and proposed contours at intervals of not more than one (1) 
foot, and extending 150 feet beyond the limits of the site as directed. 



PZ 06-2023 

Chesterfield Village Mall (TSG Downtown Chesterfield Redevelopment, LLC) 

 

15 

 

19. Comply with all preliminary plat requirements of the City of Chesterfield 
Subdivision Regulations per the City of Chesterfield Code. 

20. Signed and sealed in conformance with the State of Missouri Department of 
Economic Development, Division of Professional Registration, Missouri 
Board for Architects, Professional Engineers and Land Surveyors 
requirements. 

B. SITE DEVELOPMENT SECTION PLAN SUBMITTAL REQUIREMENTS  

The Site Development Section Plans shall include all items previously referenced in 
this Attachment and: 

 

1. Location map, north arrow, and plan scale. The scale shall be no greater than 
one (1) inch equals one hundred (100) feet. 

2. Parking calculation, including calculation for all spaces, required and 
proposed, and the number, size and location for handicap designed.  

3. For commercial development, provide square footage proposed.  

4. For residential development provide the number of units proposed to be built.  

5. For hotel development provide the square footage and number of rooms 
proposed.   

6. A note indicating all utilities will be installed underground. 

7. Address all signage in accordance with the City of Chesterfield Code and 
provided in the Site Development Concept Plan.  

8. Address landscaping in accordance with the Tree Preservation and 
Landscape requirements in the UDC and provided in the Site Development 
Concept Plan.  

9. Address all lighting in accordance with the Lighting requirements in the UDC 
and provided in the Site Development Concept Plan. 

10. Depict the location of all buildings, size, including height and distance from 
adjacent property lines and proposed use. 

11. Specific structure, parking setbacks and build-to lines along all roadways and 
property lines. 

12. Indicate location of all existing and proposed freestanding monument signs. 



PZ 06-2023 

Chesterfield Village Mall (TSG Downtown Chesterfield Redevelopment, LLC) 

 

16 

 

13. Zoning district lines, subdivision name, lot number, lot dimensions, lot area, 
and zoning of adjacent parcels where different than site.   

14. Depict existing and proposed improvements within 150 feet of the site as 
directed. Improvements include, but are not limited to, roadways, driveways 
and walkways adjacent to and across the street from the site, significant 
natural features, such as wooded areas and rock formations, and other karst 
features that are to remain or be removed. 

15. Depict all existing and proposed easements and rights-of-way within 150 feet 
of the site and all existing or proposed off-site easements and rights-of-way 
required for proposed improvements. 

16. Indicate the location of the proposed storm sewers, detention basins, 
sanitary sewers and connection(s) to the existing systems. 

17. Depict existing and proposed contours at intervals of not more than one (1) 
foot, and extending 150 feet beyond the limits of the site as directed. 

18. Signed and sealed in conformance with the State of Missouri Department of 
Economic Development, Division of Professional Registration, Missouri 
Board for Architects, Professional Engineers and Land Surveyors 
requirements. 

19. Provide comments/approvals from the appropriate Fire District, Monarch 
Levee District, Spirit of St. Louis Airport, St. Louis Department of Highways 
and Traffic, Metropolitan St. Louis Sewer District (MSD) and the Missouri 
Department of Transportation. 

20. Compliance with the current Metropolitan Sewer District Site Guidance as 
adopted by the City of Chesterfield.   

III. RECORDING 

Within sixty (60) days of approval of any development plan by the City of Chesterfield, 
the approved Plan will be recorded with the St. Louis County Recorder of Deeds.  
Failure to do so will result in the expiration of approval of said plan and require re-
approval of a plan by the Planning Commission. 

IV. ENFORCEMENT 

A. The City of Chesterfield, Missouri will enforce the conditions of this ordinance in 
accordance with the Plan approved by the City of Chesterfield and the terms of 
this Attachment A. 

B.  Failure to comply with any or all the conditions of this ordinance will be adequate 
cause for revocation of approvals/permits by reviewing Departments and 
Commissions. 



PZ 06-2023 

Chesterfield Village Mall (TSG Downtown Chesterfield Redevelopment, LLC) 

 

17 

 

C. Non-compliance with the specific requirements and conditions set forth in this 
Ordinance and its attached conditions or other Ordinances of the City of 
Chesterfield shall constitute an ordinance violation, subject, but not limited to, the 
penalty provisions as set forth in the City of Chesterfield Code. 

D. Waiver of Notice of Violation per the City of Chesterfield Code.   

E. This document shall be read as a whole and any inconsistency to be interpreted 
to carry out the overall intent of this Attachment A. 



PRELIMINARY PLAN

Tsg Downtown Chesterfield
Redevelopment Staenberg Group Inc
2127 Innerbelt Business Center Dr
Suite 200
Saint Louis, MO 63114 C1.0

PRELIMINARY PLAN FOR
DOWNTOWN

CHESTERFIELD

EXISTING CHESTERFIELD M
ALL

MACY'S

SEARS

AMC

EX. D
RURY

RIVER

DILLARD'S

EX. H
YATT

STONEY

CLARKSON ROAD

INTERSTATE 64

INTERSTATE 64

CHESTERFIELD PARKWAY

CH
ES

TE
RF

IE
LD

 P
AR

KW
AY

PA
RK

 C
IR

CL
E 

DR
.

BU
RK

HA
RD

T 
 P

L.

E. CHESTERFIELD CTR.

LY
D

IA
 H

IL
L

VI
ST

A 
 P

L.

JUSTUS POST

FONTAINE RD

NON-SIGNALIZED
INSTERSECTION

EXISTING
SIGNALIZED

INSTERSECTION

EXISTING
SIGNALIZED

INSTERSECTION

EXISTING
NON-SIGNALIZED
INSTERSECTION

EXISTING
SIGNALIZED

INSTERSECTION

WILDHORSE VILLAGE

PB. 359, PG. 579

CHESTERFIELD

SHELBOURNE

THE SHERIDAN

POST
BISHOP'S

REDKEY

LIBRARY

3RD AMENDED SDCP

PB. 373, PG. 238-240

CERTIFICATE OF AUTHORITY NO. 000996

GEORGE M. STOCK   E-25116
CIVIL ENGINEER

8/20/2023

PREPARED BY:
257 Chesterfield Business Parkway
St. Louis, MO  63005
PH. (636) 530-9100 FAX (636) 530-9130
e-mail: general@stockassoc.com
 Web: www.stockassoc.com

G.M.S.T.S. 03/17/2023 1"=100' 6255.4

D
R

AW
IN

G
 F

IL
E:

 O
:\D

R
AW

62
00

\2
18

62
55

\6
25

5.
4\

pr
el

im
in

ar
y-

pl
an

\re
-z

on
e\

C
1.

0-
re

zo
ni

ng
.d

w
g 

 L
AY

O
U

T:
 M

od
el

  P
LO

TT
ED

:  
Au

g 
02

,  
20

23
 - 

10
:5

7a
m

  P
LO

TT
ED

 B
Y:

 ti
m

.s
to

ck

- 18S, 19S

--

-

PROJECT:
1 - 4/20/2023 REVISE PER COMMENTS
2 - 8/02/2023 REVISE PER COMMENTS

AREA 2 AND AREA 3

A tract of land being  Lot C101D of the Chesterfield Village A Phase One Plat One, a  subdivision according to the plat thereof as recorded in Plat Book 158,
Page 96 of the St. Louis County records, located in U.S. Surveys 415 and 2002, Township 45 North, Range 4 East of the Fifth Principal Meridian, City of
Chesterfield, St. Louis County, Missouri being more particularly described as follows:

Beginning at the northernmost corner of above said Lot C101D, said point also being located on the southern right-of-way line of Chesterfield Airport Road,
variable width, said point also being located on a curve to the left having a radius of 2,914.93 feet; thence along said right-of-way line the following courses and
distances: southeasterly along said curve with an arc length of 477.12 feet and a chord which bears South 40 degrees 27 minutes 57 seconds East, 476.59 feet;
South 44 degrees 50 minutes 42 seconds West, 10.00 feet; to the beginning of a curve to the left having a radius of 2,924.93 feet an arc length of  231.79 feet
and a chord which bears South 47 degrees 25 minutes 30 seconds East, 231.70 feet to the southeast corner of above said Lot C101D; thence along the
southeastern line of said Lot C101D, South 40 degrees 18 minutes 17 seconds West, 194.14 feet to the west line of said Lot C101D; thence along said west line
the following courses and distances: North 42 degrees 53 minutes 57 seconds West, a distance of 124.85 feet; South 47 degrees 06 minutes 03 seconds West,
5.00 feet; to the beginning of a non-tangent curve to the left having a radius of 400.00 feet; along said curve with an arc length of 307.06 feet and a chord which
bears North 64 degrees 53 minutes 28 seconds West, 299.58 feet to the southwest corner of said Lot C101D; thence along the western lines of said Lot C101D
the following: North 12 degrees 26 minutes 49 seconds West, 397.78 feet and North 54 degrees 13 minutes 23 seconds East, 121.24 feet to the POINT OF
BEGINNING.

Containing 152,812 square feet or 3.508 acres, more or less.

Tracts of land located in U.S. Surveys 415 and 2002, Township 45 North, Range 4 East of the Fifth Principal Meridian, City of Chesterfield, St. Louis County, Missouri being more particularly described as follows:

AREA 2

AREA 1

Tracts of land being Lots C110, C111, C112, and C113 of Chesterfield Village Area A Phase One Plat Two as recorded in Plat Book 166, Page 84;
and Part of Us. Survey 415, as described in Book 10308, Page 1461 both of the St. Louis County Records, located in U.S. Surveys 415 and 2022,
Township 45 North, Range 4 East of the Fifth Principal Meridian, City of Chesterfield, St. Louis County, Missouri being more particularly described
as follows:

 Beginning at the southwestern corner of above said Lot C110, said point also being located on the eastern right-of-way line of West Chesterfield
Parkway, 73 feet wide, Said point also being located on a non-tangent curve to the right having a radius of 763.50 feet, thence along said
right-of-way line the following courses and distances:  along said curve with an arc length of 45.90 feet and a chord which bears North 10 degrees
04 minutes 33 seconds East, 45.90 feet; North 11 degrees 34 minutes 17 seconds East, 735.22 feet to the beginning of a curve to the left having a
radius of 3,036.50 feet; along said curve with an arc length of 79.87 feet and a chord which bears North 10 degrees 49 minutes 04 seconds East
79.87 feet; North 10 degrees 03 minutes 51 seconds East, 1,599.81 feet to the beginning of a  non-tangent curve to the right having a radius of
1,113.50 feet and a chord which bears North 17 degrees 03 minutes 36 seconds East, 269.98 feet and North 71 degrees 18 minutes 34 seconds
East, 135.85 feet to its intersection with the southern right-of-way line of Chesterfield Airport Road, variable width; thence along said right-of-way
line the following: South 69 degrees 05 minutes 13 seconds East, 32.21 feet and South 59 degrees 27 minutes 09 seconds East, 11.64 feet to the
northwest corner of a tract of land as conveyed to First Baptist Church, by instrument recorded in Book 5232, Page 199 of above said records,
thence along the west, south and eastern lines of said Church tract the following courses and distances: South 34 degrees 10 minutes 41 seconds
West, 180.51 feet; South 55 degrees 53 minutes 58 seconds East, 137.63 feet; North 34 degrees 59 minutes 13 seconds East, 43.04 feet; North
15 degrees 05 minutes 30 seconds East, 47.83 feet and North 27 degrees 03 minutes 38 seconds East, 17.67 feet and North 35 degrees 05
minutes 17 seconds East, 82.29 feet to the southern right-of-way line of above said Chesterfield Airport Road; thence along said right-of-way line
the following: South 59 degrees 27 minutes 09 seconds East, 84.03 feet and South 33 degrees 54 minutes 11 seconds East, 408.23 feet to the
easternmost corner of above said Lot C111; thence along the eastern and southern lines of said Chesterfield Village Area A Phase One Plat Two
the following courses and distances: South 02 degrees 31 minutes 25 seconds West, 74.82 feet; South 28 degrees 18 minutes 26 seconds West,
85.00 feet; South 60 degrees 52 minutes 24 seconds West, 334.47 feet; South 08 degrees 46 minutes 20 seconds West, 912.12 feet; South 14
degrees 25 minutes 19 seconds West, a distance of 758.46 feet; South 27 degrees 29 minutes 54 seconds West, 207.73 feet to the beginning of a
non-tangent curve to the left having a radius of 507.82 feet; along said curve with an arc length of 160.61 feet and a chord which bears South 62
degrees 41 minutes 17 seconds West, 159.94 feet; South 53 degrees 37 minutes 39 seconds West, a distance of 8.62 feet to the beginning of a
non-tangent curve to the right having a radius of 262.50 feet; along said curve with an arc length of 191.02 feet and a chord which bears South 74
degrees 28 minutes 28 seconds West, 186.83 feet and North 84 degrees 40 minutes 43 seconds West, 14.47 feet to the POINT OF BEGINNING.

Containing 1,127,465 square feet or 25.883 acres, more or less.

AREA 2 DESCRIPTION

AREA 1 DESCRIPTION

C111

C110

C113

C112

AREA 3

AREA 3
25.883 Acres ±

66.626 Acres ±

3.508 Acres ±

AREA 3A

AREA 3B

AREA 3C

Beginning at the southeastern corner of Lot C-108 of Chesterfield Village A Phase One Plat One, a  subdivision according to the plat thereof as recorded in Plat Book 158, Page 96 of the St. Louis County records, said point also being located
on the northern  right-of-way line of West Chesterfield Parkway, variable width; thence along the eastern line of said lot C-108, North 02 degrees 24 minutes 55 seconds East, 153.50 feet to the northeastern corner thereof, thence along the
northeastern lines of said Lot C108 and Lot 1 of the Chesterfield Village Area "A" Phase One Plat One Lots C109 and C208 Lot Consolidation Plat, a subdivision according to the plat thereof as recorded in Plat Book 367, Page 521 of above
said records, the following courses and distances: North 52 degrees 55 minutes 05 seconds West, 837.00 feet; North 18 degrees 15 minutes 05 seconds West, 305.01 feet and North 64 degrees 14 minutes 40 seconds West, 41.67 feet to the
beginning of a non-tangent curve to the left having a radius of 432.37 feet; thence along said curve with an arc length of 106.89 feet and a chord which bears South 60 degrees 42 minutes 07 seconds West, 106.62 feet to the beginning of a
non-tangent curve to the left having a radius of 338.26 feet an arc length of 254.23 feet and a chord which bears South 73 degrees 46 minutes 00 seconds West, 248.28 feet and North 84 degrees 40 minutes 43 seconds West,  14.47 feet to
the eastern right-of-way line of West Chesterfield Parkway, 73 feet wide, said point also being located on a curve to the right having a radius of 763.50 feet; thence along said curve with an arc length of  75.03 feet and a chord which bears
North 05 degrees 18 minutes 40 seconds East, 75.00 feet to the southwest corner of Lot  C110 of Chesterfield Village Area A Phase 1 Plat 2 according to the plat thereof as recorded in Plat Book 166, Page 84 of above said records, thence
along southern and eastern lines of said Chesterfield Village Area A Phase 1 Plat 2 the following courses and distances:  South 84 degrees 40 minutes 43 seconds East, 14.48 feet to a non-tangent curve to the left having a radius of 262.50
feet, an arc length of 191.02 feet and a chord which bears North 74 degrees 28 minutes 28 seconds East, 186.83 feet; North 53 degrees 37 minutes 39 seconds East, 8.62 feet to the beginning of a non-tangent curve to the right having a
radius of 507.82 feet, an arc length of 160.61 feet and a chord which bears North 62 degrees 41 minutes 17 seconds East, 159.94 feet; North 27 degrees 29 minutes 54 seconds East, 207.73 feet; North 14 degrees 25 minutes 19 seconds
East, 758.46 feet and North 08 degrees 46 minutes 20 seconds East, 85.00 feet to the northmost corner of New Section B of the Resubdivision Plat of Lot C101F of Parcel C101F of Chesterfield Village Area A Phase 1 Plat One, Plat Book
334, Pages 65 and 65A; thence along the northern and eastern lines of said New Section B the following courses and distances: South 75 degrees 34 minutes 41 seconds East, 51.88 feet; South 12 degrees 26 minutes 49 seconds East,
123.89 feet; North 77 degrees 33 minutes 11 seconds East,  250.00 feet; South 12 degrees 26 minutes 49 seconds East,  240.00 feet; North 77 degrees 33 minutes 11 seconds East,  451.32 feet; South 12 degrees 26 minutes 49 seconds
East,  74.00 feet and North 77 degrees 33 minutes 11 seconds East,  497.94 feet and to a point on a non-tangent curve to the left having a radius of 515.00 feet, said point also being located on the west line of Lot C 106 of above said
Chesterfield Village A Phase One Plat One; thence along said curve with an arc length of 155.67 feet and a chord which bears North 32 degrees 57 minutes 40 seconds West, 155.08 feet to the western most corner of said Lot C 106; thence
along the northwestern lines of said Lot C 106 the following: North 50 degrees 55 minutes 27 seconds East,  245.99 feet and North 32 degrees 52 minutes 18 seconds East, 32.53 feet to its intersection with the southern right-of way line of
Chesterfield Airport Road, variable width; thence along said right-of-way line South 57 degrees 07 minutes 42 seconds East,  341.40 feet to the northwest corner of that part of Chesterfield Center vacated by City of Chesterfield Ordinance
Number 511, and recorded in Book 8872, Page 2431 of above said records; thence along the north, east and south lines of said vacation the following  courses and distances: continuing  Southeasterly along said line, South 57 degrees 07
minutes 42 seconds East,  21.18 feet; South 42 degrees 52 minutes 34 seconds East, 8.16 feet to the beginning of a non-tangent curve to the right having a radius of 61.00 feet, an arc length of 31.10 feet and a chord which bears South 13
degrees 33 minutes 13 seconds West, 30.76 feet; South 28 degrees 09 minutes 48 seconds West, 126.11 feet to the beginning of a curve to the right having a radius of 495.58 feet, an arc length of  17.10 feet and a chord which bears South
29 degrees 9 minutes 7 seconds West 17.10 feet; South 30 degrees 07 minutes 59 seconds West, 34.42 feet and North 69 degrees 47 minutes 38 seconds West, 19.46 feet to the eastern most corner of above said Lot C 106; thence along
the southern line of said Lot C 106, South 77 degrees 7 minutes 6 seconds West,  290.42 feet; to the east line of New Section A of Lot C101F of above said Resubdivision Plat of Lot C101F of Parcel C101F of Chesterfield Village Area A
Phase 1 Plat One; thence along said east lines of said New Section A the following courses and distances: South 12 degrees 26 minutes 49 seconds East,  451.59 feet; South 56 degrees 32 minutes 18 seconds East,  43.09 feet top the
beginning of a non- tangent curve to the right having a radius of 473.00 feet, and along said curve with an arc length of 151.21 feet and a chord which bears South 89 degrees 38 minutes 16 seconds East, 150.56 feet; thence crossing
Chesterfield Center Drive; South 12 degrees 32 minutes 53 seconds West,  100.14 feet to the north line of Lot C 102 of above said Chesterfield Village A Phase One Plat One, said point also being located on a non-tangent curve to the right
having a radius of 373.00 feet; thence along said north line and last said curve with an arc length of  137.75 feet and a chord which bears South 70 degrees 43 minutes 56 seconds East, 136.97 feet; thence South 11 degrees 41 minutes 44
seconds East,  41.56 feet to the western right-of-way line of Clarkson Road, variable width thence along said right-of-way line the following courses and distances: South 34 degrees 27 minutes 25 seconds West,  386.00 feet; South 23
degrees 33 minutes 07 seconds West,  181.60 feet; South 31 degrees 8 minutes 12 seconds West,  828.33 feet and South 85 degrees 41 minutes 13 seconds West,  26.89 feet to the northern right-of-way line of above said West Chesterfield
Parkway, said point also being located on a curve to the left having a radius of 1,060.17 feet; thence along said right-of-way line the following courses and distances: along said curve with an arc length of 334.12 feet and a chord which bears
North 73 degrees 49 minutes 52 seconds West, 332.74 feet; North 82 degrees 51 minutes 36 seconds West,  126.21 feet; North 82 degrees 52 minutes 12 seconds West,  37.73 feet and South 86 degrees 45 minutes 4 seconds West,  35.95
feet to the POINT OF BEGINNING.

 Rev 4/17/23 Containing 2,902,238 square feet or 66.626 acres, more or less.

Petree Powell
Stamp



C2.0

PRELIMINARY PLAN
EXISTING CONDITIONS

605.6

64
0.

6

648.8

583.6

611.3

595.8

558.3

589.4

617.3

577.0

607.5

628.9

651.3

614.7

633.2

590.9

614.9

634.6

545.0

645.0

647.0

597.0

651.3

547.5

EXISTING CHESTERFIELD M
ALL

MACY'S

SEARS

AMC

EX. D
RURY

RIVER

DILLARD'S

EX. H
YATT

STONEY

CLARKSON ROAD

INTERSTATE 64

INTERSTATE 64

CHESTERFIELD PARKWAY

CH
ES

TE
RF

IE
LD

 P
AR

KW
AY

PA
RK

 C
IR

CL
E 

DR
.

BU
RK

HA
RD

T 
 P

L.

E. CHESTERFIELD CTR.

LY
D

IA
 H

IL
L

VI
ST

A 
 P

L.

JUSTUS POST

FONTAINE RD

NON-SIGNALIZED
INSTERSECTION

EXISTING
SIGNALIZED

INSTERSECTION

EXISTING
SIGNALIZED

INSTERSECTION

EXISTING
NON-SIGNALIZED
INSTERSECTION

EXISTING
SIGNALIZED

INSTERSECTION

WILDHORSE VILLAGE

PB. 359, PG. 579

CHESTERFIELD

SHELBOURNE

THE SHERIDAN

POST
BISHOP'S

REDKEY

LIBRARY

3RD AMENDED SDCP

PB. 373, PG. 238-240

CERTIFICATE OF AUTHORITY NO. 000996

GEORGE M. STOCK   E-25116
CIVIL ENGINEER

8/20/2023

PREPARED BY:
257 Chesterfield Business Parkway
St. Louis, MO  63005
PH. (636) 530-9100 FAX (636) 530-9130
e-mail: general@stockassoc.com
 Web: www.stockassoc.com

G.M.S.T.S. 03/17/2023 1"=100' 6255.4

D
R

AW
IN

G
 F

IL
E:

 O
:\D

R
AW

62
00

\2
18

62
55

\6
25

5.
4\

pr
el

im
in

ar
y-

pl
an

\re
-z

on
e\

C
2.

0-
re

zo
ni

ng
-E

XI
ST

IN
G

.d
w

g 
 L

AY
O

U
T:

 M
od

el
  P

LO
TT

ED
:  

Au
g 

02
,  

20
23

 - 
11

:0
8a

m
  P

LO
TT

ED
 B

Y:
 ti

m
.s

to
ck

- 18S, 19S

--

-

PROJECT:
1 - 4/20/2023 REVISE PER COMMENTS
2 - 8/02/2023 REVISE PER COMMENTS



C3.0

DOWNTOWN
CHESTERFIELD

PRELIMINARY SITE
PLAN

605.6

64
0.

6

648.8

583.6

611.3

595.8

558.3

589.4

617.3

577.0

607.5

628.9

651.3

614.7

633.2

590.9

614.9

634.6

545.0

645.0

647.0

597.0

651.3

547.5

EX. D
RURY

RIVER

DILLARD'S

EX. H
YATT

STONEY

CLARKSON ROAD

INTERSTATE 64

INTERSTATE 64

CHESTERFIELD PARKWAY

CH
ES

TE
RF

IE
LD

 P
AR

KW
AY

PA
RK

 C
IR

CL
E 

DR
.

BU
RK

HA
RD

T 
 P

L.

E. CHESTERFIELD CTR.

LY
D

IA
 H

IL
L

VI
ST

A 
 P

L.

JUSTUS POST

FONTAINE RD

NON-SIGNALIZED
INSTERSECTION

EXISTING
SIGNALIZED

INSTERSECTION

GRAND STAIRS PER
CITY OF

CHESTERFIELD

EXISTING
SIGNALIZED

INSTERSECTION

EXISTING
NON-SIGNALIZED
INSTERSECTION

EXISTING
SIGNALIZED

INSTERSECTION

R1
2.85 Acres

(Ex. Macy's)

R1
1.05 Acres

A7
2.19 Acres

A8
1.51 Acres H1

1.32 Acres

A9
1.88 Acres A1

1.63 Acres

A1
1.46 Acres

R2
3.58 Acres

R3
3.17 Acres

A3
0.90 Acres

A3
1.57 Acres

A5
1.73 Acres A6

1.98 Acres

R4
1.39 Acres

B1
2.44 Acres

A10
1.98 Acres

A10
0.39 Ac.

A2
1.52 Acres

A4
1.33 Acres

WILDHORSE VILLAGE

PB. 359, PG. 579

PRIMARY STREET

PRIMARY STREET

PR
IM

AR
Y 

ST
R

EE
T

SE
R

VI
C

E 
AL

LE
Y

PRIMARY STREET

ST
R

EE
T

OUTER  L
OOP  R

OAD

OUTER  LOOP  ROAD

OUTER  LOOP  ROAD

SE
RV

IC
E 

AL
LE

Y

SERVICE  ALLEY
SER

VIC
E   ALLEY

PEDESTRIAN STREET

PEDESTRIAN STREET

PEDESTRIAN STREET

PEDESTRIAN STREET

OUTER  LOOP  ROAD

PARK AREA
w/ AMENITIES AND

GARAGE UNDERNEATH

625 +

+ 614.7

+ 625.2

++ 635.0+ 635.0635.0 +629.0 +

+ 617.3

+ 629.5 + 630 + 642.5

+ 651.3+ 655.0+ 651.3

+ 648.5 + 646.5

643 +

+ 642.0

+ 639.5

+ 

+ 6
33

.0

+ 
   

63
0

635.0 + 642.5 +

BIO

BIO

BIO

BIO

BIO

BIO
BIO

BIO

BIO

BIO

CHESTERFIELD

SHELBOURNE

THE SHERIDAN

POST
BISHOP'S

REDKEY

 635.0

 642.5

LIBRARY

3RD AMENDED SDCP

PB. 373, PG. 238-240

+ 643.8

+  620.5

PR
IM

AR
Y

ST
R

EE
T

PR
IM

AR
Y PRIM

ARY  STREET

3A

3B

3C

PROPOSED ROAD

PROPOSED ROAD

PROPOSEDROAD

B2
2.67 Acres

B9
0.84 Acres

B8
3.51 Acres

LOT AREA
3.14 Acres

LOT AREA
2.37 Acres

LOT AREA
3.93 Acres

LOT AREA
7.48 Acres

LOT AREA
4.88 Acres

(4580 Lin. F
t. ±

)

LOOP BIKE TRAIL

CENTERLINE O
UTER

STREET (3370 Lin. Ft. ±)
CENTERLINE PEDESTRIAN

PUBLIC PARKING

CERTIFICATE OF AUTHORITY NO. 000996

GEORGE M. STOCK   E-25116
CIVIL ENGINEER

8/20/2023

PREPARED BY:
257 Chesterfield Business Parkway
St. Louis, MO  63005
PH. (636) 530-9100 FAX (636) 530-9130
e-mail: general@stockassoc.com
 Web: www.stockassoc.com

G.M.S.T.S. 03/17/2023 1"=100' 6255.4

D
R

AW
IN

G
 F

IL
E:

 O
:\D

R
AW

62
00

\2
18

62
55

\6
25

5.
4\

pr
el

im
in

ar
y-

pl
an

\re
-z

on
e\

C
3.

0-
re

zo
ni

ng
-P

LA
N

.d
w

g 
 L

AY
O

U
T:

 M
od

el
  P

LO
TT

ED
:  

Au
g 

02
,  

20
23

 - 
11

:1
4a

m
  P

LO
TT

ED
 B

Y:
 ti

m
.s

to
ck

- 18S, 19S

--

-

PROJECT:
1 - 4/20/2023 REVISE PER COMMENTS
2 - 8/02/2023 REVISE PER COMMENTS



C4.0

PRELIMINARY SITE
GRADING PLAN

605.6

64
0.

6

648.8

583.6

611.3

595.8

558.3

589.4

617.3

577.0

607.5

628.9

651.3

614.7

633.2

590.9

614.9

634.6

545.0

645.0

647.0

597.0

651.3

547.5

EX. D
RURY

RIVER

DILLARD'S

EX. H
YATT

STONEY

CLARKSON ROAD

INTERSTATE 64

INTERSTATE 64

CHESTERFIELD PARKWAY

CH
ES

TE
RF

IE
LD

 P
AR

KW
AY

PA
RK

 C
IR

CL
E 

DR
.

BU
RK

HA
RD

T 
 P

L.

E. CHESTERFIELD CTR.

LY
D

IA
 H

IL
L

VI
ST

A 
 P

L.

JUSTUS POST

FONTAINE RD

NON-SIGNALIZED
INSTERSECTION

EXISTING
SIGNALIZED

INSTERSECTION

POTENTIAL SANITARY
STORAGE LOCATION
10 (TOT) - 96" x 240'

LONG STORAGE PIPES

GRAND STAIRS PER
CITY OF

CHESTERFIELD

EXISTING
SIGNALIZED

INSTERSECTION

EXISTING
NON-SIGNALIZED
INSTERSECTION

EXISTING
SIGNALIZED

INSTERSECTION

R1
2.85 Acres

(Ex. Macy's)

R1
1.05 Acres

A7
2.19 Acres

A8
1.51 Acres H1

1.32 Acres

A9
1.88 Acres A1

1.63 Acres

A1
1.46 Acres

R2
3.58 Acres

R3
3.17 Acres

A3
0.90 Acres

A3
1.57 Acres

A5
1.73 Acres A6

1.98 Acres

R4
1.39 Acres

B1
2.44 Acres

A10
1.98 Acres

A10
0.39 Ac.

A2
1.52 Acres

A4
1.33 Acres

WILDHORSE VILLAGE

PB. 359, PG. 579

SANITARY
PUMP

PRIMARY STREET

PRIMARY STREET

PR
IM

AR
Y 

ST
R

EE
T

PRIMARY STREET

ST
R

EE
T

OUTER  L
OOP  R

OAD

OUTER  LOOP  ROAD

OUTER  LOOP  ROAD

SE
RV

IC
E 

AL
LE

Y

SERVICE  ALLEY
SER

VIC
E   ALLEY

PEDESTRIAN STREET

PEDESTRIAN STREET

PEDESTRIAN STREET

PEDESTRIAN STREET

OUTER  LOOP  ROAD

PARK AREA
w/ AMENITIES AND

GARAGE UNDERNEATH

625 +

+ 614.7

+ 625.2

++ 635.0+ 635.0635.0 +629.0 +

+ 617.3

+ 629.5 + 630 + 642.5

+ 651.3+ 655.0+ 651.3

+ 648.5 + 646.5

643 +

+ 642.0

+ 639.5

+ 

+ 6
33

.0

+ 
   

63
0

635.0 + 642.5 +

POTENTIAL SANITARY

STORAGE LOCATION

4 (TOT) - 96" x 60'

LONG STORAGE PIPES

SANITARY
PUMP

BIO

BIO

BIO

BIO

BIO

BIO
BIO

BIO

BIO

BIO

CHESTERFIELD

SHELBOURNE

THE SHERIDAN

POST
BISHOP'S

REDKEY

 635.0

 642.5

LIBRARY

3RD AMENDED SDCP

PB. 373, PG. 238-240

+ 643.8

+  620.5

PR
IM

AR
Y

ST
R

EE
T

PR
IM

AR
Y PRIM

ARY  STREET

3A

3B

3C

PROPOSED ROAD

PROPOSED ROAD

PROPOSEDROAD

B2
2.67 Acres

B9
0.84 Acres

B8
3.51 Acres

LOT AREA
3.14 Acres

LOT AREA
2.37 Acres

LOT AREA
3.93 Acres

LOT AREA
7.48 Acres

LOT AREA
4.88 Acres

(4580 Lin. F
t. ±

)

LOOP BIKE TRAIL

CENTERLINE O
UTER

STREET (3370 Lin. Ft. ±)
CENTERLINE PEDESTRIAN

PUBLIC PARKING

CERTIFICATE OF AUTHORITY NO. 000996

GEORGE M. STOCK   E-25116
CIVIL ENGINEER

8/20/2023

PREPARED BY:
257 Chesterfield Business Parkway
St. Louis, MO  63005
PH. (636) 530-9100 FAX (636) 530-9130
e-mail: general@stockassoc.com
 Web: www.stockassoc.com

G.M.S.T.S. 03/17/2023 1"=100' 6255.4

D
R

AW
IN

G
 F

IL
E:

 O
:\D

R
AW

62
00

\2
18

62
55

\6
25

5.
4\

pr
el

im
in

ar
y-

pl
an

\re
-z

on
e\

C
4.

0-
re

zo
ni

ng
-G

R
AD

ES
.d

w
g 

 L
AY

O
U

T:
 M

od
el

  P
LO

TT
ED

:  
Au

g 
02

,  
20

23
 - 

11
:1

7a
m

  P
LO

TT
ED

 B
Y:

 ti
m

.s
to

ck

- 18S, 19S

--

-

PROJECT:
1 - 4/20/2023 REVISE PER COMMENTS
2 - 8/02/2023 REVISE PER COMMENTS



C5.0

PRELIMINARY SITE
UTILITY PLAN

605.6

64
0.

6

648.8

583.6

611.3

595.8

558.3

589.4

617.3

577.0

607.5

628.9

651.3

614.7

633.2

590.9

614.9

634.6

545.0

645.0

647.0

597.0

651.3

547.5

EX. D
RURY

RIVER

DILLARD'S

EX. H
YATT

STONEY

CLARKSON ROAD

INTERSTATE 64

INTERSTATE 64

CHESTERFIELD PARKWAY

CH
ES

TE
RF

IE
LD

 P
AR

KW
AY

PA
RK

 C
IR

CL
E 

DR
.

BU
RK

HA
RD

T 
 P

L.

E. CHESTERFIELD CTR.

LY
D

IA
 H

IL
L

VI
ST

A 
 P

L.

JUSTUS POST

FONTAINE RD

NON-SIGNALIZED
INSTERSECTION

EXISTING
SIGNALIZED

INSTERSECTION

POTENTIAL SANITARY
STORAGE LOCATION
10 (TOT) - 96" x 240'

LONG STORAGE PIPES

GRAND STAIRS PER
CITY OF

CHESTERFIELD

EXISTING
SIGNALIZED

INSTERSECTION

EXISTING
NON-SIGNALIZED
INSTERSECTION

EXISTING
SIGNALIZED

INSTERSECTION

R1
2.85 Acres

(Ex. Macy's)

R1
1.05 Acres

A7
2.19 Acres

A8
1.51 Acres H1

1.32 Acres

A9
1.88 Acres A1

1.63 Acres

A1
1.46 Acres

R2
3.58 Acres

R3
3.17 Acres

A3
0.90 Acres

A3
1.57 Acres

A5
1.73 Acres A6

1.98 Acres

R4
1.39 Acres

B1
2.44 Acres

A10
1.98 Acres

A10
0.39 Ac.

A2
1.52 Acres

A4
1.33 Acres

WILDHORSE VILLAGE

PB. 359, PG. 579

SANITARY
PUMP

PRIMARY STREET

PRIMARY STREET

PR
IM

AR
Y 

ST
R

EE
T

PRIMARY STREET

ST
R

EE
T

OUTER  L
OOP  R

OAD

OUTER  LOOP  ROAD

OUTER  LOOP  ROAD

SE
RV

IC
E 

AL
LE

Y

SERVICE  ALLEY
SER

VIC
E   ALLEY

PEDESTRIAN STREET

PEDESTRIAN STREET

PEDESTRIAN STREET

PEDESTRIAN STREET

OUTER  LOOP  ROAD

PARK AREA
w/ AMENITIES AND

GARAGE UNDERNEATH

625 +

+ 614.7

+ 625.2

++ 635.0+ 635.0635.0 +629.0 +

+ 617.3

+ 629.5 + 630 + 642.5

+ 651.3+ 655.0+ 651.3

+ 648.5 + 646.5

643 +

+ 642.0

+ 639.5

+ 

+ 6
33

.0

+ 
   

63
0

635.0 + 642.5 +

POTENTIAL SANITARY

STORAGE LOCATION

4 (TOT) - 96" x 60'

LONG STORAGE PIPES

SANITARY
PUMP

BIO

BIO

BIO

BIO

BIO

BIO
BIO

BIO

BIO

BIO

CHESTERFIELD

SHELBOURNE

THE SHERIDAN

POST
BISHOP'S

REDKEY

 635.0

 642.5

LIBRARY

3RD AMENDED SDCP

PB. 373, PG. 238-240

+ 643.8

+  620.5

PR
IM

AR
Y

ST
R

EE
T

PR
IM

AR
Y PRIM

ARY  STREET

3A

3B

3C

PROPOSED ROAD

PROPOSED ROAD

PROPOSEDROAD

B2
2.67 Acres

B9
0.84 Acres

B8
3.51 Acres

LOT AREA
3.14 Acres

LOT AREA
2.37 Acres

LOT AREA
3.93 Acres

LOT AREA
7.48 Acres

LOT AREA
4.88 Acres

(4580 Lin. F
t. ±

)

LOOP BIKE TRAIL

CENTERLINE O
UTER

STREET (3370 Lin. Ft. ±)
CENTERLINE PEDESTRIAN

PUBLIC PARKING

CERTIFICATE OF AUTHORITY NO. 000996

GEORGE M. STOCK   E-25116
CIVIL ENGINEER

8/20/2023

PREPARED BY:
257 Chesterfield Business Parkway
St. Louis, MO  63005
PH. (636) 530-9100 FAX (636) 530-9130
e-mail: general@stockassoc.com
 Web: www.stockassoc.com

G.M.S.T.S. 03/17/2023 1"=100' 6255.4

D
R

AW
IN

G
 F

IL
E:

 O
:\D

R
AW

62
00

\2
18

62
55

\6
25

5.
4\

pr
el

im
in

ar
y-

pl
an

\re
-z

on
e\

C
5.

0-
re

zo
ni

ng
-U

TI
LI

TI
ES

.d
w

g 
 L

AY
O

U
T:

 M
od

el
  P

LO
TT

ED
:  

Au
g 

02
,  

20
23

 - 
11

:1
9a

m
  P

LO
TT

ED
 B

Y:
 ti

m
.s

to
ck

- 18S, 19S

--

-

PROJECT:
1 - 4/20/2023 REVISE PER COMMENTS
2 - 8/02/2023 REVISE PER COMMENTS

PROPOSED SANITARY SEWER (GRAVITY)
PROPOSED SANITARY SEWER (FORCEMAIN)
PROPOSED STORM (OFFSITE DRAINAGE)
PROPOSED STORM (TRIBUTARY TO BIO)
PROPOSED STORM (TRIBUTARY TO BIO)
PROPOSED WATER SERVICE
PROPOSED GAS SERVICE
PROPOSED ELECTRIC
PROPOSED COMMUNICATIONS



C6.0

PRELIMINARY PLAN
SITE AND ROAD

SECTIONS

CERTIFICATE OF AUTHORITY NO. 000996

GEORGE M. STOCK   E-25116
CIVIL ENGINEER

8/20/2023

PREPARED BY:
257 Chesterfield Business Parkway
St. Louis, MO  63005
PH. (636) 530-9100 FAX (636) 530-9130
e-mail: general@stockassoc.com
 Web: www.stockassoc.com

G.M.S.T.S. 03/17/2023 1"=100' 6255.4

D
R

AW
IN

G
 F

IL
E:

 O
:\D

R
AW

62
00

\2
18

62
55

\6
25

5.
4\

pr
el

im
in

ar
y-

pl
an

\re
-z

on
e\

C
6.

0-
SE

C
TI

O
N

S.
dw

g 
 L

AY
O

U
T:

 M
od

el
  P

LO
TT

ED
:  

Au
g 

02
,  

20
23

 - 
11

:2
0a

m
  P

LO
TT

ED
 B

Y:
 ti

m
.s

to
ck

- 18S, 19S

--

-

PROJECT:
1 - 4/20/2023 REVISE PER COMMENTS
2 - 8/02/2023 REVISE PER COMMENTS

PRIMARY STREET PEDESTRIAN STREET

OUTER LOOP ROAD / HIKE
& BIKE TRAIL SERVICE ALLEY

NOTE: SECTIONS PER NELSON PARTNERS MASTER PLAN DATED 02.15.2023

TURN
LANE

11'-0"

MODIFIED AERIAL APPARATUS ACCESS SECTION

41.0'8'-0"

MULTI-STORY
BUILDING

30
.0
'

25.13°

54.5
'

50.76°

78
.0'

11'-0"

DRIVE
LANE

DRIVE
LANE

20'-0"

PARKING &
LANDSCAPE

21'-0"

SIDEWALK
& PATIO

SIDEWALK
& PATIO

PARKING &
LANDSCAPE

21'-0" 11'-0"20'-0"

FA
C

E 
O

F 
BU

ID
IN

G

FA
C

E 
O

F 
BU

ID
IN

G

67
.3
'

(PRIMARY STREETS OF THE DEVELOPMENT)

MULTI-STORY
BUILDING

TURN
LANE

11'-0"

COMPLIANT AERIAL APPARATUS ACCESS SECTION

11'-0"

DRIVE
LANE

DRIVE
LANE

SIDEWALK &
LANDSCAPING

15'-0" 11'-0"

FA
C

E 
O

F 
BU

ID
IN

G

(LOOP ROAD)

MULTI-STORY
BUILDING

30.0'

36.9° 67.4°

8'-0"

37.5'

78.0'

30.0'
79.5'

17'-0"

TRAIL &
LANDSCAPING



EXISTING CHESTERFIELD M
ALL

MACY'S

SEARS

AMC

EX. D
RURY

RIVER

DILLARD'S

EX. H
YATT

STONEY

CLARKSON ROAD

INTERSTATE 64

INTERSTATE 64

CHESTERFIELD PARKWAY

CH
ES

TE
RF

IE
LD

 P
AR

KW
AY

PA
RK

 C
IR

CL
E 

DR
.

BU
RK

HA
RD

T 
 P

L.

E. CHESTERFIELD CTR.

LY
D

IA
 H

IL
L

VI
ST

A 
 P

L.

JUSTUS POST

FONTAINE RD

EXISTING
NON-SIGNALIZED
INSTERSECTION

EXISTING
SIGNALIZED

INSTERSECTION

EXISTING
SIGNALIZED

INSTERSECTION

EXISTING
NON-SIGNALIZED
INSTERSECTION

EXISTING
SIGNALIZED

INSTERSECTION

CHESTERFIELD

SHELBOURNE

Existing Woodland Tree Canopy Area = 180,755 s.f. (4.15 acres)

Existing Individual Tree Canopy Area = 104,884 s.f. (2.41 acres)

Total Existing Tree Canopy Area = 285,639 s.f. (6.56 acres)

Note: Refer to sheet TSD-5 for tree inventory chart.

Tree Stand Delineation Prepared
under direction of:
Brian Bage
Certified Arborist MW- 5033A

0 100 200 400

SCALE 1"=100'
Tree Stand Delineation

Jerald Saunders - Landscape Architect
MO License # LA-007 TSD-0

3/10/23

DATE:

KP

DRAWN BY:

RS

CHECKED BY:

813.102

JOB #:

Downtown Chesterfield
Tree Stand Delineation

M
AT

C
H

LI
N

E
M

AT
C

H
LI

N
E

MATCHLINEMATCHLINE

TSD-1 TSD-2

TSD-3 TSD-4

AutoCAD SHX Text
640

AutoCAD SHX Text
630

AutoCAD SHX Text
630

AutoCAD SHX Text
610

AutoCAD SHX Text
610

AutoCAD SHX Text
610

AutoCAD SHX Text
600

AutoCAD SHX Text
600

AutoCAD SHX Text
600

AutoCAD SHX Text
590

AutoCAD SHX Text
580

AutoCAD SHX Text
590

AutoCAD SHX Text
580

AutoCAD SHX Text
580

AutoCAD SHX Text
570

AutoCAD SHX Text
560

AutoCAD SHX Text
570

AutoCAD SHX Text
570

AutoCAD SHX Text
620

AutoCAD SHX Text
610

AutoCAD SHX Text
650

AutoCAD SHX Text
650

AutoCAD SHX Text
650

AutoCAD SHX Text
610

AutoCAD SHX Text
640

AutoCAD SHX Text
600

AutoCAD SHX Text
590

AutoCAD SHX Text
600

AutoCAD SHX Text
590

AutoCAD SHX Text
580

AutoCAD SHX Text
590

AutoCAD SHX Text
590

AutoCAD SHX Text
570

AutoCAD SHX Text
570

AutoCAD SHX Text
660

AutoCAD SHX Text
650

AutoCAD SHX Text
660

AutoCAD SHX Text
640

AutoCAD SHX Text
642

AutoCAD SHX Text
640

AutoCAD SHX Text
640

AutoCAD SHX Text
650

AutoCAD SHX Text
650

AutoCAD SHX Text
650

AutoCAD SHX Text
650

AutoCAD SHX Text
630

AutoCAD SHX Text
610

AutoCAD SHX Text
600

AutoCAD SHX Text
610

AutoCAD SHX Text
600

AutoCAD SHX Text
590

AutoCAD SHX Text
600

AutoCAD SHX Text
600

AutoCAD SHX Text
590

AutoCAD SHX Text
590

AutoCAD SHX Text
590

AutoCAD SHX Text
590

AutoCAD SHX Text
580

AutoCAD SHX Text
580

AutoCAD SHX Text
580

AutoCAD SHX Text
580

AutoCAD SHX Text
570

AutoCAD SHX Text
570

AutoCAD SHX Text
570

AutoCAD SHX Text
560

AutoCAD SHX Text
550

AutoCAD SHX Text
560

AutoCAD SHX Text
560

AutoCAD SHX Text
550

AutoCAD SHX Text
550

AutoCAD SHX Text
550

AutoCAD SHX Text
660

AutoCAD SHX Text
650

AutoCAD SHX Text
600

AutoCAD SHX Text
590

AutoCAD SHX Text
590

AutoCAD SHX Text
580

AutoCAD SHX Text
560

AutoCAD SHX Text
550

AutoCAD SHX Text
550

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT C-101B PB. 158 PG. 96 N/F TSG DOWNTOWN CHESTERFIELD REDEVELOPMENT LLC DB. 23012 PG. 1017 LOC.# 18S120071 #1 CHESTERFIELD MALL

AutoCAD SHX Text
N/F CHESTERFIELD VILLAGE INC. DB. 6633 PG. 158 LOC.# 18S130157

AutoCAD SHX Text
N/F SHDG CHESTERFIELD DB. 23322 PG. 318 LOC.# 18S130148

AutoCAD SHX Text
N/F CHESTERFIELD VILLAGE INC DB 6633 PG 158 18S410163 16185 W CHESTERFIELD PKWY

AutoCAD SHX Text
N/F CHESTERFIELD VILLAGE INC DB 10308 PG 1461 18S412039 16189 W CHESTERFIELD PKWY

AutoCAD SHX Text
N/F CHESTERFIELD VILLAGE INC DB 6633 PG 158 18S130157 700 CHESTERFIELD CTR

AutoCAD SHX Text
C110

AutoCAD SHX Text
C-113

AutoCAD SHX Text
C-111

AutoCAD SHX Text
C-112

AutoCAD SHX Text
N/F TSG DOWNTOWN  CHESTERFIELD REDEVELOPMENT DB 23926 PG 1664 18S120147 7 CHESTERFIELD MALL

AutoCAD SHX Text
N/F TSG DOWNTOWN  CHESTERFIELD REDEVELOPMENT DB 23926 PG 1664 18S120158 150 CHESTERFIELD MALL

AutoCAD SHX Text
N/F FIRST BAPTIST CHURCH  OF CHESTERFIELD DB 5232 PG 199 18S410228, 16187 W CHESTERFIELD PKWY

AutoCAD SHX Text
N/F TSG DOWNTOWN  CHESTERFIELD REDEVELOPMENT DB 23926 PG 1664 18S140277,  550 CHESTERFIELD CTR.

AutoCAD SHX Text
N/F GHEITH PROPERTIES LLC  MCKELVEY PROPERTIES DB 25224 PG 4741 18S140365,  500 CHESTERFIELD CTR.

AutoCAD SHX Text
N/F TSG DOWNTOWN  CHESTERFIELD REDEVELOPMENT DB 23926 PG 1664 18S120158 150 CHESTERFIELD MALL

AutoCAD SHX Text
N/F TSG DOWNTOWN  CHESTERFIELD REDEVELOPMENT DB 24746 PG 1586 18S120093 300 CHESTERFIELD CTR.

AutoCAD SHX Text
N/F TSG DOWNTOWN  CHESTERFIELD REDEVELOPMENT DB 23926 PG 1664 18S120158 148 CHESTERFIELD MALL

AutoCAD SHX Text
N/F TSG DOWNTOWN  CHESTERFIELD REDEVELOPMENT DB 25342 PG 3918 18S110137 49 CHESTERFIELD MALL

AutoCAD SHX Text
N/F TSG DOWNTOWN  CHESTERFIELD REDEVELOPMENT DB 23926 PG 1664 19S440172 955 CHESTERFIELD CTR.

AutoCAD SHX Text
N/F 400 CHEATERFIELD CTR DB 23680, PG 4219 18S140365,  400 CHESTERFIELD CTR.

AutoCAD SHX Text
N/F BISHOPS LANDING LLC DB 24512 PG 1009 18S1430041,  16123 CHESTERFIELD PKWY.

AutoCAD SHX Text
N/F TWIST ENTERPRISES LLC DB 22938 PG 1585 18S130070 595 CHESTERFIELD CTR

AutoCAD SHX Text
N/F DILLARD DEPARTMENT STORE DB 10743 PG 597 18S140288 100 CHESTERFIELD MALL

AutoCAD SHX Text
C-101D

AutoCAD SHX Text
C-106

AutoCAD SHX Text
SECTION B  LOT C101F

AutoCAD SHX Text
SECTION C

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT C-101F

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT C-101A

AutoCAD SHX Text
SECTION A  LOT C-101F

AutoCAD SHX Text
RESUBDIVISON LOT 101F OF PARCEL C-101F CHESTERFIELD VILLAGE  AREA A PHASE ONE PLAT ONE PB. 334, PG. 65

AutoCAD SHX Text
CHESTERFIELD VILLAGE   AREA A PHASE ONE PLAT ONE PB. 158, PG. 96-97

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 1

AutoCAD SHX Text
CHESTERFIELD VILLAGE AREA A PHASE ONE PLAT ONE  LOTS C-109 & C-208 LOT CONSOLIDATION PB. 367, PG. 521

AutoCAD SHX Text
C-102

AutoCAD SHX Text
CHESTERFIELD VILLAGE   AREA A PHASE ONE PLAT ONE PB. 158, PG. 96-97

AutoCAD SHX Text
C-107

AutoCAD SHX Text
VAC ROW DB. 8872, PG. 2431

AutoCAD SHX Text
PB. 345, PGS. 545 & 546

AutoCAD SHX Text
PB. 158, PGS. 96 & 97

AutoCAD SHX Text
10'w EASEMENT TO

AutoCAD SHX Text
SOUTHWESTERN BELL

AutoCAD SHX Text
TELEPHONE CO.

AutoCAD SHX Text
DB. 6647, PG. 1137

AutoCAD SHX Text
10'w EASEMENT TO

AutoCAD SHX Text
FEE FEE TRUNK SEWER

AutoCAD SHX Text
PB. 158, PGS. 58 & 59

AutoCAD SHX Text
15'w EASEMENT TO

AutoCAD SHX Text
ST. LOUIS COUNTY

AutoCAD SHX Text
WATER COMPANY

AutoCAD SHX Text
DB. 6714, PG. 623

AutoCAD SHX Text
10'w UTILITY

AutoCAD SHX Text
EASEMENT

AutoCAD SHX Text
10'w UTILITY

AutoCAD SHX Text
EASEMENT

AutoCAD SHX Text
10'w SAN.

AutoCAD SHX Text
SEWER ESMT

AutoCAD SHX Text
TO M.S.D.

AutoCAD SHX Text
10'w STORM SEWER

AutoCAD SHX Text
EASEMENT TO M.S.D.

AutoCAD SHX Text
10'w UTILITY

AutoCAD SHX Text
EASEMENT

AutoCAD SHX Text
10'w UTILITY

AutoCAD SHX Text
EASEMENT TO SBC

AutoCAD SHX Text
PB. 352, PG. 123

AutoCAD SHX Text
PB. 352, PG. 123

AutoCAD SHX Text
PB. 352, PG. 123

AutoCAD SHX Text
PB. 352, PG. 123

AutoCAD SHX Text
PB. 352, PG. 123

AutoCAD SHX Text
10'w EASEMENT TO

AutoCAD SHX Text
UNION ELECTRIC CO.

AutoCAD SHX Text
DB. 15429, PG. 1989

AutoCAD SHX Text
10'w EASEMENT TO

AutoCAD SHX Text
UNION ELECTRIC CO.

AutoCAD SHX Text
DB. 15429, PG. 1989

AutoCAD SHX Text
10'w ESMT TO

AutoCAD SHX Text
U.E. CO.

AutoCAD SHX Text
DB. 15429, PG. 1989

AutoCAD SHX Text
10'w EASEMENT TO

AutoCAD SHX Text
LACLEDE GAS CO.

AutoCAD SHX Text
DB. 15521, PG. 2985

AutoCAD SHX Text
DB. 17126, PG. 4414

AutoCAD SHX Text
15'w EASEMENT

AutoCAD SHX Text
TO UNION ELECTRIC CO.

AutoCAD SHX Text
DB. 16653, PG. 785

AutoCAD SHX Text
APPROXIMATE LOCATION

AutoCAD SHX Text
10'w EASEMENT TO

AutoCAD SHX Text
UNION ELECTRIC COMPANY

AutoCAD SHX Text
DB. 10897, PG. 563

AutoCAD SHX Text
(PART OF ESMT VACATED

AutoCAD SHX Text
BY DB. 15665, PG. 1085)

AutoCAD SHX Text
PB. 352, PG. 123

AutoCAD SHX Text
EASEMENT TO M.S.D.

AutoCAD SHX Text
10'w STORM SEWER

AutoCAD SHX Text
ACCESS EASEMENT

AutoCAD SHX Text
PB. 352, PG. 123

AutoCAD SHX Text
VARIABLE WIDTH CROSS

AutoCAD SHX Text
10'w EASEMENT TO

AutoCAD SHX Text
LACLEDE GAS CO.

AutoCAD SHX Text
DB. 6601, PG. 1937

AutoCAD SHX Text
11.5' ROADWAY MAINTENANCE AND UTILITY EASEMENT PB 166 PG 84

AutoCAD SHX Text
11.5' ROADWAY MAINTENANCE AND UTILITY EASEMENT PB 166 PG 84

AutoCAD SHX Text
10' WATER AND SOUTHWESTERN BELL EASEMENT PB 166 PG 84

AutoCAD SHX Text
10' WATER AND SOUTHWESTERN BELL EASEMENT PB 166 PG 84

AutoCAD SHX Text
10' EASEMENT PB 166 PG 84

AutoCAD SHX Text
10' STORM WATER ESMT PB 166 PG 84

AutoCAD SHX Text
15' W EASEMENT T2 DB 7021 PG 773

AutoCAD SHX Text
10' W EASEMENT T4 DB 7021 PG 773

AutoCAD SHX Text
APPROXIMATE LOCATION OF CHESTERFIELD DECK AS SHOWN ON DB 10746 PG 2409

AutoCAD SHX Text
VARIABLE WIDTH TRAFFIC EASEMENT DB 12272 PG 1990

AutoCAD SHX Text
VARIABLE WIDTH SIDEWALK ESMT DB 15718 PG 185

AutoCAD SHX Text
18' TSCL DB 15718 PG 185

AutoCAD SHX Text
VARIABLE WIDTH SIDEWALK ESMT DB 15718 PG 185

AutoCAD SHX Text
8.5' TSCL DB 15718 PG 185

AutoCAD SHX Text
NO RIGHT OF DIRECT ACCESS DB 7515 PG 1348

AutoCAD SHX Text
NO RIGHT OF DIRECT ACCESS DB 7534 PG 1263

AutoCAD SHX Text
VARIABLE WIDTH ROADWAY MAINTENANCE EASEMENT DB 12272 PG 1997

AutoCAD SHX Text
10' W WATER ESMT DB 8362 PG 714

AutoCAD SHX Text
10' W WATER ESMT DB 8362 PG 714

AutoCAD SHX Text
15' W WATER EASEMENT PB 279 PG 43

AutoCAD SHX Text
10' W  ELEC EASEMENT DB 8425 PG 1775

AutoCAD SHX Text
APPROXIMATE LOCATION ACCESS ROAD NO WIDTH GIVEN DB 8659 PG 639

AutoCAD SHX Text
VW INGRESS EGRESS AND PARKING EASEMENT  DB 12282 PG 1907

AutoCAD SHX Text
VARIABLE WIDTH SWBT DB 13246 PG 1373

AutoCAD SHX Text
VARIABLE WIDTH PRIMUSSE DB 17428 PG 1923

AutoCAD SHX Text
VARIABLE WIDTH MSD EASEMENT DB 17440 PG 3743

AutoCAD SHX Text
VW  ELEC EASEMENT DB 8425 PG 1781

AutoCAD SHX Text
VW INGRESS EGRESS PARKING EASEMENT DB 10292 PG 314

AutoCAD SHX Text
10' W EASEMENT PB 166 PG 84

AutoCAD SHX Text
APPROXIMATE LOCATION OF CHESTERFIELD DECK AS SHOWN ON DB 10746 PG 2409

AutoCAD SHX Text
ESMT. TO UNION ELEC. DB. 11128 PG. 1484

AutoCAD SHX Text
PB. 179 PG. 26 "T-6"

AutoCAD SHX Text
EASEMENT TO M.S.D. DB. 17857 PG. 1951

AutoCAD SHX Text
APPROX LOCATION

AutoCAD SHX Text
ESMT. TO LACLEDE GAS

AutoCAD SHX Text
DB. 6601 PG. 1927

AutoCAD SHX Text
25'w UTILITY ESMNT DB. 6692 PG. 781 25'w ST. LOUIS CO WATER DB. 6697 PG. 1484

AutoCAD SHX Text
PB. 179 PG. 26

AutoCAD SHX Text
SEWER EASEMENTS  DB. 7021, PG. 773

AutoCAD SHX Text
SEWER EASEMENTS  DB. 7021, PG. 773

AutoCAD SHX Text
SEWER EASEMENTS  DB. 7021, PG. 773

AutoCAD SHX Text
LACLEDE GAS ESMNT DB. 10995, PG. 2123

AutoCAD SHX Text
25'w UTILITY ESMT DB. 6692, pg. 781

AutoCAD SHX Text
SIDEWALK ESMNT DB. 15659 PG. 2003

AutoCAD SHX Text
APPROX LOCATION ELECTRIC EASEMENT  DB. 17831, PG. 6042

AutoCAD SHX Text
SEWER EASEMENTS  PB. 179, PG. 28-29

AutoCAD SHX Text
SEWER EASEMENTS  PB. 179, PG 26-27 PB. 179, PG. 28-29

AutoCAD SHX Text
SEWER EASEMENTS  PB. 179, PG 26-27

AutoCAD SHX Text
EASEMENT TO UNION ELEC. CO. DB. 20525 PG. 1602

AutoCAD SHX Text
10'w SEWER EASEMENT DB. 17857 PG. 1955

AutoCAD SHX Text
SIDEWALK EASEMENT DB. 15296 PG. 1881

AutoCAD SHX Text
10'w SEWER EASEMENT PB. 179 PG. 25

AutoCAD SHX Text
10'w SEWER EASEMENT PB. 179 PG. 25

AutoCAD SHX Text
10'w SEWER ESMT PB. 179 PG. 25

AutoCAD SHX Text
10'w SEWER EASEMENT PB. 179 PG. 25

AutoCAD SHX Text
10'w SEWER ESMT. PB. 179 PG. 25

AutoCAD SHX Text
11.5'w ROADWAY MAINT. AND UTILITY EASEMENT PB. 158 PGS. 96-97

AutoCAD SHX Text
25'w UTILITY EASEMENT DB. 6692 PG. 781

AutoCAD SHX Text
15'w ESEMT TO SBC PB. 179 PGS. 30-31 DB. 7029 PG. 628

AutoCAD SHX Text
15'w EASEMENT TO LACLEDE GAS CO. PB. 179 PGS. 30-31 DB. 7029 PG. 642

AutoCAD SHX Text
15'w EASEMENT TO U.E. CO. PB. 179 PGS. 30-31(DB. 7029, PG. 635)POSSIBLY VAC. BY  DB. 17567, PG. 1269

AutoCAD SHX Text
15'w EASEMENT TO UNION ELEC. CO. PB. 179 PGS. 30-31

AutoCAD SHX Text
10'w EASEMENT TO  UNION ELEC. CO. DB. 17567 PG. 1269 DOCUMENT STATES IT  VACATES DB. 7029, PG. 635

AutoCAD SHX Text
EASEMENT TO UNION ELEC. CO. DB. 19743 PG. 3441

AutoCAD SHX Text
10'w SEWER ESMT PB. 179 PG. 25

AutoCAD SHX Text
10'w SEWER ESMT PB. 179 PG. 25

AutoCAD SHX Text
10'w ESMT TO ST. LOUIS COUNTY WATER & SOUTHWESTERN BELL TELEPHONE PB. 158 PGS. 96-97

AutoCAD SHX Text
10'w EASEMENT TO  UNION ELEC. CO. DB. 17567 PG. 1269 DOCUMENT STATES IT  VACATES DB. 7029, PG. 635

AutoCAD SHX Text
PB. 179 PG. 26 "T-6"

AutoCAD SHX Text
PB. 179 PG. 26 "T-6"

AutoCAD SHX Text
PB. 179 PG. 26

AutoCAD SHX Text
PB. 179 PG. 26

AutoCAD SHX Text
PB. 179 PG. 26

AutoCAD SHX Text
W

AutoCAD SHX Text
W

AutoCAD SHX Text
W

AutoCAD SHX Text
550

AutoCAD SHX Text
560

AutoCAD SHX Text
N54°13'23"E

AutoCAD SHX Text
121.24'

AutoCAD SHX Text
N27°29'54"E

AutoCAD SHX Text
207.73'

AutoCAD SHX Text
N14°25'19"E

AutoCAD SHX Text
758.46'

AutoCAD SHX Text
N08°46'20"E

AutoCAD SHX Text
85.00'

AutoCAD SHX Text
S75°34'41"E

AutoCAD SHX Text
51.88'

AutoCAD SHX Text
S12°26'49"E

AutoCAD SHX Text
123.89'

AutoCAD SHX Text
N77°33'11"E

AutoCAD SHX Text
250.00'

AutoCAD SHX Text
S12°26'49"E

AutoCAD SHX Text
240.00'

AutoCAD SHX Text
N77°33'11"E

AutoCAD SHX Text
451.32'

AutoCAD SHX Text
S12°26'49"E

AutoCAD SHX Text
74.00'

AutoCAD SHX Text
N77°33'11"E

AutoCAD SHX Text
497.94'

AutoCAD SHX Text
S57°07'42"E

AutoCAD SHX Text
362.58'

AutoCAD SHX Text
S28°09'48"W

AutoCAD SHX Text
126.11'

AutoCAD SHX Text
S77°07'06"W

AutoCAD SHX Text
290.42'

AutoCAD SHX Text
N42°53'57"W

AutoCAD SHX Text
124.85'

AutoCAD SHX Text
N12°26'49"W

AutoCAD SHX Text
397.78'

AutoCAD SHX Text
S12°26'49"E

AutoCAD SHX Text
451.59'

AutoCAD SHX Text
S56°32'18"E

AutoCAD SHX Text
43.09'

AutoCAD SHX Text
S12°32'53"W

AutoCAD SHX Text
100.14'

AutoCAD SHX Text
S11°4144"E

AutoCAD SHX Text
41.56'

AutoCAD SHX Text
S34°27'25"W

AutoCAD SHX Text
386.00'

AutoCAD SHX Text
S23°33'07"W

AutoCAD SHX Text
181.60'

AutoCAD SHX Text
S31°08'12"W

AutoCAD SHX Text
828.33'

AutoCAD SHX Text
N82°51'36"W

AutoCAD SHX Text
126.21'

AutoCAD SHX Text
N02°24'55"E

AutoCAD SHX Text
153.50'

AutoCAD SHX Text
S52°55'05"E

AutoCAD SHX Text
837.00'

AutoCAD SHX Text
N18°15'05"W

AutoCAD SHX Text
305.01'

AutoCAD SHX Text
N64°14'40"W

AutoCAD SHX Text
41.67'

AutoCAD SHX Text
S44°50'42"W

AutoCAD SHX Text
10.00'

AutoCAD SHX Text
R=1060.17'

AutoCAD SHX Text
L=334.12'

AutoCAD SHX Text
S86°45'04"W

AutoCAD SHX Text
35.95'

AutoCAD SHX Text
R=432.37'

AutoCAD SHX Text
L=106.89'

AutoCAD SHX Text
R=338.26'

AutoCAD SHX Text
L=254.23'

AutoCAD SHX Text
N84°40'43"W

AutoCAD SHX Text
14.47'

AutoCAD SHX Text
R=763.50'

AutoCAD SHX Text
L=75.03'

AutoCAD SHX Text
N82°52'12"W

AutoCAD SHX Text
37.73'

AutoCAD SHX Text
CB=N73°49'52"W

AutoCAD SHX Text
Dist=332.74'

AutoCAD SHX Text
S85°41'13"W

AutoCAD SHX Text
26.89'

AutoCAD SHX Text
CB=S60°42'07"W

AutoCAD SHX Text
Dist=106.62'

AutoCAD SHX Text
CB=S73°46'00"W

AutoCAD SHX Text
Dist=248.28'

AutoCAD SHX Text
CB=N05°18'40"E

AutoCAD SHX Text
Dist=75.00'

AutoCAD SHX Text
R=373.00'

AutoCAD SHX Text
L=137.75'

AutoCAD SHX Text
CB=S70°43'56"E

AutoCAD SHX Text
Dist=136.97'

AutoCAD SHX Text
R=473.00'

AutoCAD SHX Text
L=151.21'

AutoCAD SHX Text
CB=S89°38'16"E

AutoCAD SHX Text
Dist=150.56'

AutoCAD SHX Text
N69°47'38"W

AutoCAD SHX Text
19.46'

AutoCAD SHX Text
S30°07'59"W

AutoCAD SHX Text
34.42'

AutoCAD SHX Text
R=495.58'

AutoCAD SHX Text
L=17.10'

AutoCAD SHX Text
CB=S29°09'07"W

AutoCAD SHX Text
Dist=17.10'

AutoCAD SHX Text
R=61.00'

AutoCAD SHX Text
L=31.10'

AutoCAD SHX Text
CB=S13°33'13"W

AutoCAD SHX Text
Dist=30.76'

AutoCAD SHX Text
S42°52'34"E

AutoCAD SHX Text
8.16'

AutoCAD SHX Text
341.40'

AutoCAD SHX Text
21.18'

AutoCAD SHX Text
14.01'

AutoCAD SHX Text
5.45'

AutoCAD SHX Text
N32°52'18"E

AutoCAD SHX Text
32.53'

AutoCAD SHX Text
N50°55'27"E

AutoCAD SHX Text
245.99'

AutoCAD SHX Text
R=515.00'

AutoCAD SHX Text
L=155.67'

AutoCAD SHX Text
CB=N32°57'40"W

AutoCAD SHX Text
Dist=155.08'

AutoCAD SHX Text
R=507.82'

AutoCAD SHX Text
L=160.61'

AutoCAD SHX Text
CB=N62°41'17"E

AutoCAD SHX Text
Dist=159.94'

AutoCAD SHX Text
N53°37'39"E

AutoCAD SHX Text
8.62'

AutoCAD SHX Text
R=262.50'

AutoCAD SHX Text
L=191.02'

AutoCAD SHX Text
CB=N74°28'28"E

AutoCAD SHX Text
Dist=186.83'

AutoCAD SHX Text
S84°40'43"E

AutoCAD SHX Text
14.48'

AutoCAD SHX Text
R=2914.93'

AutoCAD SHX Text
L=477.12'

AutoCAD SHX Text
CB=S40°27'57"E

AutoCAD SHX Text
Dist=476.59'

AutoCAD SHX Text
R=400.00'

AutoCAD SHX Text
L=307.06'

AutoCAD SHX Text
CB=N64°53'28"W

AutoCAD SHX Text
Dist=299.58'

AutoCAD SHX Text
S47°06'03"W

AutoCAD SHX Text
5.00'

AutoCAD SHX Text
S40°18'17"W

AutoCAD SHX Text
194.14'

AutoCAD SHX Text
R=2924.93'

AutoCAD SHX Text
L=231.76'

AutoCAD SHX Text
CB=S47°25'30"E

AutoCAD SHX Text
Dist=231.70'

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 4B

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 4A

AutoCAD SHX Text
N/F TSG DOWNTOWN  CHESTERFIELD REDEVELOPMENT DB 23926 PG 1664 18S120158 148 CHESTERFIELD MALL

AutoCAD SHX Text
C-101E

AutoCAD SHX Text
N/F

AutoCAD SHX Text
DPH CHESTERFIELD LLC

AutoCAD SHX Text
DB 19350 PG 1784

AutoCAD SHX Text
18S230433

AutoCAD SHX Text
55 E CHESTERFIELD CTR

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 1

AutoCAD SHX Text
N/F

AutoCAD SHX Text
HP CHESTERFIELD LLC

AutoCAD SHX Text
DB 20786 PG 615

AutoCAD SHX Text
18S120172

AutoCAD SHX Text
333 CHESTERFIELD CTR

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 2

AutoCAD SHX Text
PB 352, PG 123

AutoCAD SHX Text
BAP CHESTERFIELD

AutoCAD SHX Text
VILLAGE AREA A PHASE 1

AutoCAD SHX Text
PLAT 2

AutoCAD SHX Text
PB. 225, PG. 39

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 4B

AutoCAD SHX Text
PB 158, PG 98

AutoCAD SHX Text
P.O.B.

AutoCAD SHX Text
RPA-1A

AutoCAD SHX Text
C-108A

AutoCAD SHX Text
PB 158, PG 98

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT C-101C

AutoCAD SHX Text
PB 158, PG 98

AutoCAD SHX Text
AREA A

AutoCAD SHX Text
PHASE 1 PLAT 2

AutoCAD SHX Text
PB. 166, PG. 84

AutoCAD SHX Text
CHESTERFIELD VILLAGE

AutoCAD SHX Text
  AREA A PHASE ONE

AutoCAD SHX Text
PLAT ONE

AutoCAD SHX Text
PB 158, PG 96-97

AutoCAD SHX Text
WILDHORSE VILLAGE

AutoCAD SHX Text
PB. 359, PG. 579

AutoCAD SHX Text
P.O.B.

AutoCAD SHX Text
RPA-1B

AutoCAD SHX Text
VILLAGE

AutoCAD SHX Text
CHESTERFIELD

AutoCAD SHX Text
DRURY PLAZA

AutoCAD SHX Text
S59° 27' 09"E

AutoCAD SHX Text
N71° 18' 34"E

AutoCAD SHX Text
135.85'

AutoCAD SHX Text
S69° 05' 13"E

AutoCAD SHX Text
32.21'

AutoCAD SHX Text
N35° 05' 17"E 82.29'

AutoCAD SHX Text
N15° 05' 30"E 47.83'

AutoCAD SHX Text
N34° 59' 13"E 43.04'

AutoCAD SHX Text
S55° 53' 58"E 137.63'

AutoCAD SHX Text
N27° 03' 38"E 17.67'

AutoCAD SHX Text
11.64'

AutoCAD SHX Text
S34° 10' 41"W

AutoCAD SHX Text
180.51'

AutoCAD SHX Text
S59° 27' 09"E

AutoCAD SHX Text
84.03'

AutoCAD SHX Text
N10° 03' 51"E

AutoCAD SHX Text
1599.81'

AutoCAD SHX Text
CB=N10%%D49'04"E

AutoCAD SHX Text
DIST=79.87'

AutoCAD SHX Text
N11° 34' 17"E 735.22'

AutoCAD SHX Text
S33° 54' 11"E   408.23'

AutoCAD SHX Text
L=270.65'

AutoCAD SHX Text
R=1113.50'

AutoCAD SHX Text
L=79.87'

AutoCAD SHX Text
R=3036.50'

AutoCAD SHX Text
CB=N17%%D03'36"E

AutoCAD SHX Text
DIST=269.98'

AutoCAD SHX Text
S02° 31' 14"W

AutoCAD SHX Text
74.82'

AutoCAD SHX Text
N28° 18' 26"E

AutoCAD SHX Text
85.00'

AutoCAD SHX Text
S60° 52' 26"W

AutoCAD SHX Text
334.47'

AutoCAD SHX Text
S08° 46' 20"W

AutoCAD SHX Text
912.12'

AutoCAD SHX Text
827.12'

AutoCAD SHX Text
R=763.5'

AutoCAD SHX Text
L=45.90'

AutoCAD SHX Text
610

AutoCAD SHX Text
610

AutoCAD SHX Text
606

AutoCAD SHX Text
602

AutoCAD SHX Text
600

AutoCAD SHX Text
604

AutoCAD SHX Text
598

AutoCAD SHX Text
608

AutoCAD SHX Text
606

AutoCAD SHX Text
610

AutoCAD SHX Text
606

AutoCAD SHX Text
602

AutoCAD SHX Text
600

AutoCAD SHX Text
614

AutoCAD SHX Text
620

AutoCAD SHX Text
610

AutoCAD SHX Text
600

AutoCAD SHX Text
622

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
T



EXISTING CHESTERFIELD M
ALL

MACY'S

CH
ES

TE
RF

IE
LD

 P
AR

KW
AY

PA
RK

 C
IR

CL
E 

DR
.

JUSTUS POST

FONTAINE RD

CHESTERFIELD

SHELBOURNE

58
59

70

69

68

67

66

65

64

63

62

61

60

72

73

74

75 76
78

79

81

80

83

86

87

88
89

90

85

91
92

93

96 95

94

97

98
4 Juniper

9 x 3"
Juniper

9 x 3"
Juniper

99

100

101

105

102
103
104

107 110109

111

112

114

117
116

119

118

293

296

294

297

295

298

299

300

301

302

303

305

306

307

308

304

309

71

310

311

312
313

314

315

317

316

355 356 358

360

361 362

363 364

365
366

367
368

370369

372

376377

371

373

374

378

379

380

381

382

488

489

490

491

492

494

493

496

495

497

498

499

501

500

502

503

504 505

506

507

509

511

514

513

6 Holly

Two dead trees

3"-4" DBH Dogwood,
Boxelder, and Mulberry with
Juniper and honeysuckle

14" DBH Ash
in fair condition

12" DBH Ash
in fair condition

8" DBH Ash
in good condition

14" DBH Ash
in fair condition

8" DBH Redbud
in poor condition

8" DBH Ash
in poor condition

6" DBH Maple
in good condition18" DBH Pine

in excellent condition

18" DBH Pine
in excellent condition

16" DBH Ash
in fair condition

12" DBH Ash
in poor condition

512

510
508

84

82

77

13 x 3"
Juniper

106

108

375

357

Note: Refer to sheet TSD-5 for tree inventory chart.

Tree Stand Delineation Prepared
under direction of:
Brian Bage
Certified Arborist MW- 5033A

Jerald Saunders - Landscape Architect
MO License # LA-007 TSD-1

3/10/23

DATE:

KP

DRAWN BY:

RS

CHECKED BY:

813.102

JOB #:

M
AT

C
H

LI
N

E
M

AT
C

H
LI

N
E

MATCHLINEMATCHLINE

0 50 100 200

SCALE 1"=50'
Tree Stand Delineation - Southwest

Downtown Chesterfield
Tree Stand Delineation

AutoCAD SHX Text
630

AutoCAD SHX Text
610

AutoCAD SHX Text
610

AutoCAD SHX Text
600

AutoCAD SHX Text
580

AutoCAD SHX Text
620

AutoCAD SHX Text
610

AutoCAD SHX Text
600

AutoCAD SHX Text
590

AutoCAD SHX Text
580

AutoCAD SHX Text
590

AutoCAD SHX Text
590

AutoCAD SHX Text
600

AutoCAD SHX Text
590

AutoCAD SHX Text
590

AutoCAD SHX Text
590

AutoCAD SHX Text
590

AutoCAD SHX Text
580

AutoCAD SHX Text
580

AutoCAD SHX Text
580

AutoCAD SHX Text
570

AutoCAD SHX Text
570

AutoCAD SHX Text
590

AutoCAD SHX Text
590

AutoCAD SHX Text
580

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT C-101B PB. 158 PG. 96 N/F TSG DOWNTOWN CHESTERFIELD REDEVELOPMENT LLC DB. 23012 PG. 1017 LOC.# 18S120071 #1 CHESTERFIELD MALL

AutoCAD SHX Text
N/F CHESTERFIELD VILLAGE INC. DB. 6633 PG. 158 LOC.# 18S130157

AutoCAD SHX Text
N/F SHDG CHESTERFIELD DB. 23322 PG. 318 LOC.# 18S130148

AutoCAD SHX Text
C110

AutoCAD SHX Text
N/F TSG DOWNTOWN  CHESTERFIELD REDEVELOPMENT DB 23926 PG 1664 18S120147 7 CHESTERFIELD MALL

AutoCAD SHX Text
N/F TSG DOWNTOWN  CHESTERFIELD REDEVELOPMENT DB 25342 PG 3918 18S110137 49 CHESTERFIELD MALL

AutoCAD SHX Text
N/F BISHOPS LANDING LLC DB 24512 PG 1009 18S1430041,  16123 CHESTERFIELD PKWY.

AutoCAD SHX Text
SECTION B  LOT C101F

AutoCAD SHX Text
SECTION C

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT C-101F

AutoCAD SHX Text
RESUBDIVISON LOT 101F OF PARCEL C-101F CHESTERFIELD VILLAGE  AREA A PHASE ONE PLAT ONE PB. 334, PG. 65

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 1

AutoCAD SHX Text
CHESTERFIELD VILLAGE AREA A PHASE ONE PLAT ONE  LOTS C-109 & C-208 LOT CONSOLIDATION PB. 367, PG. 521

AutoCAD SHX Text
11.5' ROADWAY MAINTENANCE AND UTILITY EASEMENT PB 166 PG 84

AutoCAD SHX Text
10' WATER AND SOUTHWESTERN BELL EASEMENT PB 166 PG 84

AutoCAD SHX Text
VARIABLE WIDTH TRAFFIC EASEMENT DB 12272 PG 1990

AutoCAD SHX Text
VARIABLE WIDTH SIDEWALK ESMT DB 15718 PG 185

AutoCAD SHX Text
18' TSCL DB 15718 PG 185

AutoCAD SHX Text
VARIABLE WIDTH ROADWAY MAINTENANCE EASEMENT DB 12272 PG 1997

AutoCAD SHX Text
APPROXIMATE LOCATION OF CHESTERFIELD DECK AS SHOWN ON DB 10746 PG 2409

AutoCAD SHX Text
ESMT. TO UNION ELEC. DB. 11128 PG. 1484

AutoCAD SHX Text
LACLEDE GAS ESMNT DB. 10995, PG. 2123

AutoCAD SHX Text
SIDEWALK ESMNT DB. 15659 PG. 2003

AutoCAD SHX Text
SEWER EASEMENTS  PB. 179, PG 26-27 PB. 179, PG. 28-29

AutoCAD SHX Text
SEWER EASEMENTS  PB. 179, PG 26-27

AutoCAD SHX Text
EASEMENT TO UNION ELEC. CO. DB. 20525 PG. 1602

AutoCAD SHX Text
SIDEWALK EASEMENT DB. 15296 PG. 1881

AutoCAD SHX Text
10'w SEWER EASEMENT PB. 179 PG. 25

AutoCAD SHX Text
10'w SEWER ESMT. PB. 179 PG. 25

AutoCAD SHX Text
11.5'w ROADWAY MAINT. AND UTILITY EASEMENT PB. 158 PGS. 96-97

AutoCAD SHX Text
15'w EASEMENT TO LACLEDE GAS CO. PB. 179 PGS. 30-31 DB. 7029 PG. 642

AutoCAD SHX Text
15'w EASEMENT TO U.E. CO. PB. 179 PGS. 30-31(DB. 7029, PG. 635)POSSIBLY VAC. BY  DB. 17567, PG. 1269

AutoCAD SHX Text
15'w EASEMENT TO UNION ELEC. CO. PB. 179 PGS. 30-31

AutoCAD SHX Text
EASEMENT TO UNION ELEC. CO. DB. 19743 PG. 3441

AutoCAD SHX Text
10'w SEWER ESMT PB. 179 PG. 25

AutoCAD SHX Text
10'w ESMT TO ST. LOUIS COUNTY WATER & SOUTHWESTERN BELL TELEPHONE PB. 158 PGS. 96-97

AutoCAD SHX Text
N27°29'54"E

AutoCAD SHX Text
207.73'

AutoCAD SHX Text
N14°25'19"E

AutoCAD SHX Text
758.46'

AutoCAD SHX Text
N82°51'36"W

AutoCAD SHX Text
126.21'

AutoCAD SHX Text
N02°24'55"E

AutoCAD SHX Text
153.50'

AutoCAD SHX Text
S52°55'05"E

AutoCAD SHX Text
837.00'

AutoCAD SHX Text
N18°15'05"W

AutoCAD SHX Text
305.01'

AutoCAD SHX Text
N64°14'40"W

AutoCAD SHX Text
41.67'

AutoCAD SHX Text
R=1060.17'

AutoCAD SHX Text
L=334.12'

AutoCAD SHX Text
S86°45'04"W

AutoCAD SHX Text
35.95'

AutoCAD SHX Text
R=432.37'

AutoCAD SHX Text
L=106.89'

AutoCAD SHX Text
R=338.26'

AutoCAD SHX Text
L=254.23'

AutoCAD SHX Text
N84°40'43"W

AutoCAD SHX Text
14.47'

AutoCAD SHX Text
N82°52'12"W

AutoCAD SHX Text
37.73'

AutoCAD SHX Text
CB=N73°49'52"W

AutoCAD SHX Text
Dist=332.74'

AutoCAD SHX Text
CB=S60°42'07"W

AutoCAD SHX Text
Dist=106.62'

AutoCAD SHX Text
CB=S73°46'00"W

AutoCAD SHX Text
Dist=248.28'

AutoCAD SHX Text
Dist=75.00'

AutoCAD SHX Text
R=507.82'

AutoCAD SHX Text
L=160.61'

AutoCAD SHX Text
CB=N62°41'17"E

AutoCAD SHX Text
Dist=159.94'

AutoCAD SHX Text
N53°37'39"E

AutoCAD SHX Text
8.62'

AutoCAD SHX Text
R=262.50'

AutoCAD SHX Text
L=191.02'

AutoCAD SHX Text
CB=N74°28'28"E

AutoCAD SHX Text
Dist=186.83'

AutoCAD SHX Text
S84°40'43"E

AutoCAD SHX Text
14.48'

AutoCAD SHX Text
P.O.B.

AutoCAD SHX Text
RPA-1A

AutoCAD SHX Text
C-108A

AutoCAD SHX Text
PB 158, PG 98

AutoCAD SHX Text
N11° 34' 17"E 735.22'

AutoCAD SHX Text
R=763.5'

AutoCAD SHX Text
L=45.90'



CHESTERFIELD PARKWAY

PA
RK

 C
IR

CL
E 

DR
.

BU
RK

HA
RD

T 
 P

L.

VI
ST

A 
 P

L.

EXISTING
NON-SIGNALIZED
INSTERSECTION

EXISTING
SIGNALIZED

INSTERSECTION

EXISTING
NON-SIGNALIZED
INSTERSECTION

EXISTING
SIGNALIZED

INSTERSECTION

M

515

112

114

113

115

117
116

120
121

122

123

124

126

125

127

128

129

130

134

131

133

139

138

466

467

468
470

475

476
478

477

480

479
481

483

484

485

486

487

511

530

533

534

535

536

537 540

541542

543

545

546

547

548

551

549

550552
553

554

555

471

474

472

10"-16" DBH Oak, Elm, and
Mulberry in fair condition

12"-20" DBH Oak with
Mulberry understory and some
Dogwood in fair condition

Two dead trees

6"-12" DBH Pine
in good condition

544

15" DBH  Hawthorn
in fair condition

12" DBH  Hawthorn
in fair condition

14" DBH Ash
in fair condition

14" DBH Ash
in fair condition

12" DBH Ash
in fair condition

in good condition

8" DBH Redbud
in poor condition

16" DBH Ash
in fair condition

20" DBH Ash
in fair condition

20" DBH Ash
in fair condition

MM

556

557

538

529

526 527

525

539

469

473

482

528

522

132

Note: Refer to sheet TSD-5 for tree inventory chart.

Tree Stand Delineation Prepared
under direction of:
Brian Bage
Certified Arborist MW- 5033A

Jerald Saunders - Landscape Architect
MO License # LA-007 TSD-2

3/10/23

DATE:

KP

DRAWN BY:

RS

CHECKED BY:

813.102

JOB #:

M
AT

C
H

LI
N

E

MATCHLINE

MATCHLINE

M
AT

C
H

LI
N

E

0 50 100 200

SCALE 1"=50'
Tree Stand Delineation - Northwest

Downtown Chesterfield
Tree Stand Delineation

AutoCAD SHX Text
610

AutoCAD SHX Text
590

AutoCAD SHX Text
580

AutoCAD SHX Text
560

AutoCAD SHX Text
570

AutoCAD SHX Text
570

AutoCAD SHX Text
560

AutoCAD SHX Text
550

AutoCAD SHX Text
560

AutoCAD SHX Text
550

AutoCAD SHX Text
550

AutoCAD SHX Text
550

AutoCAD SHX Text
560

AutoCAD SHX Text
550

AutoCAD SHX Text
550

AutoCAD SHX Text
N/F CHESTERFIELD VILLAGE INC DB 6633 PG 158 18S410163 16185 W CHESTERFIELD PKWY

AutoCAD SHX Text
N/F CHESTERFIELD VILLAGE INC DB 10308 PG 1461 18S412039 16189 W CHESTERFIELD PKWY

AutoCAD SHX Text
N/F CHESTERFIELD VILLAGE INC DB 6633 PG 158 18S130157 700 CHESTERFIELD CTR

AutoCAD SHX Text
C-113

AutoCAD SHX Text
C-111

AutoCAD SHX Text
C-112

AutoCAD SHX Text
N/F FIRST BAPTIST CHURCH  OF CHESTERFIELD DB 5232 PG 199 18S410228, 16187 W CHESTERFIELD PKWY

AutoCAD SHX Text
N/F TWIST ENTERPRISES LLC DB 22938 PG 1585 18S130070 595 CHESTERFIELD CTR

AutoCAD SHX Text
N/F DILLARD DEPARTMENT STORE DB 10743 PG 597 18S140288 100 CHESTERFIELD MALL

AutoCAD SHX Text
SECTION B  LOT C101F

AutoCAD SHX Text
11.5' ROADWAY MAINTENANCE AND UTILITY EASEMENT PB 166 PG 84

AutoCAD SHX Text
10' WATER AND SOUTHWESTERN BELL EASEMENT PB 166 PG 84

AutoCAD SHX Text
10' EASEMENT PB 166 PG 84

AutoCAD SHX Text
10' STORM WATER ESMT PB 166 PG 84

AutoCAD SHX Text
15' W EASEMENT T2 DB 7021 PG 773

AutoCAD SHX Text
10' W EASEMENT T4 DB 7021 PG 773

AutoCAD SHX Text
APPROXIMATE LOCATION OF CHESTERFIELD DECK AS SHOWN ON DB 10746 PG 2409

AutoCAD SHX Text
VARIABLE WIDTH SIDEWALK ESMT DB 15718 PG 185

AutoCAD SHX Text
8.5' TSCL DB 15718 PG 185

AutoCAD SHX Text
10' W WATER ESMT DB 8362 PG 714

AutoCAD SHX Text
15' W WATER EASEMENT PB 279 PG 43

AutoCAD SHX Text
APPROXIMATE LOCATION ACCESS ROAD NO WIDTH GIVEN DB 8659 PG 639

AutoCAD SHX Text
VW INGRESS EGRESS AND PARKING EASEMENT  DB 12282 PG 1907

AutoCAD SHX Text
VARIABLE WIDTH SWBT DB 13246 PG 1373

AutoCAD SHX Text
VARIABLE WIDTH PRIMUSSE DB 17428 PG 1923

AutoCAD SHX Text
VARIABLE WIDTH MSD EASEMENT DB 17440 PG 3743

AutoCAD SHX Text
10' W EASEMENT PB 166 PG 84

AutoCAD SHX Text
SEWER EASEMENTS  PB. 179, PG. 28-29

AutoCAD SHX Text
550

AutoCAD SHX Text
N14°25'19"E

AutoCAD SHX Text
N08°46'20"E

AutoCAD SHX Text
85.00'

AutoCAD SHX Text
S75°34'41"E

AutoCAD SHX Text
51.88'

AutoCAD SHX Text
S12°26'49"E

AutoCAD SHX Text
123.89'

AutoCAD SHX Text
N77°33'11"E

AutoCAD SHX Text
250.00'

AutoCAD SHX Text
S12°26'49"E

AutoCAD SHX Text
240.00'

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 4B

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 4A

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 4B

AutoCAD SHX Text
AREA A

AutoCAD SHX Text
PHASE 1 PLAT 2

AutoCAD SHX Text
PB. 166, PG. 84

AutoCAD SHX Text
WILDHORSE VILLAGE

AutoCAD SHX Text
PB. 359, PG. 579

AutoCAD SHX Text
VILLAGE

AutoCAD SHX Text
CHESTERFIELD

AutoCAD SHX Text
N71° 18' 34"E

AutoCAD SHX Text
135.85'

AutoCAD SHX Text
S69° 05' 13"E

AutoCAD SHX Text
32.21'

AutoCAD SHX Text
N35° 05' 17"E 82.29'

AutoCAD SHX Text
N15° 05' 30"E 47.83'

AutoCAD SHX Text
N34° 59' 13"E 43.04'

AutoCAD SHX Text
S55° 53' 58"E 137.63'

AutoCAD SHX Text
N27° 03' 38"E 17.67'

AutoCAD SHX Text
S34° 10' 41"W

AutoCAD SHX Text
180.51'

AutoCAD SHX Text
N10° 03' 51"E

AutoCAD SHX Text
1599.81'

AutoCAD SHX Text
CB=N10%%D49'04"E

AutoCAD SHX Text
DIST=79.87'

AutoCAD SHX Text
L=270.65'

AutoCAD SHX Text
R=1113.50'

AutoCAD SHX Text
L=79.87'

AutoCAD SHX Text
R=3036.50'

AutoCAD SHX Text
CB=N17%%D03'36"E

AutoCAD SHX Text
DIST=269.98'

AutoCAD SHX Text
S08° 46' 20"W

AutoCAD SHX Text
912.12'

AutoCAD SHX Text
827.12'

AutoCAD SHX Text
610

AutoCAD SHX Text
610

AutoCAD SHX Text
606

AutoCAD SHX Text
602

AutoCAD SHX Text
600

AutoCAD SHX Text
610

AutoCAD SHX Text
600

AutoCAD SHX Text
622



EXISTING CHESTERFIELD M
ALL

SEARS

AMC

EX. D
RURY

RIVER

EX. H
YATT

STONEY

CLARKSON ROAD

E. CHESTERFIELD CTR.

264

265

210
212213

214
215

218

226

227

228

230231232

225

229

233

234

235

238

236

237

240241

242

243

244245

246
250

247248249
251

252
253

257

254

255

256

263

258 259

260
261

262

267

266

268

269

274
273

272
271

275
276

277 278
279

280

281

282
283

284

285

286

287

288

289

290

292

293

291

318

319

320

321

323

324

322

326
327

328
329

330
331

332

334

337

333

335
336

339
338

341

342

343
344

348

349
350

351
352

353 354

355 356 358

359

360

382

384

385

386

387

388

389

390

391
393

394

399

400

401

346

345

561560
559

558

398397

395
396

392

407

405

403

270339

340

325

239

347

357

Note: Refer to sheet TSD-5 for tree inventory chart.
Jerald Saunders - Landscape Architect
MO License # LA-007 TSD-3

3/10/23

DATE:

KP

DRAWN BY:

RS

CHECKED BY:

813.102

JOB #:

MATCHLINEMATCHLINE

M
AT

C
H

LI
N

E

M
AT

C
H

LI
N

E

Tree Stand Delineation Prepared
under direction of:
Brian Bage
Certified Arborist MW- 5033A

0 50 100 200

SCALE 1"=50'
Tree Stand Delineation - Southeast

Downtown Chesterfield
Tree Stand Delineation

AutoCAD SHX Text
640

AutoCAD SHX Text
630

AutoCAD SHX Text
650

AutoCAD SHX Text
650

AutoCAD SHX Text
650

AutoCAD SHX Text
660

AutoCAD SHX Text
650

AutoCAD SHX Text
660

AutoCAD SHX Text
642

AutoCAD SHX Text
640

AutoCAD SHX Text
650

AutoCAD SHX Text
650

AutoCAD SHX Text
650

AutoCAD SHX Text
660

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT C-101B PB. 158 PG. 96 N/F TSG DOWNTOWN CHESTERFIELD REDEVELOPMENT LLC DB. 23012 PG. 1017 LOC.# 18S120071 #1 CHESTERFIELD MALL

AutoCAD SHX Text
N/F TSG DOWNTOWN  CHESTERFIELD REDEVELOPMENT DB 23926 PG 1664 18S120147 7 CHESTERFIELD MALL

AutoCAD SHX Text
N/F TSG DOWNTOWN  CHESTERFIELD REDEVELOPMENT DB 23926 PG 1664 18S120158 150 CHESTERFIELD MALL

AutoCAD SHX Text
N/F TSG DOWNTOWN  CHESTERFIELD REDEVELOPMENT DB 23926 PG 1664 18S120158 150 CHESTERFIELD MALL

AutoCAD SHX Text
N/F TSG DOWNTOWN  CHESTERFIELD REDEVELOPMENT DB 24746 PG 1586 18S120093 300 CHESTERFIELD CTR.

AutoCAD SHX Text
N/F TSG DOWNTOWN  CHESTERFIELD REDEVELOPMENT DB 23926 PG 1664 18S120158 148 CHESTERFIELD MALL

AutoCAD SHX Text
N/F TSG DOWNTOWN  CHESTERFIELD REDEVELOPMENT DB 23926 PG 1664 19S440172 955 CHESTERFIELD CTR.

AutoCAD SHX Text
N/F 400 CHEATERFIELD CTR DB 23680, PG 4219 18S140365,  400 CHESTERFIELD CTR.

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT C-101A

AutoCAD SHX Text
SECTION A  LOT C-101F

AutoCAD SHX Text
RESUBDIVISON LOT 101F OF PARCEL C-101F CHESTERFIELD VILLAGE  AREA A PHASE ONE PLAT ONE PB. 334, PG. 65

AutoCAD SHX Text
CHESTERFIELD VILLAGE   AREA A PHASE ONE PLAT ONE PB. 158, PG. 96-97

AutoCAD SHX Text
C-102

AutoCAD SHX Text
VAC ROW DB. 8872, PG. 2431

AutoCAD SHX Text
PB. 345, PGS. 545 & 546

AutoCAD SHX Text
PB. 158, PGS. 96 & 97

AutoCAD SHX Text
10'w EASEMENT TO

AutoCAD SHX Text
FEE FEE TRUNK SEWER

AutoCAD SHX Text
PB. 158, PGS. 58 & 59

AutoCAD SHX Text
10'w UTILITY

AutoCAD SHX Text
EASEMENT

AutoCAD SHX Text
10'w SAN.

AutoCAD SHX Text
SEWER ESMT

AutoCAD SHX Text
TO M.S.D.

AutoCAD SHX Text
10'w STORM SEWER

AutoCAD SHX Text
EASEMENT TO M.S.D.

AutoCAD SHX Text
10'w UTILITY

AutoCAD SHX Text
EASEMENT

AutoCAD SHX Text
PB. 352, PG. 123

AutoCAD SHX Text
PB. 352, PG. 123

AutoCAD SHX Text
PB. 352, PG. 123

AutoCAD SHX Text
10'w EASEMENT TO

AutoCAD SHX Text
UNION ELECTRIC CO.

AutoCAD SHX Text
DB. 15429, PG. 1989

AutoCAD SHX Text
10'w ESMT TO

AutoCAD SHX Text
U.E. CO.

AutoCAD SHX Text
DB. 15429, PG. 1989

AutoCAD SHX Text
DB. 17126, PG. 4414

AutoCAD SHX Text
15'w EASEMENT

AutoCAD SHX Text
TO UNION ELECTRIC CO.

AutoCAD SHX Text
DB. 16653, PG. 785

AutoCAD SHX Text
PB. 352, PG. 123

AutoCAD SHX Text
EASEMENT TO M.S.D.

AutoCAD SHX Text
10'w STORM SEWER

AutoCAD SHX Text
ACCESS EASEMENT

AutoCAD SHX Text
PB. 352, PG. 123

AutoCAD SHX Text
VARIABLE WIDTH CROSS

AutoCAD SHX Text
PB. 179 PG. 26 "T-6"

AutoCAD SHX Text
EASEMENT TO M.S.D. DB. 17857 PG. 1951

AutoCAD SHX Text
APPROX LOCATION

AutoCAD SHX Text
ESMT. TO LACLEDE GAS

AutoCAD SHX Text
DB. 6601 PG. 1927

AutoCAD SHX Text
25'w UTILITY ESMNT DB. 6692 PG. 781 25'w ST. LOUIS CO WATER DB. 6697 PG. 1484

AutoCAD SHX Text
PB. 179 PG. 26

AutoCAD SHX Text
SEWER EASEMENTS  DB. 7021, PG. 773

AutoCAD SHX Text
SEWER EASEMENTS  DB. 7021, PG. 773

AutoCAD SHX Text
25'w UTILITY ESMT DB. 6692, pg. 781

AutoCAD SHX Text
APPROX LOCATION ELECTRIC EASEMENT  DB. 17831, PG. 6042

AutoCAD SHX Text
10'w SEWER EASEMENT DB. 17857 PG. 1955

AutoCAD SHX Text
10'w SEWER EASEMENT PB. 179 PG. 25

AutoCAD SHX Text
10'w SEWER ESMT PB. 179 PG. 25

AutoCAD SHX Text
10'w SEWER EASEMENT PB. 179 PG. 25

AutoCAD SHX Text
25'w UTILITY EASEMENT DB. 6692 PG. 781

AutoCAD SHX Text
15'w ESEMT TO SBC PB. 179 PGS. 30-31 DB. 7029 PG. 628

AutoCAD SHX Text
10'w EASEMENT TO  UNION ELEC. CO. DB. 17567 PG. 1269 DOCUMENT STATES IT  VACATES DB. 7029, PG. 635

AutoCAD SHX Text
10'w SEWER ESMT PB. 179 PG. 25

AutoCAD SHX Text
10'w EASEMENT TO  UNION ELEC. CO. DB. 17567 PG. 1269 DOCUMENT STATES IT  VACATES DB. 7029, PG. 635

AutoCAD SHX Text
PB. 179 PG. 26 "T-6"

AutoCAD SHX Text
PB. 179 PG. 26 "T-6"

AutoCAD SHX Text
PB. 179 PG. 26

AutoCAD SHX Text
PB. 179 PG. 26

AutoCAD SHX Text
PB. 179 PG. 26

AutoCAD SHX Text
S12°26'49"E

AutoCAD SHX Text
N77°33'11"E

AutoCAD SHX Text
497.94'

AutoCAD SHX Text
S28°09'48"W

AutoCAD SHX Text
126.11'

AutoCAD SHX Text
S77°07'06"W

AutoCAD SHX Text
290.42'

AutoCAD SHX Text
S12°26'49"E

AutoCAD SHX Text
451.59'

AutoCAD SHX Text
S56°32'18"E

AutoCAD SHX Text
43.09'

AutoCAD SHX Text
S12°32'53"W

AutoCAD SHX Text
100.14'

AutoCAD SHX Text
S11°4144"E

AutoCAD SHX Text
41.56'

AutoCAD SHX Text
S34°27'25"W

AutoCAD SHX Text
386.00'

AutoCAD SHX Text
S23°33'07"W

AutoCAD SHX Text
181.60'

AutoCAD SHX Text
S31°08'12"W

AutoCAD SHX Text
828.33'

AutoCAD SHX Text
R=1060.17'

AutoCAD SHX Text
L=334.12'

AutoCAD SHX Text
CB=N73°49'52"W

AutoCAD SHX Text
Dist=332.74'

AutoCAD SHX Text
S85°41'13"W

AutoCAD SHX Text
26.89'

AutoCAD SHX Text
R=373.00'

AutoCAD SHX Text
L=137.75'

AutoCAD SHX Text
CB=S70°43'56"E

AutoCAD SHX Text
Dist=136.97'

AutoCAD SHX Text
R=473.00'

AutoCAD SHX Text
L=151.21'

AutoCAD SHX Text
CB=S89°38'16"E

AutoCAD SHX Text
Dist=150.56'

AutoCAD SHX Text
N69°47'38"W

AutoCAD SHX Text
19.46'

AutoCAD SHX Text
S30°07'59"W

AutoCAD SHX Text
34.42'

AutoCAD SHX Text
R=495.58'

AutoCAD SHX Text
L=17.10'

AutoCAD SHX Text
CB=S29°09'07"W

AutoCAD SHX Text
Dist=17.10'

AutoCAD SHX Text
21.18'

AutoCAD SHX Text
14.01'

AutoCAD SHX Text
5.45'

AutoCAD SHX Text
R=515.00'

AutoCAD SHX Text
L=155.67'

AutoCAD SHX Text
CB=N32°57'40"W

AutoCAD SHX Text
Dist=155.08'

AutoCAD SHX Text
N/F TSG DOWNTOWN  CHESTERFIELD REDEVELOPMENT DB 23926 PG 1664 18S120158 148 CHESTERFIELD MALL

AutoCAD SHX Text
N/F

AutoCAD SHX Text
DPH CHESTERFIELD LLC

AutoCAD SHX Text
DB 19350 PG 1784

AutoCAD SHX Text
18S230433

AutoCAD SHX Text
55 E CHESTERFIELD CTR

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 1

AutoCAD SHX Text
N/F

AutoCAD SHX Text
HP CHESTERFIELD LLC

AutoCAD SHX Text
DB 20786 PG 615

AutoCAD SHX Text
18S120172

AutoCAD SHX Text
333 CHESTERFIELD CTR

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 2

AutoCAD SHX Text
PB 352, PG 123

AutoCAD SHX Text
PB 158, PG 98

AutoCAD SHX Text
DRURY PLAZA

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
T



DILLARD'S

INTERSTATE 64

INTERSTATE 64

25

24

27

28 29

22

11 10

51

127

128

129

210
212

218

224

217

383

384

399

400

401

402

404

408
406

409

411

413
415

420

422

423

424

425
426

427

428

429

430 431

432

434

433

435

436

437

438

439

440

441

442

444 443445

446

447448451 450

458

459

461

516

517

518

519

521

524

530

533

532

23

8 x Juniper

12" and 14" DBH
Pine in fair condition

3 Juniper

MM

531
523

529

526 527

525

398

421

412

419418417

416
414

410

407

405

403

9

8

7
6

4
3

2
1

449

460

528

522

Note: Refer to sheet TSD-5 for tree inventory chart.
Jerald Saunders - Landscape Architect
MO License # LA-007 TSD-4

3/10/23

DATE:

KP

DRAWN BY:

RS

CHECKED BY:

813.102

JOB #:

M
AT

C
H

LI
N

E
MATCHLINEMATCHLINE

Tree Stand Delineation Prepared
under direction of:
Brian Bage
Certified Arborist MW- 5033A

0 50 100 200

SCALE 1"=50'
Tree Stand Delineation - Northeast

M
AT

C
H

LI
N

E

Downtown Chesterfield
Tree Stand Delineation

AutoCAD SHX Text
610

AutoCAD SHX Text
600

AutoCAD SHX Text
600

AutoCAD SHX Text
590

AutoCAD SHX Text
580

AutoCAD SHX Text
570

AutoCAD SHX Text
570

AutoCAD SHX Text
610

AutoCAD SHX Text
600

AutoCAD SHX Text
590

AutoCAD SHX Text
570

AutoCAD SHX Text
570

AutoCAD SHX Text
640

AutoCAD SHX Text
630

AutoCAD SHX Text
610

AutoCAD SHX Text
600

AutoCAD SHX Text
610

AutoCAD SHX Text
600

AutoCAD SHX Text
590

AutoCAD SHX Text
600

AutoCAD SHX Text
580

AutoCAD SHX Text
560

AutoCAD SHX Text
600

AutoCAD SHX Text
N/F FIRST BAPTIST CHURCH  OF CHESTERFIELD DB 5232 PG 199 18S410228, 16187 W CHESTERFIELD PKWY

AutoCAD SHX Text
N/F TSG DOWNTOWN  CHESTERFIELD REDEVELOPMENT DB 23926 PG 1664 18S140277,  550 CHESTERFIELD CTR.

AutoCAD SHX Text
N/F GHEITH PROPERTIES LLC  MCKELVEY PROPERTIES DB 25224 PG 4741 18S140365,  500 CHESTERFIELD CTR.

AutoCAD SHX Text
N/F TSG DOWNTOWN  CHESTERFIELD REDEVELOPMENT DB 23926 PG 1664 18S120158 150 CHESTERFIELD MALL

AutoCAD SHX Text
N/F TWIST ENTERPRISES LLC DB 22938 PG 1585 18S130070 595 CHESTERFIELD CTR

AutoCAD SHX Text
N/F DILLARD DEPARTMENT STORE DB 10743 PG 597 18S140288 100 CHESTERFIELD MALL

AutoCAD SHX Text
C-101D

AutoCAD SHX Text
C-106

AutoCAD SHX Text
CHESTERFIELD VILLAGE   AREA A PHASE ONE PLAT ONE PB. 158, PG. 96-97

AutoCAD SHX Text
C-107

AutoCAD SHX Text
NO RIGHT OF DIRECT ACCESS DB 7515 PG 1348

AutoCAD SHX Text
NO RIGHT OF DIRECT ACCESS DB 7534 PG 1263

AutoCAD SHX Text
10' W WATER ESMT DB 8362 PG 714

AutoCAD SHX Text
10' W WATER ESMT DB 8362 PG 714

AutoCAD SHX Text
10' W  ELEC EASEMENT DB 8425 PG 1775

AutoCAD SHX Text
VW  ELEC EASEMENT DB 8425 PG 1781

AutoCAD SHX Text
VW INGRESS EGRESS PARKING EASEMENT DB 10292 PG 314

AutoCAD SHX Text
SEWER EASEMENTS  DB. 7021, PG. 773

AutoCAD SHX Text
W

AutoCAD SHX Text
W

AutoCAD SHX Text
W

AutoCAD SHX Text
560

AutoCAD SHX Text
N54°13'23"E

AutoCAD SHX Text
121.24'

AutoCAD SHX Text
N77°33'11"E

AutoCAD SHX Text
451.32'

AutoCAD SHX Text
S12°26'49"E

AutoCAD SHX Text
74.00'

AutoCAD SHX Text
S57°07'42"E

AutoCAD SHX Text
362.58'

AutoCAD SHX Text
N42°53'57"W

AutoCAD SHX Text
124.85'

AutoCAD SHX Text
N12°26'49"W

AutoCAD SHX Text
397.78'

AutoCAD SHX Text
S44°50'42"W

AutoCAD SHX Text
10.00'

AutoCAD SHX Text
R=61.00'

AutoCAD SHX Text
L=31.10'

AutoCAD SHX Text
CB=S13°33'13"W

AutoCAD SHX Text
Dist=30.76'

AutoCAD SHX Text
S42°52'34"E

AutoCAD SHX Text
8.16'

AutoCAD SHX Text
341.40'

AutoCAD SHX Text
21.18'

AutoCAD SHX Text
N32°52'18"E

AutoCAD SHX Text
32.53'

AutoCAD SHX Text
N50°55'27"E

AutoCAD SHX Text
245.99'

AutoCAD SHX Text
R=515.00'

AutoCAD SHX Text
L=155.67'

AutoCAD SHX Text
CB=N32°57'40"W

AutoCAD SHX Text
Dist=155.08'

AutoCAD SHX Text
R=2914.93'

AutoCAD SHX Text
L=477.12'

AutoCAD SHX Text
CB=S40°27'57"E

AutoCAD SHX Text
Dist=476.59'

AutoCAD SHX Text
R=400.00'

AutoCAD SHX Text
L=307.06'

AutoCAD SHX Text
CB=N64°53'28"W

AutoCAD SHX Text
Dist=299.58'

AutoCAD SHX Text
S47°06'03"W

AutoCAD SHX Text
5.00'

AutoCAD SHX Text
S40°18'17"W

AutoCAD SHX Text
194.14'

AutoCAD SHX Text
R=2924.93'

AutoCAD SHX Text
L=231.76'

AutoCAD SHX Text
CB=S47°25'30"E

AutoCAD SHX Text
Dist=231.70'

AutoCAD SHX Text
C-101E

AutoCAD SHX Text
BAP CHESTERFIELD

AutoCAD SHX Text
VILLAGE AREA A PHASE 1

AutoCAD SHX Text
PLAT 2

AutoCAD SHX Text
PB. 225, PG. 39

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT C-101C

AutoCAD SHX Text
PB 158, PG 98

AutoCAD SHX Text
CHESTERFIELD VILLAGE

AutoCAD SHX Text
  AREA A PHASE ONE

AutoCAD SHX Text
PLAT ONE

AutoCAD SHX Text
PB 158, PG 96-97

AutoCAD SHX Text
P.O.B.

AutoCAD SHX Text
RPA-1B

AutoCAD SHX Text
S59° 27' 09"E

AutoCAD SHX Text
S69° 05' 13"E

AutoCAD SHX Text
32.21'

AutoCAD SHX Text
N35° 05' 17"E 82.29'

AutoCAD SHX Text
N15° 05' 30"E 47.83'

AutoCAD SHX Text
N34° 59' 13"E 43.04'

AutoCAD SHX Text
N27° 03' 38"E 17.67'

AutoCAD SHX Text
11.64'

AutoCAD SHX Text
180.51'

AutoCAD SHX Text
S59° 27' 09"E

AutoCAD SHX Text
84.03'

AutoCAD SHX Text
S33° 54' 11"E   408.23'

AutoCAD SHX Text
S02° 31' 14"W

AutoCAD SHX Text
74.82'

AutoCAD SHX Text
N28° 18' 26"E

AutoCAD SHX Text
85.00'

AutoCAD SHX Text
S60° 52' 26"W

AutoCAD SHX Text
334.47'

AutoCAD SHX Text
610

AutoCAD SHX Text
606

AutoCAD SHX Text
604

AutoCAD SHX Text
598

AutoCAD SHX Text
608

AutoCAD SHX Text
606

AutoCAD SHX Text
610

AutoCAD SHX Text
606

AutoCAD SHX Text
602

AutoCAD SHX Text
600

AutoCAD SHX Text
614

AutoCAD SHX Text
620



Jerald Saunders - Landscape Architect
MO License # LA-007 TSD-5

3/10/23

DATE:

KP

DRAWN BY:

RS

CHECKED BY:

813.102

JOB #:Tree Stand Delineation Prepared
under direction of:
Brian Bage
Certified Arborist MW- 5033A Downtown Chesterfield

Tree Stand Delineation

Tree Condition Rating:

Excellent 4
Good 3
Fair 2
Poor 1
Dead 0



Petree Powell
Stamp











1 | P a g e  

 

Memorandum 
Department of Public Works 
 

 

TO:   Michael O. Geisel, P.E. 
   City Administrator 
 
FROM:  James A. Eckrich, P.E. 
   Public Works Dir. / City Engineer
  
DATE:  August 4, 2023  
  
RE: Chesterfield Pkwy Temporary Slope Construction License   
 

 
As you know, St. Louis County is planning roadway improvements to the southwest 

quadrant of Chesterfield Parkway.  These improvements include concrete base 
repairs, an asphalt mill and overlay, and replacement of sidewalk curb ramp 
improvements to meet ADA standards.   

 
In order to proceed with this project, St. Louis County needs two temporary slope 
construction licenses (TSCLs) to provide adequate working room in order to replace 

the two curb ramps at Chesterfield Parkway and Park Circle Drive.  This is land 
owned by the City of Chesterfield.  The specific donation request is delineated in the 

attached memorandum from Assistant City Engineer Zachary Wolff.  As you can see, 
the requested TSCLs are very small (9 SF and 45 SF) and the TSCLs expire at the end 
of the project at which time the property reverts back to the City of Chesterfield.   

 
 

Action Recommended 
 
This matter should be forwarded to the Planning and Public Works Committee of City 

Council for consideration.  Should PPW concur with Staff’s recommendation it should 
recommend approval of the attached ordinance authorizing approval of the donation 
of TSCLs to St. Louis County in order to allow construction of ADA ramps at the 

intersection of Chesterfield Parkway and Park Circle Drive.   

 

Please forward to PPW for review and recommendation
of approval.

                                                         2023-8-4

III.A



1 | P a g e  

 

Memorandum 
Department of Public Works 
 

 

TO:  James A Eckrich, PE 
Director of Public Works/City 
Engineer 

 
FROM: Zachary S Wolff, PE   
  Assistant City Engineer 
 
DATE: August 4, 2023 
  
RE: Temporary Slope Construction Licenses for St. Louis 

County Project AR-1768, Chesterfield Parkway West 
(South) Resurfacing 

 

 
As you are aware, St. Louis County is planning roadway improvements to 
Chesterfield Parkway West between Wild Horse Creek Road and Fontaine Road.  The 

improvements will include concrete base repairs, asphalt mill and overlay, and 
replacement of sidewalk curb ramp improvements to meet ADA standards. 

 
As part of the plan development process, St. Louis County’s project team determined 
that temporary slope construction licenses (TSCLs) are necessary to allow adequate 

working room for removal and replacement of two existing curb ramps at Chesterfield 
Parkway and Park Circle Drive on property owned by the City.   
 

The City received correspondence from St. Louis County that detailed the proposed 
work and necessary TSCL areas.  9 square feet of TSCL are needed on 1 Park Circle 

Drive and 45 square feet of TSCL are needed on 2 Park Circle Drive.  Right-of-way 
plans are attached that show the requested TSCL areas.   
 

Recommendation - I have reviewed the request from St. Louis County and 
recommend the attached ordinance and exhibits be forwarded to the Planning and 

Public Works Committee then to City Council for consideration/approval of donating 
the requested TSCL to St. Louis County to accomplish the roadway improvements.  
The TSCLs will terminate upon completion of the project and there will be no 

permanent encumbrances on City property.   

  

 



21+00 22+00 23+00 24+00 25+00 26+002
0

+
7

1
.3

0
P

T

N/F

Central Park Square, Inc.

DB 17525 Pg 616

16375 Main Circle Dr.

18S130201

N/F

Central Park Square, Inc.

DB 17525 Pg 616

1 Park Circle Dr.

18S130179

N/F

Central Park Square, Inc.

DB 17525 Pg 616

2 Park Circle Dr.

18S110160

N/F

Central Park Square, Inc.

DB 17525 Pg 616

16301 Main Circle Dr.

18S110171

D
e
d
ic

a
t
e
d
 
t
o
 

C
it
y
 
o
f
 
C

h
e
s
t
e
r
f
ie
ld

P
B
 
3
5
7
 

P
g
 
1
8
5

DOWNTOWN CHESTERFIELD - PLAT ONE

PB 357 PG 185

L
O

T
 5

C
O

M
M

O
N
 A

R
E

A

C
O

M
M

O
N
 A

R
E

A

L
O

T
 7

S11°34'06"W 734.95'

N11°34'06"E 460.57'N11°34'06"E 174.38'

287.16'

N11°34'06"E 100.00'

L
O

T
 7

C
O

M
M

O
N
 A

R
E

A

C
O

M
M

O
N
 A

R
E

A

L
O

T
 5

W/Cap 19D

FND I. PIPE

FND CROSS

FND CONC. MON.

W/Cap 19D'
FND I. PIPE

  
to St. Louis County PB 166 Pg 84

9.5'W Roadway Maintenance & Utility Esmt.  
to St. Louis County PB 166 Pg 84

9.5'W Roadway Maintenance & Utility Esmt.

 5'W Esmt. to Laclede Gas Co. PB 166 Pg 84

Pg 80

to City of Chesterfield DB 15718 

10.5'W Permanent Sidewalk Esmt.

 5'W Esmt. to Laclede Gas Co. PB 166 Pg 84

 5'W Esmt. to Laclede Gas Co. PB 166 Pg 84  5'W Esmt. to Laclede Gas Co. PB 166 Pg 84

 

Pg 80

to City of Chesterfield DB 15718 

10.5'W Permanent Sidewalk Esmt.

 
to St. Louis County PB 166 Pg 84

11.5'W Roadway Maintenance & Utility Esmt.

 
Southwestern Bell Telephone Co. PB 166 Pg 84

10'W Esmt. to St. Louis County Water Co. &

 
to City of Chesterfield DB 15718 Pg 185

10.5'W Permanent Sidewalk Esmt.

1

N/F

Chesterfield Village, Inc.

DB 6633 Pg 158

700 Chesterfield Center

18S130157

Title 19-239079-KEE

LOT C113

CHESTERFIELD VILLAGE

AREA "A" PHASE ONE PLAT TWO

PB 166 PG 84

1

N/F

Chesterfield Village, Inc.

DB 6633 Pg 158

700 Chesterfield Center

18S130157

Title 19-239079-KEE

LOT C110

CHESTERFIELD VILLAGE

AREA "A" PHASE ONE PLAT TWO

PB 166 PG 84

j
j

j

j

j

SIDEWALK

CONCRETE

SIDEWALK

CONCRETE

SIDEWALK

CONCRETE

VALVE

WATER 

VALVE

WATER 

PULL BOX

AT&T

SIGN

MAINTENANCE 

END

18S4-207D

CURB INLET

18S4-209D

CURB INLET

18S4-210D

CURB INLET
NO MSD ID

MANHOLE

CONCRETE SIDEWALK

HYDRANT

FIRE 

FEDERAL PROJECT NO.

STP-5410(632)

AR-1768

SHEET SEQUENCE:

COUNTY PROJECT NO.

E-W GATEWAY TIP NO.

6905D-22

R
E

V
IS
IO

N
S

R
E

V
.

D
A

T
E

B
Y

A
P

P
.

D
E

S
C

R
IP

T
IO

N

MSD BASE MAP:

MSD:

DRAWN:

DATE:

CHECKED:

e
n
g
in
e
e
ri
n
g
 p
ro
je
c
t 
o
r 
s
u
rv

e
y

u
s
e
d
 f
o
r 
a
n
y
 p

a
rt
 o
f 
th

e
 

re
la
ti
n
g
 t
o
 o
r 
in
te

n
d
e
d
 t
o
 b

e
 

d
o
c
u

m
e
n
ts
 o
r 
in
s
tr
u

m
e
n
ts
 

E
s
ti

m
a
te
s
, 

R
e
p
o
rt
s
 o
r 
o
th

e
r 

D
ra

w
in

g
s
, 
S
p
e
c
if
ic
a
ti
o
n
s
, 

re
s
p
o
n
s
ib
il
it
y
 f
o
r 
a
ll
 o
th

e
r 

h
e
re

b
y
 d
is
c
la
im
 a

n
y
 

li
m
it
e
d
 t
o
 t
h
is
 s

h
e
e
t,
 a

n
d
 I
 

a
u
th

o
ri
z
e
d
 b

y
 m

y
 s
e
a
l 
a
re
 

d
o
c
u

m
e
n
ts
 i
n
te

n
d
e
d
 t
o
 b

e
 

I 
h
e
re

b
y
 s

p
e
c
if
y
 t
h
a
t 
th

e
 

DESIGNED:

R
E

S
P

O
N

S
IB
IL
IT

Y

D
IS

C
L

A
IM

E
R
 O

F
 

P
U

B
L
IC
 W

O
R

K
S

T
R

A
N

S
P

O
R

T
A

T
IO

N

R
E

S
U

R
F

A
C
IN

G

W
E

S
T
 (
S

O
U

T
H
) 

C
H

E
S

T
E

R
F
IE

L
D
 P

A
R

K
W

A
Y
 

6/21/2022

18S, 19S

 OF 13

CEQ

GDO

KDF

1
6
1
4
1
 S

w
in

g
le

y
 R
id

g
e
 R

d
.,
 S

u
it
e
 3

0
0
 

M
is
s
o
u
ri
 S
ta
te
 E

n
g
in

e
e
ri
n
g
 C

o
rp

o
ra
ti
o
n
 #

0
0
1
5
2
3

F
. 
 6

3
6
 5

3
7
 0

2
7
5

C
h
e
s
te
rf
ie
ld
, 

M
is
s
o
u
ri
 6

3
0
1
7

T
. 
 6

3
6
 5

3
7
 5

5
8
5
 

22MSD-00079

P L

P L

P L

PL

PL

T.S.C.L.

P.T.S.E.

P.S.E.

ROW LEGEND

P.R.I.M.U.S.S.E.

1
1
.0

0
'

1
1
.0

0
'

1
1
.0

0
'

1
1
.0

0
'
1
1
.0

0
'

1
1
.0

0
'
1
1
.0

0
'

1
1
.0

0
'

1
1
.0

0
'

1
1
.0

0
'

M
A

T
C

H
L
IN

E
 

S
T

A
 
2

0
+
5

0

N

M
A

T
C

H
L
IN

E
 

S
T

A
 
2

6
+
0
0

0 20 40 60

SCALE IN FEET

SCALE: 1" = 20'

P
A

R
K
 

C
I
R

C
L

E
 

D
R

CHESTERFIELD PARKWAY WEST (73'W)

8

SHEET NOTESLEGEND

L

(U.I.P.)

(U.I.P.)

(U.I.P.)
(U.I.P.)

(U.I.P.)(U.I.P.)

(U.I.P.)

(A.T.G.)

(U.I.P.)

(A.T.G.)

(U.I.P.)

(U.I.P.)

(U.I.P.)

PAVEMENT REPAIR

PROPOSED FULL DEPTH 

SIDEWALK

PROPOSED CONCRETE 

REMOVE CONCRETE SLAB

ON CONNECTING SIDE STREETS

EXTEND TO THE END OF RADIUS RETURN 

MILLING AND OVERLAY LIMITS SHALL 1) 

SEE CURB RAMP DETAIL J

DETAIL K

SEE CURB RAMP 

DETAIL K

SEE CURB RAMP 
DETAIL J

SEE CURB RAMP 

EXIST ROW

EXIST ROW

EXIST ROW

EXIST ROW

EXIST B CHESTERFIELD PARKWAY WEST

PLACE.

ALL IMPROVEMENTS TO BE USED IN 

OTHERS FOR WILD HORSE VILLAGE. 

PROPOSED IMPROVEMENTS BY 

SEE DEVELOPMENT PLANS FOR 

SURFACE COURSE

CONCRETE WEDGE & 

PROPOSED ASPHALTIC 

V
Y

O

CHARLES
EDWIN

QUINBY JR.

PLS-2007000085

6/21/2022

S
H

E
E

T
 5
 O

F
 9

R
O

W
 P

L
A

N
 S

H
E

E
T

NO ACQUISITIONS NO ACQUISITIONS

the Missouri  standards for property boundary surveys.

information. These plans do not constitute a boundary survey that meets 

review has been made relative to the accuracy of the provided 

of way shown hereon are based on said provided documentation.  No 

County Department of Transportation.  The proposed easements and right 

Existing property and right of way information was provided by St Louis 

734.95''  S11°34'06"W

T.S.C.L.

T.S.C.L.

T.S.C.L.

P.S.E.

  1°30'26"
D 1°54'35"
L 78.92'
T 39.46'
R 3000.00'

127

126

125

132

133 124

128

131

130

961

19 18

LINE BEARING DISTANCE

L1 S78°28'52"E 11.08'

S11°34'06"W 133.58'

N11°34'06"E 133.57'

S11°34'06"W 106.75'

L
1

11.01'
N78°25'54"W

1.52'
N78°25'54"W

L2 S78°25'54"E 0.44'

L3 S78°25'54"E 0.50'

L3

L4

L4 N11°34'06"E 18.44'

L5

L5 S11°31'21"W 8.38'

1.45'

S78°28'52"E

115

116

114

112

113

111

S14°41'02"W 9.46'

N11°34'06"E 12.20'
0.40'

N78°25'54"W

1.27'

N57°40'48"E

3
.9

3
'

S
5
7
°
4
0
'4

8
"

W

3.64'

S11°39'17"W

117

118

122

119

S04°0
7'27"W 28.19'

N11°34'06"E 24.44'

5.07'

N34°32'26"W

3
.9

2
'

N
3
4
°
3
2
'2

6
"

W

ENLARGED PLAN B

ENLARGED PLAN C

THIS SHEET

SEE ENLARGED PLAN B

THIS SHEET

SEE ENLARGED PLAN C

123

S78°25'54"E 10.50'

7
.6

7
'

N
7

8
°

2
5
'4

9
"

W

210

7
.6

7
'

N
7

8
°

2
5
'4

9
"

W

211

129

L2

1

Title 19-239079-KEE

18S130157

700 Chesterfield Center

DB 6633 Pg 158

Chesterfield Village, Inc.

N/F

LOT C113

PB 166 PG 84

AREA "A" PHASE ONE PLAT TWO

CHESTERFIELD VILLAGE

S.F. 18,858 REMAINING:

S.F. 9   CONSTRUCTION LICENSE:

TEMPORARY SLOPE AND

S.F 18,858EXIST. PROPERTY:

S.F. 21,858 REMAINING:

S.F.45CONSTRUCTION LICENSE:

TEMPORARY SLOPE AND

S.F 21,858EXIST. PROPERTY:

 540,034 S.F.REMAINING:

2,946 S.F.AND SEWER EASEMENT:

AND UTILITY SIDEWALK 

IMPROVEMENT, MAINTENANCE

PERMANENT ROADWAY

 247 S.F.EASEMENT:

PERMANENT SIDEWALK

1,543 S.F.CONSTRUCTION LICENSE:

TEMPORARY SLOPE AND

 540,034 S.FEXIST. PROPERTY:

 540,034 S.F.REMAINING:

2,946 S.F.AND SEWER EASEMENT:

AND UTILITY SIDEWALK 

IMPROVEMENT, MAINTENANCE

PERMANENT ROADWAY

 247 S.F.EASEMENT:

PERMANENT SIDEWALK

1,543 S.F.CONSTRUCTION LICENSE:

TEMPORARY SLOPE AND

 540,034 S.FEXIST. PROPERTY:

P
R

O
F

E

S
SIONAL E

N
G

I
N

E
E

R

S
T

A

T
E O

F MISSO

U
R
I

PE-2004017159

DOHRMANN 

JASON S. 

Zachary Wolff
Oval

Zachary Wolff
Typewriter
EXHIBIT B

Zachary Wolff
Typewriter
EXHIBIT C



BILL NO. _________        ORDINANCE NO. __________ 
 

AN ORDINANCE AUTHORIZING WAIVER OF COMPENSATION AND 
DEDICATING TEMPORARY SLOPE CONSTRUCTION LICENSES IN 

CONNECTION WITH ST. LOUIS COUNTY PROJECT NUMBER AR-1768, 
CHESTERFIELD PARKWAY WEST (SOUTH) RESURFACING IN THE CITY OF 
CHESTERFIELD. 

 
WHEREAS, St. Louis County is planning roadway improvements to 
Chesterfield Parkway West from Wild Horse Creek Road to Fontaine Drive; and  

 
WHEREAS, the improvements will include pavement base repairs, asphalt mill 

and overlay, and removal and replacement of existing curb ramps that do not 
meet current ADA standards; and 
 

WHEREAS, St. Louis County has determined temporary slope construction 
licenses totaling approximately 54 square feet are required on property owned 

by the City to provide the contractor with necessary working room to replace 
two existing curb ramps; and  
 

WHEREAS, St. Louis County has requested the City donate the temporary 
slope construction licenses to accomplish the roadway improvements; and  
 

WHEREAS, the Department of Public Works has reviewed the request from St. 
Louis County and has determined that the requested temporary slope 

construction licenses are necessary for completion of the improvements.  
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE 

CITY OF CHESTERFIELD, MISSOURI AS FOLLOWS: 
 
Section 1.   The City of Chesterfield hereby authorizes the City Administrator to 

sign the agreement and waiver of compensation letter as depicted in “Exhibit A” 
and execute temporary slope construction licenses for work on City owned 

property as depicted in “Exhibit B” and “Exhibit C” which are attached hereto 
and made part hereof. 
 

Section 2.   This ordinance shall be codified within the Municipal Code of the 
City of Chesterfield. 

 
Section 3.   This ordinance shall be in full force and effect from and after its 
passage and approval. 

 
  



Passed and approved this ________ day of ____________________, 2023. 
 

 
 

 
 
______________________________ 

          Bob Nation, Mayor 
 

ATTEST: 

 
 

 
______________________________ 
Vickie McGownd, City Clerk 

 

 

First Reading Held: __________________ 



        
 
 
 

      

July 25, 2023 

 

 

Mr. Mike Geisel 

City Administrator  

City of Chesterfield  

690 Chesterfield Parkway West  

Chesterfield, Missouri 63017-0670 

RE: Acquisition of Right-of-Way  

 Chesterfield Parkway West (South) Resurfacing     

 St. Louis County Project No.  AR-1768 

 Federal Project No. STP-5410 (632)   

 Parcel Nos. 18 and 19 

 Address of Properties Affected:  

 1 Park Circle and 2 Park Circle    

Dear Mr. Geisel:      

 St. Louis County Department of Transportation and Public Works is pleased to inform you of road improvement 

project planned for your area. This Department has prepared the enclosed engineering drawings, which indicate the extent to 

which your property will be affected. 

 We want to inform you that you do have the right to receive compensation for the land in question, as determined by 

an appraisal of the property rights needed from your property. We have enclosed a Right of Way Acquisition leaflet for your 

review. This will explain the process which must be followed to acquire the necessary property rights.  

 Due to the benefits to be derived from the project, we are hopeful we can reach an agreement with you to donate 

approximately 54 square feet Temporary Slope and Construction License (TSCL) to accomplish the roadway improvements. 

If you are agreeable to the exchange as proposed, we would appreciate you acknowledging this agreement and waiver of 

compensation by signing below.  

 We appreciate your support and look forward to the continuation of our road improvement project. Should you have 

any further questions or concerns, please feel free to contact Nancy Hendrix, Right-of-Way Appraiser, at (314) 615-4680. 

 

     Sincerely, 

 

 

 

     Stephanie Leon Streeter, P.E. 

                                       Director  

SLS:NAH:mtb 

Enclosures: Engineering Drawings 

                   Right of Way Acquisition Leaflet  
 

 

     

Mr. Mike Geisel                                                   Date  

City Administrator  

City of Chesterfield   

 
Transportation:  1050 North Lindbergh Boulevard  Saint Louis, MO 63132  314/615-8504  FAX 314/615-8194 

Public Works:  41 South Central Avenue  Saint Louis, MO 63105  314/615-5184  FAX 314/615-7085 
Internet: http://www.stlouiscountymo.gov    RelayMO  800-735-2966 

Sam Page 

County Executive 
Stephanie Leon Streeter, P.E. 

 Director 
 

 

 

http://www.stlouisco.com/
hy2jwk
Image

hy2jwk
Text Box
for SLS

Zachary Wolff
Typewriter
EXHIBIT A



Chesterfield Parkway West (South) Resurfacing  

St. Louis County Project No. AR-1768 

Federal Project No. STP-5410 (632) 

Parcel No. 18 
 

1 
 

TEMPORARY SLOPE AND CONSTRUCTION LICENSE  

 

THIS ACQUISITION IS AUTHORIZED BY ST. LOUIS COUNTY ORDINANCE NO. 28,552, 2022, 

DATED, September 2, 2022 

   

 THIS INDENTURE made and entered into this   day of                           , 2023, by and between 

 City of Chesterfield     of 

the County of St. Louis, State of Missouri, Grantor(s), and ST. LOUIS COUNTY, MISSOURI, 41 South 

Central, Clayton, Missouri 63105, Grantee. 

WITNESSETH, that the said Grantor(s), for and in consideration of the sum of  one dollar ($1.00)  

and other valuable considerations, paid by the said Grantee(s), the receipt of which is hereby acknowledged, 

does by these presents Grant, Bargain and Sell, Convey and Confirm unto the said Grantee, the following 

described Real Estate, situated in the County of St. Louis and State of Missouri, to wit: 

 

TEMPORARY SLOPE AND CONSTRUCTION LICENSE  

 

A Temporary Slope and Construction License for the purpose of making cuts, fills, and sloping embankments, 

constructing drives, sidewalks, temporary roadways and overhead utilities, etc., if any, providing working room 

and implementing any and all other construction items over the following described property to wit: 

SEE ATTACHMENT “A”, Page 3 

Together with the following grant by the Grantors to the Grantee 

The last described license is for temporary purposes only and shall therefore terminate upon completion of the 

contemplated improvement of Chesterfield Parkway West (South) Resurfacing, AR-1768 project by the 

Grantee. 

 

TO HAVE AND TO HOLD THE SAME, together with all rights, immunities, privileges, and appurtenances 

thereto belonging unto the said Grantee, until such time as Chesterfield Parkway West (South) Resurfacing (AR-

1768) may be completed and accepted by ST. LOUIS COUNTY, MISSOURI, or its assigns. Upon the granting 

or denial of acceptance by ST. LOUIS COUNTY or its assigns, this license shall terminate. Grantor(s) 

covenant(s) that no installation will be placed on the above described land as will interfere with the proper 

construction of the aforementioned project until this license is terminated.   

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

Zachary Wolff
Typewriter
EXHIBIT B



Chesterfield Parkway West (South) Resurfacing  

St. Louis County Project No. AR-1768 

Federal Project No. STP-5410 (632) 

Parcel No. 18 
 

2 
 

 IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the City of Chesterfield has caused these presents to be signed by its 

City Administrator this _____ day of _____________, 2023.  

 

 

___________________________________     

Mike Geisel, City Administrator     

 

 

State of Missouri, 

   ss. 

County of St. Louis 

 

  On this _______________ day of _____________________, 2023, before me, a Notary Public in and for 

the above county and state, personally appeared Mike Geisel,  to me personally known, who being by me duly 

sworn, did state that he is the City Administrator  for the City of Chesterfield and by authority of its Board of 

Alderman, said City Administrator who signed and executed the instrument thereof and further acknowledged 

the said instrument and the execution thereof to a voluntary act and deed of said Municipality.   

 

 

 IN TESTIMONY WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my hand and affixed my official seal in the County 

and State aforesaid, the day and year first above written. 

 

 

 

                

                                           Notary Public 

 

 

My term expires:      

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



Chesterfield Parkway West (South) Resurfacing  

St. Louis County Project No. AR-1768 

Federal Project No. STP-5410 (632) 

Parcel No. 18 
 

3 
 

 
 

 



Chesterfield Parkway West (South) Resurfacing  

St. Louis County Project No. AR-1768 

Federal Project No. STP-5410 (632) 

Parcel No. 19 
 

1 
 

TEMPORARY SLOPE AND CONSTRUCTION LICENSE  

 

THIS ACQUISITION IS AUTHORIZED BY ST. LOUIS COUNTY ORDINANCE NO. 28,552, 2022, 

DATED, September 2, 2022 

   

 THIS INDENTURE made and entered into this   day of                           , 2023, by and between  

 City of Chesterfield    of the County of St. Louis, State of 

Missouri, Grantor(s), and ST. LOUIS COUNTY, MISSOURI, 41 South Central, Clayton, Missouri 63105, 

Grantee. 

WITNESSETH, that the said Grantor(s), for and in consideration of the sum of    one dollard ($1.00)  

and other valuable considerations, paid by the said Grantee(s), the receipt of which is hereby acknowledged, 

does by these presents Grant, Bargain and Sell, Convey and Confirm unto the said Grantee, the following 

described Real Estate, situated in the County of St. Louis and State of Missouri, to wit: 

TEMPORARY SLOPE AND CONSTRUCTION LICENSE  

 

A Temporary Slope and Construction License for the purpose of making cuts, fills, and sloping embankments, 

constructing drives, sidewalks, temporary roadways and overhead utilities, etc., if any, providing working room 

and implementing any and all other construction items over the following described property to wit: 

SEE ATTACHMENT “A”, Page 3 

Together with the following grant by the Grantors to the Grantee 

The last described license is for temporary purposes only and shall therefore terminate upon completion of the 

contemplated improvement of Chesterfield Parkway West (South) Resurfacing, AR-1768 project by the 

Grantee. 

 

TO HAVE AND TO HOLD THE SAME, together with all rights, immunities, privileges, and appurtenances 

thereto belonging unto the said Grantee, until such time as Chesterfield Parkway West (South) Resurfacing (AR-

1768) may be completed and accepted by ST. LOUIS COUNTY, MISSOURI, or its assigns. Upon the granting 

or denial of acceptance by ST. LOUIS COUNTY or its assigns, this license shall terminate. Grantor(s) 

covenant(s) that no installation will be placed on the above described land as will interfere with the proper 

construction of the aforementioned project until this license is terminated.   

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Zachary Wolff
Typewriter
EXHIBIT C



Chesterfield Parkway West (South) Resurfacing  

St. Louis County Project No. AR-1768 

Federal Project No. STP-5410 (632) 

Parcel No. 19 
 

2 
 

 IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the City of Chesterfield has caused these presents to be signed by its 

City Administrator this _____ day of _____________, 2023.  

 

 

___________________________________     

Mike Geisel, City Administrator     

 

 

State of Missouri, 

   ss. 

County of St. Louis 

 

  On this _______________ day of _____________________, 2023, before me, a Notary Public in and for 

the above county and state, personally appeared      , to me personally 

known, we being by me duly sworn, did state that they are the persons who signed and executed the instrument 

thereof and further acknowledged the said instrument and the execution thereof to a voluntary act and deed of 

said person.   

 

 IN TESTIMONY WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my hand and affixed my official seal in the County 

and State aforesaid, the day and year first above written. 

 

 

 

                

                                           Notary Public 

 

 

My term expires:      

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



Chesterfield Parkway West (South) Resurfacing  

St. Louis County Project No. AR-1768 

Federal Project No. STP-5410 (632) 

Parcel No. 19 
 

3 
 

 
 

 



Memorandum
Department of Planning
To: Michael O. Geisel, City Administrator

From: Justin Wyse, Director of Planning

Date: September 5th, 2023

RE: P.Z. 10-2023 Carshield F.C. (Stock & Associates): A request to rezone from “PI”
Planned Industrial to a new “PI” Planned Industrial district for a 16.58-acre tract
of land located east of Eatherton Rd. and north of Wings Corporate Dr.
(17W130064).

Summary
Stock & Associates, on behalf of Carshield F.C. has submitted a request to rezone a 16.58-
acre tract of land to a new “PI”—Planned Industrial District to allow “Athletic Courts & Fields”,
“Gymnasium”, and “Recreation Facility” as additional permitted uses and modify the existing
development criteria. The site would be utilized as an indoor and outdoor sports facility.

A Public Hearing was held on July 10, 2023, and concerns regarding lighting and traffic were
raised and discussed by the Planning Commission. The petition was subsequently reviewed by
the Planning Commission on August 14th, 2023. At that time, the Commission made a motion
to recommend approval. The motion passed by a vote of 6-0.

The petition was reviewed by the Planning & Public Works Committee on August 24th, 2023.
The Committee made a motion to forward the petition to the City Council with a
recommendation to approve. The motion passed by a vote of 4-0.

Attachments: 1) Legislation, 2) Attachment A, 3) Preliminary Development Plan

Figure 1: Subject Site Aerial



BILL NO. ______________        ORDINANCE NO.______________

AN ORDINANCE REPEALING CITY OF CHESTERFIELD ORDINANCE
NUMBER 3197 FOR A “PI” PLANNED INDUSTRIAL DISTRICT AND
CREATING A NEW “PI” PLANNED INDUSTRIAL DISTRICT LOCATED EAST
OF EATHERTON RD AND NORTH OF WINGS CORPORATE DR (17W130064).

WHEREAS, the petitioner, Stock & Associates, on behalf of Carshield F.C.,
has requested a change in zoning for an existing “PI” Planned Industrial District
to a new “PI” Planned Industrial District for a 16.58-acre tract of land located
east of Eatherton Rd. and north of Wings Corporate Dr.; and,

WHEREAS, a Public Hearing was held before the Planning Commission on
July 10th, 2023; and,

WHEREAS, the Planning Commission, having considered said request,
recommended approval of the change of zoning; and,

WHEREAS, the Planning and Public Works Committee, having considered
said request, recommended approval of the change of zoning; and,

WHEREAS, the City Council, having considered said request, voted to
approve the change of zoning request.

NOW THEREFORE BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE
CITY OF CHESTERFIELD, ST. LOUIS COUNTY, MISSOURI, AS FOLLOWS:

Section 1. City of Chesterfield Unified Development Code and the Official
Zoning District Map, which are part thereof, are hereby amended by establishing
a “PI” Planned Industrial District designation for 16.58 acres located east of
Eatherton Rd., and north of Wings Corporate Dr. and as described as follows:

A tract of land being part of Lot 2 of the Subdivision of E. Kroennung Estate. a
subdivision according to the plat thereof as recorded in Plat Book 11 Page 11 of
the St. Louis County Records located in U.S. Survey 362, Township 45 North,
Range 3 East. City of Chesterfield, St. Louis County, Missouri being more
particularly described as follows:

Beginning at a stone located at the northeastern corner of Lot 3 of Precision
Plaza, a subdivision according to the plat thereof as recorded in Plat Book 357,



Page 286 of above said records; thence along the northern line of said Lot 3 and
its direct southwestern prolongation thereof, South 79 degrees 01 minute 04
seconds West, 594.01 feet to a stone found on the eastern right-of-way of
Eatherton Road, variable width; thence along said right-of-way line the following
courses and distances, North 11 degrees 42 minutes 12 seconds West, 455.20
feet to a found Iron Rod;  North 78 degrees 37 minutes 41 seconds East, 14.77
feet to a found Iron Rod; North 11 degrees 22 minutes 19 seconds West, 580.16
feet to a found Iron Rod, said point also being the beginning of a curve to the
right, having a radius of 925.00 feet; thence along said curve with an arc length
of 154.90 feet and a chord which bears North 06 degrees 34 minutes 29 seconds
West, 154.72 feet to the beginning of a non-tangential curve to the right having
a radius of 105.00 feet; along said curve with an arc length of 88.92 feet and a
chord which bears North 24 degrees 21 minutes 08 seconds East, 88.28 feet to
a found Iron Rod and North 11 degrees 23 minutes 25 seconds West, 5.00 feet
to the southern line of that part of Old Eatherton Road, 40 feet wide, as vacated
by City of Chesterfield Ordinance Number 2649, recorded in Book 19501, Page
473 of above said records; thence along said southern line of Old Eatherton
Road, North 78 degrees 36 minutes 35 seconds East, 493.10 fee to a found Iron
Rod on the western line of a tract of land as conveyed to the Burkhardt Family
Investments LLC by instrument recorded in Book  17645, Page  485 of said
records; thence along said western line and the western line of a tract of land as
conveyed to St. Louis County, Missouri by instrument recorded in Book 12257,
Page 1819, South 11 degrees 14 minutes 25 seconds East, 1,234.20 feet to the
POINT OF BEGINNING.

Containing 722,357 square feet or 16.583 acres, more or less according to
calculations performed by Stock & Associates Consulting Engineers, Inc during
May 2023.

Section 2. The preliminary approval, pursuant to the City of Chesterfield
Unified Development Code is granted, subject to all of the ordinances, rules and
regulations.

Section 3. The City Council, pursuant to the petition filed by Stock &
Associates, on behalf of Carshield F.C. in P.Z. 10-2023, requesting the rezoning
embodied in this ordinance, and pursuant to the recommendation of the City of
Chesterfield Planning Commission that said petition be granted and after a
public hearing, held by the Planning Commission on the 10th day of July 2023,
does hereby adopt this ordinance pursuant to the power granted to the City of
Chesterfield under Chapter 89 of the Revised Statutes of the State of Missouri



authorizing the City Council to exercise legislative power pertaining to planning
and zoning.

Section 4. This ordinance and the requirements thereof are exempt from
the warning and summons for violations as set out in Section 8 of the City of
Chesterfield Unified Development Code.

Section 5. This ordinance shall be in full force and effect from and after
its passage and approval.

Passed and approved this _______ day of ____________________, 2023

_____________________________ _____________________________
    PRESIDING OFFICER    Bob Nation, MAYOR

ATTEST:

_____________________________
Vickie McGownd, CITY CLERK

   FIRST READING HELD: 9/5/2023



P.Z. 10-2023 Carshield F.C.            Planning Commission 8/14/2023 
Stock & Associates Consulting Engineers  Planning & Public Works Committee 8/24/2023 

 

ATTACHMENT A 
 
 
All provisions of the City of Chesterfield City Code shall apply to this development 
except as specifically modified herein.   
 

 
I. SPECIFIC CRITERIA 

A. PERMITTED USES 

1. The uses allowed in this “PI” Planned Industrial District shall be: 

a. Athletic courts and fields 

b. Gymnasium 

c. Industrial sales, service, and storage 

d. Mail order sales warehouse 

e. Office, general 

f. Plumbing, electrical, air conditioning, and heating equipment sales, 
warehousing and repair facility 

g. Professional and technical service facility 

h. Recreation facility 

i. Warehouse, general 

2. Hours of Operation. 

a. Hours of operation for this “PI” District shall not be restricted.  

b. Hours of operation for any lighting source for a recreation facility shall 
adhere to the Lighting Standards of the City of Chesterfield Code. 

3. Telecommunication siting permits may be issued for wireless 
telecommunications facilities per the requirements of the City Code. 

B. FLOOR AREA, HEIGHT, BUILDING AND PARKING STRUCTURE 
REQUIREMENTS 

1. Height 

a. The maximum height of the building, exclusive of roof screening, shall not 
exceed 40 feet. 

 



P.Z. 10-2023 Carshield F.C.            Planning Commission 8/14/2023 
Stock & Associates Consulting Engineers  Planning & Public Works Committee 8/24/2023 

 

2. Building Requirements 

a. A minimum of 35% openspace is required for each lot within this 
development. 

b. This development shall have a maximum F.A.R. of fifty-five hundredths 
(0.55).  

C. SETBACKS 

1. Structure Setbacks 

No building or structure, other than: a freestanding project identification sign, 
light standards, or flag pole will be located within the following setbacks: 

a. Thirty-five (35) feet from the right-of-way of Eatherton Road. 

b. Thirty (30) feet from the rear yard. 

c. Twelve (12) feet from the side yard. 

2. Parking Setbacks 

No parking stall, loading space, internal driveway, or roadway, except points of 
ingress or egress, will be located within the following setbacks: 

a. Twenty-five (25) feet from the right-of-way of Eatherton Road.  

b. Twenty-five (25) feet from the rear yard. 

c. Ten (10) feet from the side yard. 

D. PARKING AND LOADING REQUIREMENTS 

1. Parking and loading spaces for this development will be as required in the City 
of Chesterfield Code. 

2. No construction related parking shall be permitted within right of way or on any 
existing roadways. All construction related parking shall be confined to the 
development. 

3. Provide adequate temporary off-street parking for construction employees. 
Parking on non-surfaced areas shall be prohibited in order to eliminate the 
condition whereby mud from construction and employee vehicles is tracked 
onto the pavement causing hazardous roadway and driving conditions. 

E. LANDSCAPE AND TREE REQUIREMENTS 

1. The development shall adhere to the Landscape and Tree Preservation 
Requirements of the City of Chesterfield Code, with the exception of 25’ 
landscape buffer shall be provided along Eatherton Road. 
 
 



P.Z. 10-2023 Carshield F.C.            Planning Commission 8/14/2023 
Stock & Associates Consulting Engineers  Planning & Public Works Committee 8/24/2023 

 

F. SIGN REQUIREMENTS 

1. Signs shall be permitted in accordance with the regulations of the City of 
Chesterfield Code or a Sign Package may be submitted for the planned district. 
Sign Packages shall adhere to the City Code and are reviewed and approved 
by the City of Chesterfield Planning Commission. 

2. Installation of Landscaping and Ornamental Entrance Monument or 
Identification Signage construction shall be reviewed by the City of 
Chesterfield/St. Louis County Department of Transportation for sight distance 
consideration and approved prior to installation or construction. 

G. LIGHT REQUIREMENTS 

1. Provide a lighting plan and cut sheet in accordance with the City of Chesterfield 
Code.  

2. The mounting height of all light standards shall not exceed seventy (70) feet 
and is subject to Spirit of St. Louis Airport approval.   

H. ARCHITECTURAL  

1. The development shall adhere to the Architectural Review Standards of the 
City of Chesterfield Code. 

2. Trash enclosures: All exterior trash areas will be enclosed with a minimum six 
(6) foot high sight-proof enclosure complemented by adequate 
landscaping.  The location, material, and elevation of any trash enclosures will 
be as approved by the City of Chesterfield on the Site Development Plan. 

I. ACCESS/ACCESS MANAGEMENT 

1. Access to the development shall be as shown on the Preliminary Plan and 
adequate sight distance shall be provided, as directed by the City of 
Chesterfield and St. Louis County Department of Transportation, as applicable. 

a. The preliminary development plan depicts the conceptual access to the 
development. The access location and design shall substantially 
conform to the Preliminary Development Plan but will require additional 
review and approval during the Site Development Plan process. 

2. The existing 40-foot-wide cross-access easement along the southern property 
line shall be partially vacated and a new easement granted.  The new easement 
shall allow those parties with rights to the easement access to N. Eatherton 
Road by way of the access locations depicted on the Preliminary Plan.  The 
owner of the property to which this ordinance applies shall be responsible for 
coordinating the vacation and reestablishment of the access easement with 
those parties which have rights to the easement.  

3. If adequate sight distance cannot be provided at the access location(s), 
acquisition of right-of-way, reconstruction of pavement and other off-site 



P.Z. 10-2023 Carshield F.C.            Planning Commission 8/14/2023 
Stock & Associates Consulting Engineers  Planning & Public Works Committee 8/24/2023 

 

improvements may be required to provide the required sight distance as 
required by the City of Chesterfield and St. Louis County Department of 
Transportation. 

J. PUBLIC/PRIVATE ROAD IMPROVEMENTS, INCLUDING PEDESTRIAN 
CIRCULATION 

1. Road improvements and right-of-way dedication shall be completed prior to the 
issuance of an occupancy permit.  If development phasing is anticipated, the 
developer shall complete road improvements, right-of-way dedication, and 
access requirements for each phase of development as directed by the City of 
Chesterfield and St. Louis County Department of Transportation. Delays due 
to utility relocation and adjustments will not constitute a cause to allow 
occupancy prior to completion of road improvements. 

2. Any request to install a gate at the entrance to this development must be 
approved by the City of Chesterfield and the St. Louis County Department of 
Transportation. No gate installation will be permitted on public right-of-way.   

3. Provide a 5-foot-wide sidewalk, conforming to ADA standards, along the 
Eatherton Road frontage of the site. The sidewalk shall provide for future 
connectivity to adjacent developments and/or roadway projects.  The sidewalk 
may be located within the Eatherton Road right-of-way, if permitted by St. Louis 
County or on private property within a 6-foot-wide sidewalk, public access and 
utility easement dedicated to the City. The sidewalk shall be maintained by the 
property owner.  

4. Provide sidewalk connections from the required 5-foot-wide sidewalk along 
Eatherton Road to internal sidewalks and/or pedestrian paths. 

K. TRAFFIC STUDY    

1. Provide a traffic study as directed by the City of Chesterfield and St. Louis 
County Department of Transportation.  The scope of the study shall include 
internal and external circulation and may be limited to site specific impacts, 
such as the need for additional lanes, entrance configuration, geometrics, sight 
distance, traffic signal modifications or other improvements required, as long 
as the density of the proposed development falls within the parameters of the 
City’s traffic model.  Should the density be other than the density assumed in 
the model, regional issues shall be addressed as directed by the City of 
Chesterfield. 

L. POWER OF REVIEW 

1. The development shall adhere to the Power of Review Requirements of the 
City of Chesterfield Code. 
 



P.Z. 10-2023 Carshield F.C.            Planning Commission 8/14/2023 
Stock & Associates Consulting Engineers  Planning & Public Works Committee 8/24/2023 

 

M. STORM WATER  

1. The site shall provide for the positive drainage of storm water and it shall be 
discharged at an adequate natural discharge point or an adequate piped 
system.   

2. Emergency overflow drainage ways to accommodate runoff from the 100-year 
storm event shall be provided for all storm sewers, as directed by the City of 
Chesterfield. 

3. Offsite storm water shall be picked up and piped to an adequate natural 
discharge point.  Such bypass systems must be adequately designed. 

4. Provide stormwater management facilities as required by the City of 
Chesterfield, the Metropolitan St. Louis Sewer District, and the Monarch-
Chesterfield Levee District.  The location and types of storm water 
management facilities shall be identified on all Site Development Plans.   

N. SANITARY SEWER 

1. Sanitary sewers shall be as approved by the City of Chesterfield and the 
Metropolitan St. Louis Sewer District. 

O. GEOTECHNICAL REPORT 

1. Prior to Site Development Plan approval, provide a geotechnical report, 
prepared by a registered professional engineer licensed to practice in the State 
of Missouri, as directed by the Department of Public Services.  The report shall 
verify the suitability of grading and proposed improvements with soil and 
geologic conditions and address the existence of any potential sinkhole, ponds, 
dams, septic fields, etc., and recommendations for treatment.  A statement of 
compliance, signed and sealed by the geotechnical engineer preparing the 
report, shall be included on all Site Development Plans and Improvement 
Plans. 
 

P. MISCELLANEOUS 

1. All utilities will be installed underground.    

2. The developer is advised that utility companies will require compensation for 
relocation of their facilities within public road right-of-way. The developer should 
also be aware of extensive delays in utility company relocation and 
adjustments. Such delays will not constitute a cause to allow occupancy prior 
to completion of road improvements.  

II. GENERAL CRITERIA 

A. SITE DEVELOPMENT PLAN SUBMITTAL REQUIREMENTS 



P.Z. 10-2023 Carshield F.C.            Planning Commission 8/14/2023 
Stock & Associates Consulting Engineers  Planning & Public Works Committee 8/24/2023 

 

The Site Development Plan shall include, but not be limited to, the following: 

1. Location map, north arrow, and plan scale. The scale shall be no greater than 
one (1) inch equals one hundred (100) feet. 

2. Outboundary plat and legal description of property.  

3. Density calculations.  

4. Parking calculations. Including calculation for all off street parking spaces, 
required and proposed, and the number, size and location for handicap 
designed. 

5. Provide openspace percentage for overall development including separate 
percentage for each lot on the plan.   

6. Provide Floor Area Ratio (F.A.R.). 

7. A note indicating all utilities will be installed underground. 

8. A note indicating signage approval is a separate process. 

9. Depict the location of all buildings, size, including height and distance from 
adjacent property lines, and proposed use. 

10. Specific structure and parking setbacks along all roadways and property 
lines. 

11. Indicate location of all existing and proposed freestanding monument signs. 

12. Zoning district lines, subdivision name, lot number, dimensions, and area, 
and zoning of adjacent parcels where different than site. 

13. Floodplain boundaries.   

14. Depict existing and proposed improvements within 150 feet of the site as 
directed.  Improvements include, but are not limited to, roadways, driveways 
and walkways adjacent to and across the street from the site, significant 
natural features, such as wooded areas and rock formations, and other karst 
features that are to remain or be removed. 

15. Depict all existing and proposed easements and rights-of-way within 150 feet 
of the site and all existing or proposed off-site easements and rights-of-way 
required for proposed improvements. 

16. Indicate the location of the proposed storm sewers, detention basins, sanitary 
sewers and connection(s) to the existing systems. 

17. Depict existing and proposed contours at intervals of not more than one (1) 
foot, and extending 150 feet beyond the limits of the site as directed. 

18. Address trees and landscaping in accordance with the City of Chesterfield 
Code.  

19. Comply with all preliminary plat requirements of the City of Chesterfield 
Subdivision Regulations per the City of Chesterfield Code. 



P.Z. 10-2023 Carshield F.C.            Planning Commission 8/14/2023 
Stock & Associates Consulting Engineers  Planning & Public Works Committee 8/24/2023 

 

20. Signed and sealed in conformance with the State of Missouri Department of 
Economic Development, Division of Professional Registration, Missouri 
Board for Architects, Professional Engineers and Land Surveyors 
requirements. 

21. Provide comments/approvals from the appropriate Fire District, Monarch 
Levee District, Spirit of St. Louis Airport, Metropolitan St. Louis Sewer District 
(MSD) and St. Louis County Department of Transportation. 

22. Compliance with Sky Exposure Plane. 

23. Compliance with the current Metropolitan St. Louis Sewer District Site 
Guidance as adopted by the City of Chesterfield.   

III. TRUST FUND CONTRIBUTION 

1. The developer shall be required to contribute a Traffic Generation Assessment 
(TGA) to the City of Chesterfield.  Allowable credits for required improvements 
will be awarded as directed by the City of Chesterfield. This contribution shall 
be established by the City of Chesterfield Trust Fund Rate Schedule.   

2. The Traffic Generation Assessment (TGA) contribution shall be made prior to 
the issuance of a Municipal Zoning Approval (MZA) by the City of Chesterfield. 

3. Prior to Special Use Permit issuance by the St. Louis County Department of 
Transportation, a special cash escrow or a special escrow supported by an 
Irrevocable Letter of Credit, must be established with St. Louis County 
Department of Transportation to guarantee completion of the required roadway 
improvements. 

4. The amount of all required contributions for storm water and primary water line 
improvements, if not submitted by January 1, 2024, shall be adjusted on that 
date and on the first day of January in each succeeding year thereafter in 
accordance with the construction cost index as determined by the St. Louis 
County Department of Transportation.  
 

5. WATER MAIN 

The primary water line contribution is based on gross acreage of the 
development land area. The contribution shall be a sum of $1,060.35 per acre 
for the total area as approved on the Site Development Plan to be used solely 
to help defray the cost of constructing the primary water line serving the 
Chesterfield Valley area. 
 
The primary water line contribution shall be deposited with the St. Louis County 
Department of Transportation. The deposit shall be made before St. Louis 
County approval of the Site Development Plan or Concept Plan unless 
otherwise directed by the St. Louis County Department of Transportation. 
Funds shall be payable to Treasurer, St. Louis County/City of Chesterfield. 
 



P.Z. 10-2023 Carshield F.C.            Planning Commission 8/14/2023 
Stock & Associates Consulting Engineers  Planning & Public Works Committee 8/24/2023 

 

6. STORM WATER 

The storm water contribution is based on gross acreage of the development 
land area. These funds are necessary to help defray the cost of engineering 
and construction improvements for the collection and disposal of storm water 
from the Chesterfield Valley in accordance with the Master Plan on file with and 
jointly approved by St. Louis County and the Metropolitan St. Louis Sewer 
District. The amount of the storm water contribution will be computed based on 
$3,364.25 per acre for the total area as approved on the Site Development 
Plan. 
 
The storm water contributions to the Trust Fund shall be deposited with the St. 
Louis County Department of Transportation. The deposit shall be made prior to 
the issuance of a Special Use Permit (S.U.P.) by St. Louis County Department 
of Transportation or prior to the issuance of building permits in the case where 
no Special Use Permit is required. Funds shall be payable to Treasurer, St. 
Louis County/City of Chesterfield.  

 
7. SANITARY SEWER 

The sanitary sewer contribution is collected as the Caulk Creek impact fee. 
 
The sanitary sewer contribution within Chesterfield Valley area shall be 
deposited with the Metropolitan St. Louis Sewer District as required by the 
District.  
 

IV. RECORDING 
 
1. Within sixty (60) days of approval of any development plan by the City of 

Chesterfield, the approved Plan will be recorded with the St. Louis County 
Recorder of Deeds.  Failure to do so will result in the expiration of approval of 
said plan and require re-approval of a plan by the Planning Commission. 
 

V. ENFORCEMENT 

1. The City of Chesterfield, Missouri will enforce the conditions of this ordinance 
in accordance with the Plan approved by the City of Chesterfield and the terms 
of this Attachment A. 

2. Failure to comply with any or all the conditions of this ordinance will be 
adequate cause for revocation of approvals/permits by reviewing Departments 
and Commissions. 

3. Non-compliance with the specific requirements and conditions set forth in this 
Ordinance and its attached conditions or other Ordinances of the City of 
Chesterfield shall constitute an ordinance violation, subject, but not limited to, 
the penalty provisions as set forth in the City of Chesterfield Code. 



P.Z. 10-2023 Carshield F.C.            Planning Commission 8/14/2023 
Stock & Associates Consulting Engineers  Planning & Public Works Committee 8/24/2023 

 

4. Waiver of Notice of Violation per the City of Chesterfield Code.   

5. This document shall be read as a whole and any inconsistency to be integrated 
to carry out the overall intent of this Attachment A. 



OLD EATHERTON ROAD

ZONE AH

(ELEV.=463)

ZONE AH

(ELEV.=463)

A

A

B

B

EATH
ER

TO
N

 R
O

AD
 (V.W

.)

PRELIMINARY
DEVELOPMENT

PLAN

1 of 2

CARSHIELD FC
503 PEARL DR
ST. PETER MO 63376
ATTN: Nick Hamilton

PR
EP

AR
ED

 B
Y:

53
0 

N
. E

AT
H

ER
TO

N
 R

O
AD

C
H

ES
TE

R
FI

EL
D

, M
IS

SO
U

R
I 6

30
05

CA
RS

HI
EL

D 
FC

 S
OC

CE
R 

TR
AI

NI
NG

 &
 P

LA
YI

NG
 F

AC
IL

IT
Y

PR
EL

IM
IN

AR
Y 

D
EV

EL
O

PM
EN

T 
PL

AN
 F

O
R

:

D
R

AW
IN

G
 F

IL
E:

 O
:\D

R
AW

73
00

\2
02

27
30

1\
C

on
ce

pt
\N

or
th

 S
ite

\7
30

1-
ba

se
-o

pt
-2

.d
w

g 
 L

AY
O

U
T:

 P
D

P 
 P

LO
TT

ED
:  

Au
g 

04
,  

20
23

 - 
9:

31
am

  P
LO

TT
ED

 B
Y:

 ja
co

b.
bu

en
in

g

25
7 

Ch
es

te
rf

ie
ld

 B
us

in
es

s 
Pa

rk
w

ay
St

. L
ou

is
, M

O 
 6

30
05

 P
H.

 (6
36

)
53

0-
91

00
 F

AX
 (6

36
) 5

30
-9

13
0

e-
m

ai
l: 

ge
ne

ra
l@

st
oc

ka
ss

oc
.c

om
W

eb
: w

w
w

.s
to

ck
as

so
c.

co
m

·

·

·

·

·

·

“ ”

“ ”

·

·

·

·

·

·

AS SURVEYED DESCRIPTION

A tract of land being part of Lot 2 of the Subdivision of E. Kroennung Estate. a subdivision according to
the plat thereof as recorded in Plat Book 11 Page 11 of the St. Louis County Records located in U.S.
Survey 362, Township 45 North, Range 3 East. City of Chesterfield, St. Louis County, Missouri being
more particularly described as follows:

Beginning at a stone located at the northeastern corner of Lot 3 of Precision Plaza, a subdivision
according to the plat thereof as recorded in Plat Book 357, Page 286 of above said records; thence
along the northern line of said Lot 3 and its direct southwestern prolongation thereof, South 79 degrees
01 minute 04 seconds West, 594.01 feet to a stone found on the eastern right-of-way of Eatherton
Road, variable width; thence along said right-of-way line the following courses and distances, North 11
degrees 42 minutes 12 seconds West, 455.20 feet to a found Iron Rod;  North 78 degrees 37 minutes
41 seconds East, 14.77 feet to a found Iron Rod; North 11 degrees 22 minutes 19 seconds West,
580.16 feet to a found Iron Rod, said point also being the beginning of a curve to the right, having a
radius of 925.00 feet; thence along said curve with an arc length of 154.90 feet and a chord which
bears North 06 degrees 34 minutes 29 seconds West, 154.72 feet to the beginning of a non-tangential
curve to the right having a radius of 105.00 feet; along said curve with an arc length of 88.92 feet and a
chord which bears North 24 degrees 21 minutes 08 seconds East, 88.28 feet to a found Iron Rod and
North 11 degrees 23 minutes 25 seconds West, 5.00 feet to the southern line of that part of Old
Eatherton Road, 40 feet wide, as vacated by City of Chesterfield Ordinance Number 2649, recorded in
Book 19501, Page 473 of above said records; thence along said southern line of Old Eatherton Road,
North 78 degrees 36 minutes 35 seconds East, 493.10 fee to a found Iron Rod on the western line of a
tract of land as conveyed to the Burkhardt Family Investments LLC by instrument recorded in Book
17645, Page  485 of said records; thence along said western line and the western line of a tract of land
as conveyed to St. Louis County, Missouri by instrument recorded in Book 12257, Page 1819, South 11
degrees 14 minutes 25 seconds East, 1,234.20 feet to the POINT OF BEGINNING.

Containing 722,357 square feet or 16.583 acres, more or less according to calculations performed by
Stock & Associates Consulting Engineers, Inc during May 2023.



PRELIMINARY
DEVELOPMENT

PLAN

2 of 2

CARSHIELD FC
503 PEARL DR
ST. PETER MO 63376
ATTN: Nick Hamilton

PR
EP

AR
ED

 B
Y:

53
0 

N
. E

AT
H

ER
TO

N
 R

O
AD

C
H

ES
TE

R
FI

EL
D

, M
IS

SO
U

R
I 6

30
05

CA
RS

HI
EL

D 
FC

 S
OC

CE
R 

TR
AI

NI
NG

 &
 P

LA
YI

NG
 F

AC
IL

IT
Y

PR
EL

IM
IN

AR
Y 

D
EV

EL
O

PM
EN

T 
PL

AN
 F

O
R

:

D
R

AW
IN

G
 F

IL
E:

 O
:\D

R
AW

73
00

\2
02

27
30

1\
C

on
ce

pt
\N

or
th

 S
ite

\7
30

1-
ba

se
-o

pt
-2

.d
w

g 
 L

AY
O

U
T:

 P
D

P-
2 

 P
LO

TT
ED

:  
Au

g 
04

,  
20

23
 - 

9:
31

am
  P

LO
TT

ED
 B

Y:
 ja

co
b.

bu
en

in
g

25
7 

Ch
es

te
rf

ie
ld

 B
us

in
es

s 
Pa

rk
w

ay
St

. L
ou

is
, M

O 
 6

30
05

 P
H.

 (6
36

)
53

0-
91

00
 F

AX
 (6

36
) 5

30
-9

13
0

e-
m

ai
l: 

ge
ne

ra
l@

st
oc

ka
ss

oc
.c

om
W

eb
: w

w
w

.s
to

ck
as

so
c.

co
m





Memorandum  
Department of Planning  
 

To:  Michael O. Geisel, City Administrator 
 

From: Justin Wyse, Director of Planning  
 

Date:  September 05, 2023 
 

RE:  P.Z. 11-2023 Burkhardt Place, Lot 11: A request for an ordinance 

amendment to the existing “PC” Planned Commercial District to new “PC” 
Planned Commercial District with Landmark Preservation area for 0.32 

acres of the Historical District, located on the south side of Old 
Chesterfield Road (17T220036).  

 

Summary 
MJ Hennessy, LLC has submitted a request for an ordinance amendment to the existing 

“PC” Planned Commercial District to a new “PC” Planned Commercial District to modify 
the development standards in the existing ordinance of the site. This amendment would 
modify the building setbacks, parking setbacks, and building footprint restrictions 

existing in the current “PC” Planned Commercial District with a “LPA” Landmark and 
Preservation Area Overlay on 0.32 acres of land located south of Old Chesterfield Road. 
The submittal includes a Preliminary Development Plan, narrative statement, and 

outboundary survey. 

A Public Hearing was held on July 24, 2023 for this petition, there were no issues raised. 

On August 14, 2023 Planning Commission voted to approve this petition with an 
amendment to revise the language in the Trust Fund Contribution within the 
Attachment A. The amended motion passed by a vote of 6-0.  

After the Planning Commission meeting, the applicant requested a correction on the 
language in the Section III Trust Fund Contribution of the Attachment A shown in red 
below. 

“The amount of the developer’s contribution to this fund shall be computed based on the 
following and shall only be assessed on projects increasing the amount of parking on the 
site based on the requirements in the Unified Development Code.”  

On August 24, 2023, the petition was brought before the Planning & Public Works 
Committee. A motion was made to approve with requested amendment. The motion to 

approve the petition, as amended, passed by a vote 4-0. Modifications are attached as a 
Green Sheet Amendment.  

Attachments: Green Sheet Amendment 

                      Legislation 

                      Attachment A 



P.Z. 11-2023 Burkhardt Place, Lot 11  CC memo 

   September 05, 2023 

                      Attachment B – Preliminary Development Plan 

                   

 

 

Figure 1: Subject Site Aerial 



P.Z. 11-2023 Burkhardt Place, Lot 11   Green Sheet Amendment 

    
    

1 | P a g e  

 

GREEN SHEET AMENDMENTS 
 

The Planning and Public Works Committee recommended that the 
following changes be made to the Attachment A by a vote of 4-0: 

 
AMENDMENT 1: (Page 8 of 9) 
 

To add the following shown in red: 
 

 “The amount of the developer’s contribution to this fund shall be 

computed based on the following and shall only be assessed on 
projects increasing the amount of parking on the site based on the 

requirements in the Unified Development Code.” 
 



BILL NO.                       ORDINANCE NO.______________ 

 

AN ORDINANCE AMENDING THE UNIFIED DEVELOPMENT CODE OF THE 

CITY OF CHESTERFIELD BY CHANGING THE ORDINANCE OF THE 

EXISTING “PC” PLANNED COMMERCIAL DISTRICT TO A NEW “PC” 

PLANNED COMMERCIAL DISTRICT WITH LANDMARK PRESERVATION 

AREA FOR 0.32 ACRES OF THE HISTORICAL DISTRICT, LOCATED ON THE 

SOUTH SIDE OF OLD CHESTERFIELD ROAD [P.Z. 11-2023 BURKHARDT 

PLACE, LOT 11, 17T220036]. 

 

 WHEREAS, the petitioner, MJ Hennessy, LLC, has requested a change in 

ordinance 1618 of the existing “PC” Planned Commercial District to a new “PC” 

Planned Commercial District with Landmark Preservation area for 0.32 acres of 

the Historical District located on the south side of Old Chesterfield Road; and, 

 

 WHEREAS, a Public Hearing was held before the Planning Commission on 

July 24, 2023; and, 

 

 WHEREAS, the Planning Commission, having considered said request, 

recommended approval of the change of ordinance, with amendment, by a vote 

of 6-0; and, 

 

 WHEREAS, the Planning and Public Works Committee, having considered 

said request, recommended approval of the change of ordinance, with 

amendment, by a vote of 4-0; and, 

 

 WHEREAS, the City Council, having considered said request, voted to 

approve the ordinance amendment request. 

 

 NOW THEREFORE BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE 

CITY OF CHESTERFIELD, ST. LOUIS COUNTY, MISSOURI, AS FOLLOWS: 

 

 Section 1. City of Chesterfield Unified Development Code and the Official 

Zoning District Map, which are part thereof, are hereby amended by establishing 

a new “PC” Planned Commercial District with Landmark Preservation area 

designation for a 0.32 acres tract of land located on the south side of Chesterfield 

Road as described as follows: 

 

A TRACT OF LAND BEING LOT 11 AND PART OF LOT 12 OF BURKHARDT 

PLACE, A SUBDIVISION ACCORDING TO THE PLAT THEREOF 



RECORDED IN PLAT BOOK 12 PAGE 94 OF THE ST. LOUIS COUNTY 

RECORDS, IN US SURVEY 2031, TOWNSHIP 45 NORTH, RANGE 4 EAST, 

ST. LOUIS COUNTY, MISSOURI AND BEING MORE PARTICULARLY 

DESCRIBED AS:  

 

BEGINNING AT A POINT ON THE SOUTH LINE OF OLIVE STREET ROAD, 

60 FEET WIDE, SAID POINT BEING THE NORTHEAST CORNER OF SAID 

LOT 11 OF BURKHARDT PLACE; THENCE SOUTH 19 DEGREES 13 

MINUTES WEST 178.29 FEET ALONG THE EAST LINE OF SAID LOT 11 

TO THE SOUTHEAST CORNER THEREOF; THENCE NORTH 75 DEGREES 

28 MINUTES WEST 75.25 FEET ALONG THE SOUTH LINE OF SAID LOT 

11 TO THE SOUTHWEST CORNER THEREOF; THENCE NORTH 18 

DEGREES 17 MINUTES EAST 185.15 FEET TO THE SAID SOUTH LINE 

OF OLIVE STREET ROAD, 60 FEET WIDE; THENCE SOUTH 63 DEGREES 

57 MINUTES EAST, 5.68 FEET AND SOUTH 70 DEGREES 47 MINUTES 

EAST 72.33 FEET ALONG SAID SOUTH LINE OF OLIVE STREET ROAD 

TO THE POINT OF THE BEGINNING. 

Consulting Engineers 

 Section 2. The preliminary approval, pursuant to the City of Chesterfield 

Unified Development Code is granted, subject to all of the ordinances, rules and 

regulations. 

 

 Section 3. The City Council, pursuant to the petition filed by MJ 

Hennessy, LLC, in P.Z. 11-2023, requesting the ordinance amendment embodied 

in this ordinance, and pursuant to the recommendation of the City of 

Chesterfield Planning Commission that said petition be granted and after a 

public hearing, held by the Planning Commission on the 24th day of July, 2023, 

does hereby adopt this ordinance pursuant to the power granted to the City of 

Chesterfield under Chapter 89 of the Revised Statutes of the State of Missouri 

authorizing the City Council to exercise legislative power pertaining to planning 

and zoning.  

 

 Section 4. This ordinance and the requirements thereof are exempt from 

the warning and summons for violations as set out in Section 8 of the City of 

Chesterfield Unified Development Code.  

 

Section 5. This ordinance shall be in full force and effect from and after 

its passage and approval.  

 

 Passed and approved this _______ day of ____________________, 2023. 



   

_____________________________    _____________________________ 

    PRESIDING OFFICER        Bob Nation, MAYOR 

 

ATTEST: 

 

_____________________________ 

Vickie McGownd, CITY CLERK 

 
 

FIRST READING HELD: __09/05/2023___ 



P.Z. 11-2023 Burkhardt Place, Lot 11                                                             Page 1 of 9 
Planning Commission/July 24, 2023   
 

 

ATTACHMENT A 
 
 
All provisions of the City of Chesterfield City Code shall apply to this development 
except as specifically modified herein.   
 

 
I. SPECIFIC CRITERIA 

A. PERMITTED USES 

1. The uses allowed in this “PC” Planned Commercial District, with a Landmark 
and Preservation Area (LPA) procedure, shall be office use. 

 

B. FLOOR AREA, HEIGHT, BUILDING AND PARKING STRUCTURE 
REQUIREMENTS 

1. Floor Area 

a. The uses permitted within this “PC” Planned Commercial District, with a 
Landmark and Preservation Area (LPA) procedure, shall be contained in 
existing house. 

C. SETBACKS 

1. Structure Setbacks 

No building or structure, other than lights, fence, retaining walls, front porch 
steps, existing rear deck, existing stone bar-b-que, and flagpoles, shall be 
located within the following setbacks:  

a. Fifty-Five (55) feet from the right-of-way of Old Chesterfield Road.   

b. Seven (7) feet from the western boundary of the PC District.  

c. Thirty-five (35) feet from the eastern boundary of the PC District. 

d. Sixty-Five (65) feet from the southern boundary of the PC District. 

2. Parking Setbacks 

No parking stall, loading space, internal driveway, or roadway, except points of 
ingress and egress, shall be located within the following setbacks: 

a. Twelve (12) feet from the right-of-way of Old Chesterfield Road. 

b. Zero (0) feet from the western boundary of the PC District. 



P.Z. 11-2023 Burkhardt Place, Lot 11                                                             Page 2 of 9 
Planning Commission/July 24, 2023   
 

 

c. Zero (0) feet from the eastern boundary of the PC District. 

d. Twenty (20) feet from the southern boundary of the PC District. 

All parking, loading and internal drive areas shall be of a surface as approved 
by the Planning Commission on the Site Development Plan. Consideration 
should be given to utilizing a paver block system, or other alternative that is 
conducive to a more pleasing visual appearance from Old Chesterfield Road. 
These areas will not be permitted to be gravel. 

D. PARKING AND LOADING REQUIREMENTS 

1. Parking and loading spaces for this development will be as required in the City 
of Chesterfield Code. 

2. No construction related parking shall be permitted within right-of-way or on any 
existing roadways. All construction related parking shall be confined to the 
development. 

3. Parking lots shall not be used as streets. 

E. LANDSCAPE AND TREE REQUIREMENTS 

The development shall adhere to the Landscape and Tree Preservation     
Requirements of the City of Chesterfield Code. 

F. SIGN REQUIREMENTS 

1. Signs shall be permitted in accordance with the regulations of the City of 
Chesterfield Code or a Sign Package may be submitted for the planned district. 
Sign Packages shall adhere to the City Code and are reviewed and approved 
by the City of Chesterfield Planning Commission. 

2. This development shall be permitted one (1) freestanding business or project 
identification sign, which shall be in accord with the City of Chesterfield Sign 
Code. 

3. The location of all signs shall be as approved by the Planning Commission on 
the Site Development Plan. 

4. No advertising, temporary, portable signs or attention getting devices of any 
kind shall be permitted in this development. 

G. LIGHT REQUIREMENTS 

1. Provide a Lighting Plan and cut sheet in accordance with the City of 
Chesterfield Code.  



P.Z. 11-2023 Burkhardt Place, Lot 11                                                             Page 3 of 9 
Planning Commission/July 24, 2023   
 

 

2. No on-site light standard shall exceed twenty-four (24) feet in height. The 
location of all light standards shall be as approved on the Site Development 
Plan. 

H. ARCHITECTURAL  

1. Exterior façade and design features shall be reviewed by the City of 
Chesterfield Architectural Review Board and the Chesterfield Historical 
Commission and shall be subject to approval by the City of Chesterfield 
Planning Commission in conjunction with the Site Development Plan. 

2. Trash enclosures: All exterior trash areas will be enclosed with a minimum six 
(6) foot high sight-proof enclosure complemented by adequate landscaping.  
The location, material, and elevation of any trash enclosures will be as 
approved by the City of Chesterfield on the Site Development Plan. 

I. ACCESS/ACCESS MANAGEMENT 

1.  Access to the development shall be as shown on the Preliminary Site Plan and 
adequate driveway spacing and sight distance shall be provided, as directed 
by the City of Chesterfield. 

2. Provide a sidewalk conforming to ADA standards adjacent to Old Chesterfield 
Road as directed by the City of Chesterfield. 

3. Provide cross access easement to adjacent properties as directed by the City 
of Chesterfield. 

4. No construction parking will be permitted on Old Chesterfield Road right-of-
way. 

J. PUBLIC/PRIVATE ROAD IMPROVEMENTS, INCLUDING PEDESTRIAN 
CIRCULATION 

1. Any request to install a gate at the entrance to this development must be 
approved by the City of Chesterfield.  No gate installation will be permitted on 
public right-of-way.   

2. Provide a special cash escrow for future sidewalk construction along Old 
Chesterfield Road.  Specifically provide for construction of a five (5) foot wide 
sidewalk along the property frontage. 

3. Obtain approvals from the City of Chesterfield and other entities as necessary 
for locations of proposed curb cuts and access points, areas of new dedication, 
and roadway improvements. 



P.Z. 11-2023 Burkhardt Place, Lot 11                                                             Page 4 of 9 
Planning Commission/July 24, 2023   
 

 

4. Additional right-of-way and road improvements shall be provided, as required 
by the City of Chesterfield. 

K. TRAFFIC STUDY    

1. Provide a traffic study as directed by the City of Chesterfield.  The scope of the 
study shall include internal and external circulation and may be limited to site 
specific impacts, such as the need for additional lanes, entrance configuration, 
geometrics, sight distance, traffic signal modifications or other improvements 
required, as long as the density of the proposed development falls within the 
parameters of the City’s traffic model.  Should the density be other than the 
density assumed in the model, regional issues shall be addressed as directed 
by the City of Chesterfield. 

2. Provide a sight distance evaluation report, as required by the City of 
Chesterfield, for the proposed entrance onto Old Chesterfield Road.  If 
adequate sight distance cannot be provided at the access location, acquisition 
of right-of-way, reconstruction of pavement, including correction to the vertical 
alignment, and/or other off-site improvements shall be required, as directed by 
the City of Chesterfield. 

L. POWER OF REVIEW 

The development shall adhere to the Power of Review Requirements of the City 
of Chesterfield Code. 

M. STORM WATER  

1. The site shall provide for the positive drainage of storm water and it shall be 
discharged at an adequate natural discharge point or connected to an adequate 
piped system.   

2. Detention/retention and channel protection measures are to be provided in 
each watershed as required by the City of Chesterfield.  The storm water 
management facilities shall be operational prior to paving of any driveways or 
parking areas in non-residential development or issuance of building permits 
exceeding sixty percent (60%) of approved dwelling units in each plat, 
watershed or phase of residential developments.  The location and types of 
storm water management facilities shall be identified on the Site Development 
Plan(s).   

3. Emergency overflow drainage ways to accommodate runoff from the 100-year 
storm event shall be provided for all storm sewers, as directed by the City of 
Chesterfield and the Metropolitan St. Louis Sewer District. 



P.Z. 11-2023 Burkhardt Place, Lot 11                                                             Page 5 of 9 
Planning Commission/July 24, 2023   
 

 

4. Offsite storm water shall be picked up and piped to an adequate natural 
discharge point. Such bypass systems must be adequately designed. 

5. Locations of site features such as lakes and detention ponds must be approved 
by the City of Chesterfield and the Metropolitan Saint Louis Sewer District. 

N. SANITARY SEWER 

1. Sanitary sewer shall be as approved by the City of Chesterfield and the 
Metropolitan St. Louis Sewer District. 

O. GEOTECHNICAL REPORT 

Prior to Site Development Plan approval, provide a geotechnical report, prepared 
by a registered professional engineer licensed to practice in the State of Missouri, 
as directed by the Department of Public Services.  The report shall verify the 
suitability of grading and proposed improvements with soil and geologic conditions 
and address the existence of any potential sinkhole, ponds, dams, septic fields, 
etc., and recommendations for treatment.  A statement of compliance, signed and 
sealed by the geotechnical engineer preparing the report, shall be included on all 
Site Development Plans and Improvement Plans. 

R. MISCELLANEOUS 

1. All utilities will be installed underground.    

2. An opportunity for recycling will be provided. All provisions of Chapter 25, 
Article VII, and Section 25-122 thru Section 25-126 of the City Code shall be 
required where applicable. 

3. Road improvements and right-of-way dedication shall be completed prior to the 
issuance of an occupancy permit.  If development phasing is anticipated, the 
developer shall complete road improvements, right-of-way dedication, and 
access requirements for each phase of development as directed by the City of 
Chesterfield. Delays due to utility relocation and adjustments will not constitute 
a cause to allow occupancy prior to completion of road improvements. 

4. If any development in, or alteration of, the floodplain is proposed, the developer 
shall submit a Floodplain Study and Floodplain Development 
Permit/Application to the City of Chesterfield for approval.  The Floodplain 
Study must be approved by the City of Chesterfield prior to the approval of the 
Site Development Plan, as directed.  The Floodplain Development Permit must 
be approved prior to the approval of a Grading Permit or Improvement Plans.  
If any change in the location of the Special Flood Hazard Area is proposed, the 
Developer shall be required to obtain a Letter of Map Revision (LOMR) from 
the Federal Emergency Management Agency.  The LOMR must be issued by 



P.Z. 11-2023 Burkhardt Place, Lot 11                                                             Page 6 of 9 
Planning Commission/July 24, 2023   
 

 

FEMA prior to the final release of any escrow held by the City of Chesterfield 
for improvements in the development.  Elevation Certificates will be required 
for any structures within the Special Flood Hazard Area or the Supplemental 
Protection Area.  All new roads within and adjacent to this site shall be 
constructed at least one (1) foot above the base flood elevation of the Special 
Flood Hazard Area.  Improvements to existing roadways shall be required as 
necessary to provide at least one access route to each lot that is at least one 
(1) foot above the base flood elevation.  Consult Article 5 of the Unified 
Development Code for specific requirements for specific requirements. 

 

II. GENERAL CRITERIA 

A. SITE DEVELOPMENT SECTION PLAN SUBMITTAL REQUIREMENTS  

The Site Development Section Plan shall adhere to the above criteria and to the 
following:  

1. Location map, north arrow, and plan scale. The scale shall be no greater than 
one (1) inch equals one hundred (100) feet. 

2. Parking calculations. Including calculation for all off street parking spaces, 
required and proposed, and the number, size and location for handicap 
designed. 

3. Provide openspace percentage for overall development including separate 
percentage for each lot on the plan.   

4. Provide Floor Area Ratio (F.A.R.). 

5. A note indicating all utilities will be installed underground. 

6. A note indicating signage approval is a separate process. 

7. Depict the location of all buildings, size, including height and distance from 
adjacent property lines and proposed use. 

8. Specific structure and parking setbacks along all roadways and property 
lines. 

9. Indicate location of all existing and proposed freestanding monument signs. 

10. Zoning district lines, subdivision name, lot number, lot dimensions, lot area, 
and zoning of adjacent parcels where different than site. 

11. Floodplain boundaries.   



P.Z. 11-2023 Burkhardt Place, Lot 11                                                             Page 7 of 9 
Planning Commission/July 24, 2023   
 

 

12. Depict existing and proposed improvements within 150 feet of the site as 
directed. Improvements include, but are not limited to, roadways, driveways 
and walkways adjacent to and across the street from the site, significant 
natural features, such as wooded areas and rock formations, and other karst 
features that are to remain or be removed. 

13. Depict all existing and proposed easements and rights-of-way within 150 feet 
of the site and all existing or proposed off-site easements and rights-of-way 
required for proposed improvements. 

14. Indicate the location of the proposed storm sewers, detention basins, 
sanitary sewers and connection(s) to the existing systems. 

15. Depict existing and proposed contours at intervals of not more than one (1) 
foot, and extending 150 feet beyond the limits of the site as directed. 

16. Address trees and landscaping in accordance with the City of Chesterfield 
Code.  

17. Comply with all preliminary plat requirements of the City of Chesterfield 
Subdivision Regulations per the City of Chesterfield Code. 

18. Signed and sealed in conformance with the State of Missouri Department of 
Economic Development, Division of Professional Registration, Missouri 
Board for Architects, Professional Engineers and Land Surveyors 
requirements. 

19. Provide comments/approvals from the appropriate Fire District, Monarch 
Levee District, Spirit of St. Louis Airport, St. Louis Department of Highways 
and Traffic, Metropolitan St. Louis Sewer District (MSD) and the Missouri 
Department of Transportation. 

20. Compliance with Sky Exposure Plane. 

21. Compliance with the current Metropolitan Sewer District Site Guidance as 
adopted by the City of Chesterfield.   

III. TRUST FUND CONTRIBUTION 

The developer shall be required to contribute to the Traffic Generation Assessment 
(TGA) to the Trust Fund Area D.  

ROADS 

 
The roadway improvement contribution is based on land and building use. The 
roadway contributions are necessary to help defray the cost of engineering, right-



P.Z. 11-2023 Burkhardt Place, Lot 11                                                             Page 8 of 9 
Planning Commission/July 24, 2023   
 

 

of-way acquisition, and major roadway construction. The amount of the 
developer’s contribution to this fund shall be computed based on the following:   

 
Type of Development    Required Contribution 

General Office      $878.76/parking space 
 
(Parking spaces as required by the City of Chesterfield Code.) 

 
If types of development differ from those listed, rates shall be provided by the City 
of Chesterfield. 
 

If a portion of the improvements required herein are needed to provide for the 
safety of the traveling public, their completion as a part of this development is 
mandatory. 
 

Allowable credits for required roadway improvements will be awarded as directed 
by the City of Chesterfield. Sidewalk construction and utility relocation, among 
other items, are not considered allowable credits. 

 
As this development is located within a trust fund area established by the City of 
Chesterfield, any portion of the traffic generation assessment contribution which 
remains, following completion of road improvements required by the development, 
shall be retained in the appropriate trust fund. 

 
The amount of all required contributions, if not submitted by January 1, 2024, shall 
be adjusted on that date and on the first day of January in each succeeding year 
thereafter in accordance with the construction cost index as determined by the City 
of Chesterfield. 

 
Trust Fund contributions shall be deposited with the City of Chesterfield prior to the 
issuance of Municipal Zoning Approval.  

IV. RECORDING 

Within sixty (60) days of approval of any development plan by the City of Chesterfield, 
the approved Plan will be recorded with the St. Louis County Recorder of Deeds.  
Failure to do so will result in the expiration of approval of said plan and require re-
approval of a plan by the Planning Commission. 

V. ENFORCEMENT 

A. The City of Chesterfield, Missouri will enforce the conditions of this ordinance in 
accordance with the Plan approved by the City of Chesterfield and the terms of 
this Attachment A. 



P.Z. 11-2023 Burkhardt Place, Lot 11                                                             Page 9 of 9 
Planning Commission/July 24, 2023   
 

 

B.  Failure to comply with any or all the conditions of this ordinance will be adequate 
cause for revocation of approvals/permits by reviewing Departments and 
Commissions. 

C. Non-compliance with the specific requirements and conditions set forth in this 
Ordinance and its attached conditions or other Ordinances of the City of 
Chesterfield shall constitute an ordinance violation, subject, but not limited to, the 
penalty provisions as set forth in the City of Chesterfield Code. 

D. Waiver of Notice of Violation per the City of Chesterfield Code.   

E. This document shall be read as a whole and any inconsistency to be integrated 
to carry out the overall intent of this Attachment A. 



16658 Old Chesterfield Road project narrative:  
.  
 The goal of this project to rehabilitate the building to meet current building and occupancy codes, and to 
upgrade the buildings aesthetics to be more in keeping with the surrounding historic area.  
The building will be used for  office space , and an expansion of the owner, Jim Hennessy’s current marketing 
business, Yellow Dog Productions.  Jim Hennessy is also the owner of the property to the south and west of 16658 
Old Chesterfield Road. This building and property were  zoned “PC” and “LPA”  in April of 2000, and no change of 
this zoning designation is requested.  
 
The purpose of this submittal to Chesterfield is to change the zoning and parking setbacks, to enable the current 
footprint of the building to be expanded to the rear by 5 feet. In addition, a new rear porch to be added to the rear of 
the building to shelter the handicapped entry door, and a new covered porch roof will be added to the front of the 
building, where an existing open deck is currently located, with no roof. An additional existing section of the rear 
portion of this building (which was an addition), will also be rebuilt, in it’s same footprint.  
 
The revisions requested  from the current setback requirements of the Zoning Ordinance for this property are:  
 
Building setbacks 
Side yard setback will not be changed on the west, and will remain at  7’ 
Side yard setback is requested to be changed on the east side, the existing building is over the 36’ setback, a 
change is  requested to 35’.  
Front yard setback was at 60’ feet the existing building is at 59’ ,  a change is requested to  55’.  
Rear yard setback was at 80’,   the building with the proposed rear additions  is at 68’,  a change is requested to 
65’.  
Parking setbacks 
Rear yard parking setback was at 25’ , the existing parking lot is at  21’ ,  a change is requested to 20’. 
Front yard parking setback is at 40’, a change is requested  to  12’. 
Side yard parking setback is currently 20’ from the west it is now proposed to be a  0’ setback on both sides of the 
property.   
 
Note:   This is an existing parking lot that has been in place for many years. 8 existing parking spaces are proposed 
to be removed from the property to create more green space, and accommodate the addition and porch in the rear. 
 
No trees will be removed as a part of this project, and the project is in keeping with the Comprehensive Plan- City 
Center, Old Chesterfield.  



We, Volz Incorporated, have during May 2023, by order of Mr. Jim Hennessy, made a 
Property Boundary and Topographic Survey of “A tract of land being Lot 11 and part of 
Lot 12 of "Burkhardt Place," in U.S. Survey 2031, Township 45 North – Range 4 East, St. 
Louis County, Missouri” and the results are shown hereon.  This survey was executed in 
accordance with the current Missouri Standards for Property Boundary Surveys of the 
Missouri Board for Architects, Professional Engineers, Professional Land Surveyors, and 
Professional Landscape Architects and the Missouri Department of Agriculture and 
meets the accuracy requirements set forth for Urban Property. 

Property Description from Deed Book 24448 page 5566: 

 
A tract of land being Lot 11 and part of Lot 12 of Burkhardt Place, a subdivision according to the 
plat thereof recorded in Plat Book 12 page 94 of the St. Louis County Records, in US Survey 
2031, Township 45 North, Range 4 East, St. Louis County, Missouri and being more particularly 
described as: Beginning at a point on the South line of Olive Street Road, 60 feet wide, said 
point being the Northeast corner of said Lot 11 of Burkhardt Place; thence South 19 degrees 13 
minutes West 178.29 feet along the East line of said Lot 11 to the Southeast corner thereof; 
thence North 75 degrees 28 minutes West 75.25 feet along the South line of said Lot 11 to the 
Southwest corner thereof; thence North 18 degrees 17 minutes East 185.15 feet to the said 
South line of Olive Street Road, 60 feet wide; thence South 63 degrees 57 minutes East, 5.68 
feet and South 70 degrees 47 minutes East 72.33 feet along said South line of Olive Street 
Road to the point of the beginning. 

General Notes: 

1. Bearing system adopted from the plat of “Burkhardt Place”, recorded in Plat Book 12 page 

94 of the St. Louis County records. 

2. Benchmark: 
 
St. Louis County Benchmark 12278 NAVD88 (SLC2011a) Elev = 520.28 Ft US 
Cut "Sq" on southeast bullnose end of median island within the entrance to "VILLAS AT 
CHESTERFIELD BLUFFS PLAT ONE" (Plat Book 344, Page 58); roughly in the centerline 
of Chesterfield Bluffs Drive, 52 feet northwest of the centerline of Baxter Road, and 0.2 miles 
more or less north of Wild Horse Creek Road. 
 
Site Benchmark: 
 
Elev = 461.33   Old iron rod 0.36’ South of the Northwest property corner. 
 

3. Setback lines shown hereon, were taken from the recorded plat of the subdivision and may 
not represent all setback restrictions that affect the property.  Other sources of setbacks that 
could affect the property may include the city’s zoning code, the city’s building code and
subdivision indentures and restrictions. 

 
4. The underground utilities shown hereon were plotted from information from Missouri 

American Water Company and The Metropolitan St. Louis Sewer District and do not 
necessarily reflect the actual existence, nonexistence, size, type, capacity, number, or 
location of these or other utilities, nor the ability  to serve the existing or intended uses of this 
or adjacent sites.  A Missouri One Call System (1-800-DIG-RITE) locate request was made 
and markings found at the site, if any, have been shown.  The location of any underground 
utilities or facilities were plotted from plats and field markings furnished by others and cannot 
be verified as being complete or correct.  The general contractor shall be responsible for 
verifying the actual location of all underground utilities in the field, shown or not shown, prior 
to any grading, excavation, or construction of improvements.  These provisions shall in no 
way absolve any party from complying with the Underground Facility Safety and Damage 
Prevention Act, Chapter 319, RSMo. 

 

5. Drip line of trees shown is based on the assumed ratio of one inch of trunk diameter: one 
foot of drip line radius. 

 

6. The deed recorded as Document Number 2022100400830 to Hennessy Creative, LLC lists
the bearing on the East property line as South 19 degrees 12 minutes West, apparently 
incorrect.  Prior deed recorded in Book 24448 page 5566 lists the bearing on the East 
property line as South 19 degrees 13 minutes West, which is what was used for this survey.  

Title Commitment Schedule B, Part II Notes: 

The surveyed property is referenced from commitment by Alliant National Title Insurance 

Company, Inc., File Number 22LT05981, dated August 29, 2022.  Said commitment was relied 

upon to disclose all easements, restrictions and rights of way affecting the surveyed property.  

Volz Incorporated comments are shown in brackets. 

4. Covenants, conditions, restrictions and easements according to the Plat thereof

recorded in Plat Book 12, Page 94 [shown]; and Site Development Plan recorded in Plat

Book 348, Page 217 [shown] of the said County Records. 

5. Ordinance No. 1609 in the City of Chesterfield recorded in Book 12519, Page 599

[shown]. 

6. Easement for parking spaces recorded in Book 13965, Page 683.  [Easement for 5 

parking spaces located on the surveyed property, the location of which is not specified; 

not shown.] 



PROPERTY DESCRIPTION FROM DEED BOOK 24448 PAGE 5566: 

 

A TRACT OF LAND BEING LOT 11 AND PART OF LOT 12 OF BURKHARDT PLACE, A 
SUBDIVISION ACCORDING TO THE PLAT THEREOF RECORDED IN PLAT BOOK 12 

PAGE 94 OF THE ST. LOUIS COUNTY RECORDS, IN US SURVEY 2031, TOWNSHIP 45 

NORTH, RANGE 4 EAST, ST. LOUIS COUNTY, MISSOURI AND BEING MORE 

PARTICULARLY DESCRIBED AS: BEGINNING AT A POINT ON THE SOUTH LINE OF 
OLIVE STREET ROAD, 60 FEET WIDE, SAID POINT BEING THE NORTHEAST CORNER 
OF SAID LOT 11 OF BURKHARDT PLACE; THENCE SOUTH 19 DEGREES 13 MINUTES 

WEST 178.29 FEET ALONG THE EAST LINE OF SAID LOT 11 TO THE SOUTHEAST 
CORNER THEREOF; THENCE NORTH 75 DEGREES 28 MINUTES WEST 75.25 FEET 

ALONG THE SOUTH LINE OF SAID LOT 11 TO THE SOUTHWEST CORNER THEREOF; 
THENCE NORTH 18 DEGREES 17 MINUTES EAST 185.15 FEET TO THE SAID SOUTH 
LINE OF OLIVE STREET ROAD, 60 FEET WIDE; THENCE SOUTH 63 DEGREES 57 

MINUTES EAST, 5.68 FEET AND SOUTH 70 DEGREES 47 MINUTES EAST 72.33 FEET 

ALONG SAID SOUTH LINE OF OLIVE STREET ROAD TO THE POINT OF THE BEGINNING. 

GENERAL NOTES: 

 
SANITARY SEWER CONNECTION IS EXISTING NO IMPROVEMENTS  

  

GRADING SHALL BE PER CITY OF CHESTERFIELD STANDARDS 

 

THERE IS 94 SF OF PAVEMENT PROPOSED. AREAS OF PAVEMENT REMOVAL TO CREATE 

ADDITIONAL GREEN SPACE THOSE AREAS TO BE GRASS OR LANDSCAPED. 
 

ACCESSIBLE SPACE IS EXISTING. 

 

THE UNDERGROUND UTILITIES SHOWN HEREIN WERE PLOTTED FROM AVAILABLE 

INFORMATION AND DO NOT NECESSARILY REFLECT THE ACTUAL EXISTENCE, 

NONEXISTENCE, SIZE, TYPE, NUMBER, OR LOCATION OF THESE OR OTHER UTILITIES. 
THE GENERAL CONTRACTOR SHALL BE RESPONSIBLE FOR VERIFYING THE ACTUAL 

LOCATION OF ALL UNDERGROUND UTILITIES, SHOWN OR NOT SHOWN AND SHALL BE 

LOCATED IN EXCAVATION, OR CONSTRUCTION OF IMPROVEMENTS IN THE FIELD PRIOR 

TO ANY GRADING. THESE PROVISIONS SHALL IN NO WAY ABSOLVE ANY PARTY FROM 

COMPLYING WITH THE UNDERGROUND FACILTY SAFETY AND DAMAGE PREVENTION 

ACT, CHAPTER 319, RSMO. 
 

NO TREES TO BE REMOVED 

 

 

PROJECT NOTES: 
 

AREA OF SITE: 0.318 ACRES 
  

LOCATOR NUMBER: 17T220036 
  

SITE ADDRESS: 16658 OLD CHESTERFIELD RD 
  

OWNER OF RECORD: MJ HENNESSY LLC. 
 

  

PREPARED FOR: MJ HENNESSY LLC.  16658 OLD CHESTERFIELD 

RD, CHESTERFIELD 
MO, 63017 

  

PREPARED BY: 

 

10849 INDIAN HEAD INDL. BLVD. 

ST. LOUIS, MO 63132 

314.426.6212 MAIN 
314.890.1250 FAX 

  

EXISTING ZONING: “PC” PLANNED COMMERCIAL 

“LPA” LANDMARKS PRESERVATION AREA 
  

AREA OF PAVEMENT TO 

BE REMOVED: 

843 SF 

AREA OF BUILDING 

ADDITION: 

172 SF 

AREA OF PORCH TO 

REBUILT: 

100 SF 

AREA ADDITIONAL 

PAVEMENT & WALK: 

124 SF 

AREA OF NEW COVERED 
REAR PORCH 

269 SF 

TOTAL AREA OF NEW 

ADDITION, REBUILT, AND 

PAVEMENT TO BE 

REMOVED: 

1,478 SF 

TOTAL AREA OF 

BUILDING: 

2261 SF 

REQUIRED & PROPOSED 

PARKING: 

2261 SF BUILDING @  3.3 SPACES PER 1000 SF 

2261 SF / 1000 SF = 2.26  

2.26 X 3.3 SPACES = 7.46 

8 SPACES REQUIRED 

11 SPACES PROPOSED 

OPEN SPACE 5442 

13852=.392 

39% 

  

GAS: 

WATER: 

SEWER:   

ELECTRIC: 

TELEPHONE: 

CABLE: 
SCHOOL DISTRICT: 

FIRE DISTRICT: 

SPIRE GAS  

MISSOURI AMERICAN WATER CO 

METROPOLITAN ST. LOUIS SEWER DISTRICT 

AMEREN  

AT&T 

CHARTER 
ROCKWOOD 8 

MONARCH FIRE PROTECTION DISTRICT  

 



1 | P a g e  
 

Memorandum  

 Department of Planning  
 

To:  Michael O. Geisel, City Administrator 

From: Justin Wyse, Director of Planning 

Date: September 5th, 2023 

RE: International Property Maintenance Code   

Summary 

Staff from the Department of Police (Code Enforcement), Department of Planning, and 
legal counsel have been working to increase code enforcement activity to resolve 
property maintenance issues (e.g. problem properties). Several long-standing problem 

properties have been brought into compliance through this process. However, Staff has 
also uncovered inconsistencies in our adopted codes that need to be resolved. 

 
History  
In 2003, the City of Chesterfield adopted Ordinance 1932 adopting minimum 

standards for exteriors of properties. There was a good deal of discussion during 
deliberation on this section of the code and the Council limited the City’s property 
maintenance powers to these exterior standards. These standards were adopted in lieu 

of adoption of the International Property Maintenance Code and were much more 
limiting on the powers of the City to enforce standards on private property, specifically 

limiting the standards to the exterior of properties. 
 
In the following years, the International Property Maintenance Code was adopted while 

adopting new building, mechanical and other technical codes. As you are aware, the 
City contracts with St. Louis County for building permitting services and we adopt the 

same building codes as the County.  
 
The result is that the City effectively has two property maintenance codes adopted with 

different powers and procedures. 
 
International Property Maintenance Code 

As stated in the International Property Maintenance Code (IPMC), the document is, 
“intended to establish minimum maintenance standards for basic equipment, light, 

ventilation, heating, sanitation and fire safety.” The IPMC is divided into eight chapters 
addressing:  
 

• Scope and Application; 

• Administration and Enforcement; 

• General Requirements; 

• Light, Ventilation and Occupancy Limitations; 



2 | P a g e  
 

• Plumbing Facilities and Fixture Requirements; 

• Mechanical and Electrical Requirements; 

• Fire Safety Requirements; and  

• Referenced Standards.  
 
These standards are far more expansive than the Exterior Property Maintenance 
standards adopted in other parts of the City Code. For example, Chapter 3 contains 

interior structure standards, and Chapters 4-7 contain additional standards for 
various elements that would often be located on the interior of a property. 
 

The code includes a section on enforcement which does not match the procedures 
within the City Code. It should also be noted that many of the remedies of violations 

of this section of code would result in a structure being deemed unsuitable for 
occupancy. Traditionally, this would result in revocation or denial of occupancy 
permits for the premises; however, the City has not instituted a re-occupancy permit 

program. 
 

Exterior Maintenance Standards 
Attached to this report is a copy of the adopted exterior maintenance standards 
originally adopted by the City in 2003. As can be seen, these standards are much more 

focused and limited to exterior of properties only. No additional procedures are stated 
as enforcement utilizes procedures elsewhere in the Code. 
 

Recommendation 
This item was reviewed by the Planning and Public Works Committee in May of 2023 

where the Committee directed Staff to review the two sections of code and bring an 
ordinance to the Committee to repeal the International Property Maintenance Code. 
This was reviewed by the Committee on August 24, 2023 and the Committee voted 4-

0 to forward the proposed ordinance to the City Council with a recommendation of 
approval. 
 

It should also be noted that the Committee directed Staff to coordinate with the St. 
Louis County Department of Health to determine County levels services and 

interaction necessary from the City in this instances. Staff will report back to PPW 
once this is completed.  

 
           
                



BILL NO. ______________           ORDINANCE NO.______________ 

 

 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF CHESTERFIELD, MISSOURI REPEALING 

THE 2015 INTERNATIONAL PROPERTY MAINTENANCE CODE AND LOCAL 

AMENDMENTS THERETO. 

 

 

 WHEREAS, the City has adopted Minimum Exterior Standards to ensure 

the exterior of buildings are maintained in a structurally sound and sanitary 

condition; and, 

 

 WHEREAS, the City has also adopted the 2015 International Property 

Maintenance Code which includes both exterior and interior maintenance 

standards; and, 

 

 WHEREAS, the City desires to have clear regulations regarding standards 

for exterior property maintenance; and  

 

 WHEREAS, the Planning and Public Works Committee has reviewed the 

City’s Minimum Exterior Standards and the 2015 International Property 

Maintenance Code, and recommends repeal of the 2015 International Property 

Maintenance Code; and, 

  

 

 NOW THEREFORE BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE 

CITY OF CHESTERFIELD, MISSOURI, AS FOLLOWS: 

 

 

Section 1. Section 500.007 Property Maintenance Code of the City Code 

is hereby repealed in its entirety, including Attachment 500g Amendment to 

Chapter 1 ICC International Property Maintenance Code.  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



Section 2. This ordinance shall be in full force and effect from and after 

its passage and approval. 

 

 

 Passed and approved this _______ day of ____________________, 2023. 

 

   

_____________________________    ______________________________ 

PRESIDING OFFICER        Bob Nation, MAYOR 

 

 

ATTEST: 

 

________________________________ 

 Vickie, McGownd, CITY CLERK 

 

 

 

 

FIRST READING HELD: ____________ 09/05/2023



FINANCE AND ADMINISTRATION COMMITTEE 

Chair:  Councilmember Michael Moore 
Vice-Chair:  Barbara McGuinness 

 
There are no Finance and Administration Committee action items scheduled for 
Tuesday’s meeting. 

 
NEXT MEETING 
 

 
A meeting of the whole is scheduled for Monday, October 3rd at 5:30 pm in 

Chambers.  Among other agenda items, the agenda will include “Finance 104” and 
presentation of the Five-year projections. 
 

 
If you have any questions or require additional information, please contact Finance 

Director Jeannette Kelly or me prior to Tuesday’s meeting.   
 
 

 



PARKS, RECREATION AND ARTS COMMITTEE 
Chair:  Councilmember Mary Monachella 
Vice Chair:  Councilmember Gary Budoor 

 
There are no Parks, Recreation and Arts Committee action items scheduled for 
Tuesday’s meeting. 

 
 

NEXT MEETING 
 
The next meeting of the Parks, Recreation and Arts Committee had not yet been 

scheduled. 
 

If you have any questions or require additional information, please contact Parks, 
Recreation and Arts Director TW Dieckmann or me prior to Tuesday’s meeting. 
 

 



PUBLIC HEALTH AND SAFETY COMMITTEE 
Chair:  Councilmember Mary Ann Mastorakos 
Vice Chair:  Councilmember Michael Moore 

 
 
Proposed Resolution No. 489 – A Resolution of the City of Chesterfield, Missouri to 

permit the City of Ballwin, Missouri to install a license plate recognition camera 
within the municipal boundaries of the City of Chesterfield. (Roll Call Vote) Public 

Health and Safety Committee recommends approval. 
 
 

NEXT MEETING 
 

The next meeting of the Public Health and Safety Committee has not yet been 
scheduled. 
 

If you have any questions or require additional information, please contact Chief Ray 
Johnson or me prior to Tuesday’s meeting.   
 

 







489







REPORT FROM THE CITY ADMINISTRATOR & OTHER ITEMS 
REQUIRING ACTION BY CITY COUNCIL 
 
There are no items from the City Administrator action items scheduled for Tuesday’s 

meeting. 
 
 

OTHER LEGISLATION 
 
Proposed Bill No. 3469 - Spirit Valley Business Park II (Record Plat): A Record 

Plat for a 27.35-acre tract of land zoned “PI” Planned Industrial located south of 
Olive Street Rd., east of Eatherton Rd., and west of Spirit Valley Central Dr. (First 
and Second Reading) Planning Commission recommends approval. 

 
 
UNFINISHED BUSINESS 
 
There is no unfinished business scheduled for this meeting. 

 
 
NEW BUSINESS 



Memorandum
Department of Planning
To: Michael O. Geisel, City Administrator

From: Justin Wyse, Director of Planning

Date: September 5th, 2023

RE: Spirit Valley Business Park II (Record Plat): A Record Plat and escrow
agreements for a 27.35-acre tract of land zoned “PI” Planned Industrial
located south of Olive Street Rd., east of Eatherton Rd., and west of Spirit
Valley Central Dr.

Summary
Stock & Associates Consulting Engineers, Inc., on behalf of Spirit Valley Development
LLC, has submitted a record plat for review. The request depicts the creation of a new
six (6) lot development that totals 27.35 acres. The subject site is zoned “PI” Planned
Industrial and is governed under Site-Specific Ordinance 2413

A record plat is the instrument which dedicates lots, common ground, necessary
easements and right-of-way for future roads within a development. Once a plat is
recorded, the new lots may be sold to individual owners. The proposed record plat
substantially conforms to the Site Development Concept Plan that was approved by the
Planning Commission in 2010. The land is currently undeveloped but there are plans
under review for proposed development. These include improvement plans for the Spirit
Valley West roadway extension and a site development section plan for a proposed
office/warehouse on Lot 3.

On August 14th, 2023 the City of Chesterfield Planning Commission made a motion to
recommended approval of the Spirit Valley Business Park II Record Plat. The motion
passed by a vote of 6-0.

The following page includes an image of the proposed record plat configuration in
relation to the surrounding land.

http://www.chesterfield.mo.us/webcontent/ordinances/2007/ord2413.pdf


Spirit Valley Business Park II CC Memo
Record Plat September 5th, 2023

Figure 1:  Proposed record plat in relation to surrounding land



BILL NO. ______________        ORDINANCE NO.______________

AN ORDINANCE PROVIDING FOR THE APPROVAL OF A RECORD PLAT AND
ESCROW AGREEMENTS FOR SPIRIT VALLEY BUSINESS PARK II, A 27.35-
ACRE TRACT OF LAND ZONED “PI” PLANNED INDUSTRIAL LOCATED
SOUTH OF OLIVE STREET RD., EAST OF EATHERTON RD., AND WEST OF
SPIRIT VALLEY CENTRAL DR.

WHEREAS, Stock & Associates Consulting Engineers, on behalf of Spirit
Valley Development, LLC, has submitted for review and approval a Record Plat
for Spirit Valley Business Park II located south of Olive Street Rd., east of
Eatherton Rd., and west of Spirit Valley Central Dr.; and,

WHEREAS, the purpose of said Record Plat is to subdivide a 27.35-acre
tract of land into six (6) lots; and,

WHEREAS, the Planning Commission, having considered said request,
recommended approval of the Record Plat; and,

WHEREAS, the City Council, having considered said request, voted to
approve the Record Plat.

NOW THEREFORE BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY
OF CHESTERFIELD, ST. LOUIS COUNTY, MISSOURI, AS FOLLOWS:

Section 1. The Record Plat and escrow agreements for Spirit Valley
Business Park II, which is made hereof and attached hereto as “Exhibit 1” is
hereby approved; provided, however, that nothing in this ordinance shall be
construed or interpreted as an acceptance of the public utilities or public
easement which are dedicated on the Record Plat. The owner is directed to record
the plat with the St. Louis County Recorder of Deeds Office.

Section 2. The Mayor and City Clerk are authorized and directed to
evidence the approval of said Record Plat by affixing their signatures and the
Official Seal of the City of Chesterfield as required on said documents.

Section 3. The Ordinance shall be in full force and effect from and after
its passage and approval.



Passed and approved this __________ day of ______________________, 2023.

_______________________________ ________________________________
       PRESIDING OFFICER            Bob Nation, MAYOR

ATTEST:

________________________________
  Vickie McGownd, CITY CLERK

FIRST READING HELD: 9/5/2023























SUBDIVISION: Spirit Valley Business Park II DEVELOPER:
PLAT: Spirit Valley Business Park II

SUBDIVISION CODE: 784
NO. LOTS: 6

DATE OF PLAT APPROVAL: TBD

DATE OF % ORIGINAL TOTAL TOTAL  % CURRENT %
CATEGORY RELEASE RELEASE BALANCE RELEASED RELEASED BALANCE REMAINING

STREETS 602,841.43$ -$ 0 602,841.43$ 100
-$

SIDEWALKS 4,104.93$ -$ 0 4,104.93$ 100
-$

STREET SIGNS 5,601.42$ -$ 0 5,601.42$ 100
-$

SANITARY SEWER 86,772.62$ -$ 0 86,772.62$ 100
-$

STORM CULVERTS (Non-MSD) 119,219.49$ -$ 0 119,219.49$ 100
-$

EROSION CONTROL 17,270.00$ -$ 0 17,270.00$ 100
-$

SILTATION CONTROL 22,638.00$ -$ 0 22,638.00$ 100
-$

COMMON GROUND SEED 11,388.04$ -$ 0 11,388.04$ 100
-$

MONUMENTATION 1,151.15$ -$ 0 1,151.15$ 100
-$

STREET LIGHTS 44,275.00$ -$ 0 44,275.00$ 100
-$

WATER MAINS 463,710.00$ -$ 0 463,710.00$ 100
-$

TOTALS 1,378,972.06$ -$ 0 1,378,972.06$ 100

CONSTRUCTION DEPOSIT

Spirit Valley Development, LLC























Spirit Valley Business Park II
Spirit Valley Business Park II
784
Spirit Valley Development, LLC

ORIGINAL DATE OF AMOUNT CURRENT
CATEGORY BALANCE RELEASE RELEASED BALANCE

STREETS 60,284.14$ 60,284.14$

SIDEWALKS 410.49$ 410.49$

STREET SIGNS 560.14$ 560.14$

SANITARY SEWER 8,677.26$ 8,677.26$

STORM SEWER (Non-MSD) 11,921.95$ 11,921.95$

EROSION CONTROL 1,727.00$ 1,727.00$

SILTATION CONTROL 2,263.80$ 2,263.80$

COMMON GROUND SEED 1,138.80$ 1,138.80$

MONUMENTATION 115.12$ 115.12$

STREET LIGHTS 4,427.50$ 4,427.50$

WATER MAINS 46,371.00$ 46,371.00$

TOTALS 137,897.21$ -$ 137,897.21$

MAINTENANCE DEPOSIT

SUBDIVISION:
PLAT:

SUB CODE:
DEVELOPER:












































	2023-09-05 City Council Agenda
	2023-09-05 Paragraphs
	2023-08-21 City Council Minutes
	08-24-2023_Planning_and_Public_Works_Minutes
	Bill No. 3463
	C1.0-rezoning
	Sheets and Views
	Model


	C2.0-rezoning
	Sheets and Views
	Model


	C3.0-rezoning
	Sheets and Views
	Model


	C4.0-rezoning
	Sheets and Views
	Model


	C5.0-rezoning
	Sheets and Views
	Model


	C6.0-rezoning
	Sheets and Views
	Model


	L813.102_TSD-0_30x42
	Sheets and Views
	TSD-0_30x42


	L813.102_TSD-1_30x42
	Sheets and Views
	TSD-1_30x42


	L813.102_TSD-2_30x42
	Sheets and Views
	TSD-2_30x42


	L813.102_TSD-3_30x42
	Sheets and Views
	TSD-3_30x42


	L813.102_TSD-4_30x42
	Sheets and Views
	TSD-4_30x42


	L813.102_TSD-5_30x42
	Sheets and Views
	TSD-5_30x42



	Bill No. 3464
	Final ROW Plans Chesterfield Parkway AR-1768 Sealed & Signed
	1768-S-RW-01-TITLE_SHEET
	1768-S-RW-02-TYPICAL_SECTIONS
	1768-S-RW-03-TYPICAL_SECTIONS
	1768-S-RW-04-ROW_PLAN
	1768-S-RW-05-ROW_PLAN
	1768-S-RW-06-ROW_PLAN
	1768-S-RW-07-ROW_PLAN
	1768-S-RW-08-ROW_PLAN
	1768-S-RW-09-ROW_PLAN
	1768-S-RW-10-ROW_PLAN
	1768-S-RW-11-ROW_PLAN
	1768-S-RW-12-ROW_PLAN
	1768-S-RW-13-COORDS
	Page 1 from 052622 AR-1768 Final ROW_Sealed - sls signed

	2023-08-04 Chesterfield Parkway Resurfacing TSCL Ordinance
	Signed_Geiselltrparnos.18_19.1768 (JK 07-27-2023)
	TSCL_Parcel No. 18 - Revised
	TSCL_Parcel No. 19 - Revised


	2023-09-05 PZ 10-2023 CC Packet
	2023-09-05 PZ 11-2023 CC Packet
	2023-09-05 Property Main Code
	2023-09-05_SVBPII_RP_CC Packet
	6-21-2023 PH&S Minutes
	SKM_C300i23082810420



